
 
 
 

 
 

Despatched: 15.10.12 

 

 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE  

23 October 2012 at 7.00 pm 

Conference Room - Council Office 

 

AGENDA 

 
Membership: 

 

Chairman: Cllr. Bosley  Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Grint 

Cllrs. Abraham, Ayres, Mrs. Bayley, Butler, Ms. Chetram, Cooke, Mrs. Dibsdall, Edwards-

Winser, Eyre, London, Maskell, Orridge, Mrs. Purves, Mrs. Sargeant, Scholey, Searles and 

Williamson 

 

 

 

Apologies for Absence. 

 

Pages Contact 

1. Minutes  

Minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2012. 

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 

 

 

2. Declarations of interest  

Any interests not already registered. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Formal Response from the Cabinet following matters 

referred by the Committee and/or requests from the 

Performance and Governance Committee (if any)  

 

 

 

 

 

4. Actions from previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 

 

 

5. Future Business, the Work Plan 2011/12 (attached) and 

the Forward Plan.  

(Pages 7 - 8) 

 

 

 

 Members will develop a schedule of work over the year to 

reflect the terms of reference of the Committee focussing 

on the Council's priorities for policy development. This 

includes opportunities to invite  other organisations who 

provide services in the District to provide information to 

the Committee and discuss issues of importance to the 

Community. 

 

  

 

6. Railways and Trains (Southern and South-Eastern 

operators). 

Verbal presentations 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

7. Village Design Statements  (Pages 9 - 

100) 

 

Alan Dyer 

Tel: 01732 

227440 

8. Annual Review of Parking Charges for 2013/14 and 

Christmas Parking 2012  

(Pages 101 - 

118) 

 

Gary Connor 

Tel: 01732 

227310 

9. 2013-14 Budget & Review of Service Plans  (Pages 119 - 

142) 

 

Adrian 

Rowbotham 

Tel: 01732 

227153 

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain factual 

information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate Director or 

Contact Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 

 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format 

please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 

The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 

 

 

 



 

5 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment Select Committee 

held on 4 September 2012 commencing at 7.00 pm 

 

 

Present: Cllr. Bosley (Chairman) 

 

Cllr. Grint (Vice Chairman) 

  

 Cllrs. Abraham, Ayres, Mrs. Bayley, Butler, Cooke, Mrs. Dibsdall, Edwards-

Winser, Maskell, Orridge, Mrs. Sargeant and Searles. 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Ms. Chetram, London, 

Mrs. Purves, Scholey and Williamson. 

 

 Cllr. Mrs Hunter was also present. 

 

8. MINUTES  

 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 May 2012, be approved 

and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 

9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

No declarations of interest were made 

 

10. FORMAL RESPONSE FROM THE CABINET FOLLOWING MATTERS REFERRED BY THE 

COMMITTEE AND/OR REQUESTS FROM THE PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

COMMITTEE:  

 

(a) Community Infrastructure Levy (Response from Cabinet – 14 June 2012) 

 

The response from Cabinet was noted. 

 

11. ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING  

 

The action from the previous meeting was noted. 

 

12. FUTURE BUSINESS, THE WORK PLAN 2012/13 (ATTACHED) AND THE FORWARD PLAN.  

 

The Chairman advised that the ‘Final Draft Community Infrastructure Levy’ and ‘Gypsies 

and Travellers Plan’ would be moved to the meeting in January 2013.  It was noted that 

the Work Plan was light for the rest of the year and the Chairman asked the Committee 

to make suggestions for future reports. 

 

13. FLY TIPPING  

 

The Vice Chairman introduced the report as it had been placed on the work plan at his 

request, and commented that the figures did not fit the public perception of what was 

actually happening.   

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Environment Select Committee - 4 September 2012 

6 

 

 

Julian Cook, District Manager for Kent County Council (KCC) Highways Sevenoaks Area 

was introduced to the Committee.  He advised that he dealt with reactive maintenance of 

the highways which would include commercial fly tipping on the highway.  The Committee 

was advised that the District Council was responsible for removing fly tipped household 

waste and KCC was responsible for removing fly tipped commercial waste, on the 

highway.  There were grey areas but the authorities would liaise.  Neither were 

responsible for removing fly tipped waste on private land.  One of the problems was the 

District’s proximity to London, and some London Boroughs had put up the price of skip 

hire.  There had also been an increase in the fly tipping of waste containing  asbestos 

which took longer to remove as it required  specialist contractors.  They worked closely 

with the ‘Clean Kent Team’ and recently using covert cameras had caught one offender 

from the Lewisham area who was responsible for at least eighteen offences.   

 

It was noted that the figures presented were of all fly tipping reports but the removals 

recorded were only those the District Council were responsible for removing and could be 

found. 

 

Action 1:  For future reports an extra column to be included to show the number 

of reported incidents that were on private land. 

 

In response to questions the District Manager Sevenoaks (KHS), advised that the 

strategy for dissuading against fly tipping was working closely with the District Council 

and the Clean Kent campaign (www.cleankent.co.uk) which encouraged a vigilant public 

to report fly tipping which would hopefully lead to more prosecutions.  The use of Smart 

Water, cameras and sorting through rubbish all aided evidence collection.  The Head of 

Environmental and Operational Services reported that robust evidence was often difficult 

to find, these were very often professional criminals and vehicles used were not always 

registered with the DVLA. Many members of the public were not aware that that they 

were under a duty of care and if employing anyone to take waste  away from their home 

should check they had a waste carrier registration number.  He further advised that it 

now cost £90-100 per tonne to legitimately dispose of waste.  KCC had just carried out a 

full review of recycling centres and would be introducing some relaxations such as height 

restrictions whilst endeavouring to discourage trade using domestic sites. 

 

Action 2:  The Head of Environmental and Operational Services to liaise with KCC 

and a report to come back for consideration in May 2013 on the impact of the 

KCC review of household recycling centres. 

 

A Local Parish Councillor was allowed to address the Committee and reiterated that 

perception certainly did not marry with all the work that was obviously undertaken and 

was pleased with the information provided. 

 

Resolved:  That the report be noted. 

 

14. BOLD STEPS FOR AVIATION - KCC DISCUSSION DOCUMENT (MAY 2012)  

 

The Committee considered the report of a discussion document released by KCC called 

'Bold Steps for Aviation' which  included numerous proposals including that a Thames 

Estuary hub airport was not progressed and that airport capacity was increased by a 

second runway at Gatwick after 2019, and supported by a high speed rail link to 

Agenda Item 1

Page 2



Environment Select Committee - 4 September 2012 

7 

 

Heathrow.  The Portfolio Holder for Planning and Improvement had commented on the 

document suggesting that KCC should not identify capacity expansion at Gatwick as its 

preferred option prior to the social, environmental and economic impacts of all options 

being considered fully.  KCC had replied that they would take the comments into account 

in drafting its final Bold Steps for Aviation document.  It was understood that the 

Government was planning to publish a consultation document in the Autumn on options 

for expanding airport capacity and was currently consulting on a Draft Aviation 

Framework document. This paper had been published in advance of the consultation on 

airport options and appeared to have been drafted primarily to counter proposals from 

the Mayor of London that a Thames Estuary airport should be considered as a realistic 

option.   

 

Resolved:  That the report be noted. 

 

15. LOCAL LISTING UPDATE  

 

The Development Control Team Manager introduced the report which reviewed the 

feasibility of producing a List of Locally Listed Buildings.  One of the Members who had 

not been able to attend the meeting had forwarded and email which he read to the 

Committee which appreciated the cost implications of completing the survey but noted 

that a fair amount of work had already been done and suggested that the district be 

approached in sections and offer work experience to those in the process of qualifying or 

newly qualified in planning or conservation, to complete this section of the work.  He 

responded to these points by stating that there were still cost and staff time implications 

and was not hopeful for the calibre that would be required.   

 

Resolved:  That the report be noted. 

 

16. EDENBRIDGE CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN  

 

The report sought Members support for a new Conservation Area Appraisal and 

Management Plan for Edenbridge. The new plan had been prepared to meet local Best 

Value performance requirements and as part of background work which would contribute 

to the Local Development Framework (LDF). 

 

Resolved:  That the Edenbridge draft Conservation Area Appraisal and 

Management Plan, attached as Appendix  B (Appraisal & Management Plan) to 

the report, be RECOMMENDED to Cabinet for adoption as informal planning 

guidance. 

 

17. ALLOCATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT 

(ADM DPD)  

 

The Principal Planning Officer presented the report which provided an update on the 

Allocations and Development Management Plan (ADMP) which had been revised in light 

of the principles and policies set out in the Government’s new National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF, March 2012).   Comments received on the supplementary site 

allocations consultations, together with the Council’s response to the comments and any 

further necessary action was also reported.  

Members also considered the Green Belt Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

which provided additional interpretation of the Green Belt policies set out in the 

Agenda Item 1

Page 3



Environment Select Committee - 4 September 2012 

8 

 

Allocations and Development Management Plan.  The report was also to be considered 

by Local Development Finance Advisory Group on 3 October, Cabinet on 11 October 

before Full Council on 16 October 2012.   

 

A Member was very concerned that a member of the public had had access to 

information contained within the report concerning Broom Hill Swanley, prior to its 

publication and therefore prior to Members.  The Principal Planning Officer explained how 

this had happened and apologised.  This would be fed back to the Team to ensure it did 

not happen again.  The Member asked whether the residential development on the site 

was seen as enabling the employment development.  The Principal Planning Officer 

explained that officers did not consider this to be the case.  It was also explained that the 

landowner of the area previously proposed for residential development had not been told 

that they could not submit a planning application.   

 

The Member was concerned by the site capacity for United House Swanley being 

increased and changed to purely residential use.  The Principal Planning Officer 

explained that this had been proposed following evidence provided by the landowner to 

suggest that an employment development on the site is unlikely to be attractive to 

developers or occupiers after the existing occupiers move off of the site.  This evidence 

had not been made available to the committee.  The Principal Planning Officer said that 

he would speak to the Planning Policy Team Leader to see if this information could be 

made available.  The reporting process was reiterated to highlight further available 

channels to consider and amend the report.   

 

It was moved by Cllr. Searles and duly seconded that the Site Allocation – United House 

Swanley, revert back to the previous proposal of approximately 115 residential units and 

mixed use to ensure that some land was retained for employment use. 

 

The motion was put to the vote and there voted –  

  

4 votes in favour of the motion 

 

 4 votes against the motion 

 

5 abstentions. 

 

The Chairman exercised his second vote against the motion, and declared the motion to 

be LOST. 

 

Resolved:  That the revised Allocations and Development Management Plan be 

noted and supported and that the Plan be RECOMMENDED to Cabinet and Full 

Council for pre-submission publication. 

 

 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT  8.52 pm 

 

  

Chairman 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 4



  

ACTIONS FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 4 SEPTEMBER 2012 

Action Description Status and last updated 10.10.12 Contact Officer 

ACTION 1 For future reports an extra column to be 

included to show the number of reported 

incidents that were on private land 

This will be done. Richard Wilson 

ACTION 2 The Head of Environmental and Operational 

Services to liaise with KCC and a report to come 

back for consideration in May 2013 on the 

impact of the KCC review of household 

recycling centres. 

Have alerted KCC waste management to 

this request. 

Richard Wilson 

 

A
genda Item

 4

P
age 5



P
age 6

T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Environment Select Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

Topic 23 October 2012 15 January 2013 19 March 2013 May 2013 September 2013 

Planning Policy 

(Alan Dyer) 

Village Design 

Statements 

 

Final Draft 

Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

Gypsies and 

Travellers Plan 

   

Development 

Control (Alan 

Dyer) 

     

Building 

Control 

(Richard 

Wilson) 

     

Street Scene & 

Air Quality 

(Richard 

Wilson) 

     

Transport 

(including 

parking) 

(Richard 

Wilson) 

Railways and Trains 

(Southern and South-

Eastern operators) 

Bus Companies    

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 7



  

Topic 23 October 2012 15 January 2013 19 March 2013 May 2013 September 2013 

Economic 

Development 

and Tourism 

(Lesley Bowles) 

     

Budget (Adrian 

Rowbotham) 

Budget and Service 

Plans 

    

Other      

Possible items to be considered in the future (for items not yet timetabled in): 

• Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans (ad hoc items) 

 

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 8



 

Adoption of Seal and Underriver Village Design Statements and Otford Parish Plan as 

Supplementary Planning Documents and the Approval of Neighbourhood Plan Areas 

for Shoreham and Edenbridge and Ash - cum - Ridley  

Environment Select Committee   23rd  October 2012  

Report of the: Community and Planning Director  

Status: For consideration 

Also considered by: N/A 

Key Decision: No  

This report supports all the Key Aims of the Community Plan 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Mrs Jill Davison  

Head of Service Alan Dyer  

Recommendation to Environment Select Committee   

(a) That subject to the changes proposed and minor amendments to the 

documents, Portfolio Holder approval is sought for the adoption of Seal and 

Underriver Village Design Statements and Otford Parish Plan Supplementary 

Planning Documents. 

(b) That Portfolio Holder approval is sought for the designation of Neighbourhood 

Plan Areas for Shoreham and Edenbridge and Ash- cum Ridley.   

Reason for recommendation: a) To allow the guidance given in these documents to be 

given appropriate weight as a material consideration in the determination of planning 

applications.  

b) To allow for the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans in accordance with Government 

guidance. 

Supplementary Planning Documents 

Background  

1 A Village Design Statement [VDS] is a practical document produced by local 

people, which can influence decisions on design and development.  Once adopted 

as Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD), a VDS can provide a clear 

statement of the character of a village against which planning applications should 

be assessed and guidance about how development should be undertaken so as to 

respect the local identity.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



 

2 Parish plans are community-led and they identify local issues, needs and 

aspirations.  They are comprehensive documents, supported by extensive 

consultation, covering a variety of issues that affect the well-being of a community.  

These issues include highways and transport, housing needs, the environment and 

climate change, access to information and services, provision for young people, 

crime and safety and employment. Once adopted as SPD, it becomes a material 

consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

Proposed SPD 

3 Local groups have prepared VDS’s for Seal and Underriver and the Otford Parish 

Plan.  It is now proposed that these documents be adopted as SPD.   As required 

by the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 

2004 (as amended) Consultation Statements have been prepared for each 

document. These are attached in Appendix A. 

4 SPDs must be consistent with the relevant Development Plan before they can be 

adopted.  The documents have been reviewed to ensure they are consistent and 

Officers are satisfied that in each case the necessary consistency exists. 

5 The statements illustrate that the proper procedures have been followed in the 

preparation of these documents. Therefore it is recommended that subject to the 

changes proposed and any subsequent minor amendments, the Portfolio Holder 

approve them to be adopted as SPD.   

Neighbourhood Plan Areas 

6 Members will be aware that under the provisions of The Localism Act a town or 

parish council can prepare a Neighbourhood Plan. One of the first steps is to apply 

to the District Council to designate an area for their neighbourhood plan. The 

District Council must then go out to public consultation for 6 weeks and invite 

representations. In order for the area to be appropriate they should be coherent, 

consistent and appropriate in planning terms. The Act states that unless there are 

valid planning reasons for refusal the LPA should designate proposed 

neighbourhood plan areas. 

7 Shoreham and Edenbridge and Ash-cum-Ridley, Town/Parish Councils, have 

submitted areas for consideration each of which covers the whole council area.. 

Consultation Statements have been prepared for each area. These are attached in 

Appendix A and illustrates that the proper procedures have been followed.  The 

justification for the proposed areas has been assessed and has been considered 

sound and it is recommended that the proposed neighbourhood plan areas should 

be designated. 

8 Therefore it is recommended that Portfolio Holder approval is sought for the 

designation of Neighbourhood Plan Areas for Shoreham and Edenbridge and New 

Ash Green and that in accordance with The Neighbourhood Planning (General) 

Regulations 2012 (7) publish as soon as possible after designation, the following : 

 

• the name of the neighbourhood area, 

• a map which identifies the area, and  

• the name of the relevant body who applied for the designation. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 10



 

 

Key Implications 

Financial 

Any cost will be met out of the existing budget and DCLG funding for local planning 

authorities to support neighbourhood planning will applied for in due course. 

Legal, Human Rights etc.  

The SPD and Neighbourhood Plans are prepared under planning legislation. The 
regulations regarding notification of adoption/approval of these documents will be 
followed. 

Equalities 

The SPDs provide guidance consistent with the policies in the Core Strategy which 
has been subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment.  The designation of 
Neighbourhood Plan Areas following existing parish boundaries is an administrative 
process that in itself has no equalities implications. 

Appendices Appendix A  Consultation Statements 

Appendix B  Seal Village Design Statement 

Appendix C  Underriver Village Design Statement 

Appendix D  Otford Parish Plan 

Contact Officer(s):                             Sarah Lloyd   ext 7358 

Kristen Paterson, Director of Community and Planning Services 

.  

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Sevenoaks District Council 

 

Seal and Underriver Village Design Statements Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD) 

 

Consultation Statement 

 

Introduction 

In accordance with the relevant Planning Regulations, the Authority is required to prepare 

a statement providing details of the consultation undertaken during the preparation of 

the Supplementary Planning Document; a summary of the main issues raised; and how 

they have been addressed in the final version of the document. This paper fulfils this 

requirement and sets out the public participation in the preparation of the document 

(Regulation 17 (1) (b)) and then the statutory public consultation undertaken on the draft 

Supplementary Planning Document (Regulation 18).  

Once adopted, both the Seal and Underriver Village Design Statements SPD will form part 

of the Sevenoaks District Local Development Framework.  It will not form part of the 

formal development plan for the area but will be a material consideration in the 

determination of planning applications.   

Approach to consultation 

Sevenoaks District Council considers that when preparing SPDs it is appropriate to 

inform, consult and seek the participation of organisations and/or individuals in order to 

ensure that the documents more closely reflect local needs and priorities. 

The Council undertook a 6 week formal consultation on the Seal and Underriver Village 

Design Statements between 28th Jun 2012 and 9th Aug 2012.   

As part of this consultation, the Council: 

• Published the Seal and Underriver Village Design Statements on the Sevenoaks 

District Council website and through the Council’s consultation system; 

• Made the draft SPD available for inspection at the Council’s offices and libraries 

in the Council’s administrative area during normal office hours; 

• Invited persons and organisations on the Council’s LDF mailing list and those 

registered on the Council’s consultation database, to make representations 

during the consultation period.  

Public Participation in the Preparation of the VDS 

Underriver VDS   Consultation and involvement of residents was undertaken locally by 

Seal Parish Council.   In 2004 a committee of local people prepared The Underriver 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



Village Design Statement, this edition has been revised by Seal Parish Council to reflect 

the views of local people from study for the Seal Parish Plan Questionnaire 2010.  In 

order to allow VDS to be incorporation into the Sevenoaks District Local Development 

Framework, it has been through a full consultation process prior to publication. 

Seal VDS    Consultation and involvement of residents was undertaken locally by Seal 

Parish Council.   This Village Design Statement is an update of that produced in 2004. 

This Statement is the product of a lot of discussion within the local community. The 

original statement started with a questionnaire distributed to all the residents with the 

local newsletter. That was followed by a public meeting in the Village Hall. After 

redrafting, it was then approved by the Parish Council on 13 March 2003 and sent to the 

Sevenoaks District Council for further statutory consultation. This update follows a 

further questionnaire distributed to all the residents of Seal in September 2010. It 

reflects changes in planning guidance and the environment as well as the views of 

residents of Seal as expressed in their responses to a questionnaire in September 2010. 

 

Sustainability Appraisal 

A Sustainability Appraisal for the Village Design Statements was not been undertaken as 

Sec.180 (5)(d) Planning Act 2008 removed the compulsory requirement for a 

Sustainability Appraisal for a Supplementary Planning Document.  

Comments 

Underriver VDS  

The Parish Council has put forward the following changes in response to the points 

raised.   

1. Environment Agency (Jennifer Wilson): 

Inserted new recommendation stating  

"Any application for development must be accompanied by an adequate proposal to deal 

with the treatment of sewage and contaminated water to prevent land contamination." 

 

2. Kent Wildlife Trust (Miss Debbie Salmon) 

Additional recommendation stating: 

Any impacts by development on the important designated sites and ancient woodland 

within the area are to be fully mitigated. The replacement of dead and dying trees should 

be avoided, unless they are a health and safety risk. Dead and dying wood provides 

important habitat for bat species and the special invertebrates found within ancient 

woodland habitats.  

 

3. Kent County Council (Ms Liz Shier) 

Revised recommendation R3 to accommodate suggested wording. 

Additional clause stating ‘The historic pattern of roads, tracks, field boundaries and 

hedgerows that gives the modern landscape its character should be protected during 

development. Where possible, historic features should be enhanced and promoted as 

key components of the local environment’.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 14



4. Natural England (John Lister) 

Additional clause stating: 

“The Sevenoaks Landscape Character Assessment (LCA), provides a context for looking 

at possible changes and for seeking to ensure that countryside character is protected 

and enhanced, and where possible, opportunities are taken to create new and to protect 

and enhance existing habitats, wildlife corridors and stepping stones. An understanding 

of LCA will also help to ensure that planting outside settlements is in harmony with the 

character of the countryside” 

 

Seal VDS  

The comments made by Kent County Council, The EA and Natural England were also 

made on the Seal VDS.     

Sevenoaks District Council Comments  

All the comments raised were in support of the documents and were purely concerned 

with making points/amendments designed to strengthen the documents. The 

amendments proposed by KCC and Natural England were proposed for both documents 

and it is considered that they should be included in Seal VDS.  

   

Given this situation the amendments proposed by the Parish Council are considered 

appropriate.  It is considered that subject to the changes proposed above and to any 

other minor amendments, the VDS for Seal and Underriver be recommended for 

adoption as SPD.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Sevenoaks District Council 

 

Otford Parish Plan Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

 

Consultation Statement 

Introduction 

In accordance with the relevant Planning Regulations, the Authority is required to prepare 

a statement providing details of the consultation undertaken during the preparation of 

the Supplementary Planning Document; a summary of the main issues raised; and how 

they have been addressed in the final version of the document. This paper fulfils this 

requirement and sets out the public participation in the preparation of the document 

Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004 (as 

amended (Regulation 17 (1) (b)) and then the statutory public consultation undertaken 

on the draft Supplementary Planning Document (Regulation 18).  

Once adopted, the Parish Plan will form part of the Sevenoaks District Local 

Development Framework.  It will not form part of the formal development plan for the 

area but will be a material consideration in the determination of planning applications.   

Approach to consultation 

Sevenoaks District Council considers that when preparing SPDs it is appropriate to 

inform, consult and seek the participation of organisations and/or individuals in order to 

ensure that the documents more closely reflect local needs and priorities. 

The Council undertook a 6 week formal consultation on the Otford Parish Plan from 28th 

Jun 2012 and 9th Aug 2012.   

As part of this consultation, the Council: 

• Published the Parish Plan on the SDC website and through the Council’s 

consultation system; 

• Made the draft SPD available for inspection at the Council’s offices and libraries 

in the Council’s administrative area during normal office hours; 

• Invited persons and organisations on the Council’s LDF mailing list and those 

registered on the Council’s consultation database, to make representations 

during the consultation period.  

Public Participation in the Preparation of the Parish Plan  

“The Otford Parish Plan is the result of extensive consultation, including a questionnaire 

returned by almost half of households. It draws heavily on the questionnaire results, in 

terms of both statistics and written comments. The process we went through to involve 

local people and create the Plan is set out in more detail in the Appendices.  It is 

consistent with the Local development Framework Core Strategy  

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



The whole process and the creation of the Plan documents have been undertaken by 

groups of local people drawn from all parts of the Parish. The Parish Council has been 

involved throughout and has given its support to the Plan”.  

 

Sustainability Appraisal 

A Sustainability Appraisal for the Parish Plan was not been undertaken as Sec.180 (5)(d) 

Planning Act 2008 removed the compulsory requirement for a Sustainability Appraisal for 

a Supplementary Planning Document.  

Comments 

Comments were received from  

Environmental Agency (Jennifer Wilson) 

Should identify the River Darent as an "area of value for biodiversity", Section 6. 

 

Kent County Council (Paul Crick) 

Should fully consider how Otford fits into the local landscape and acknowledge the role 

that the landscape has played, and still plays, in the village (although it is possible that 

this is more fully considered in the Village Design Statement). 

There are also numerous buildings of local interest these should be identified  

 

Kent Wildlife Trust (Miss Debbie Salmon) 

Safeguards should be included within the plan to protect the important natural habitats 

and species and enhance their nature conservation importance  

 

Natural England (John Lister) 

Future reviews could consider how the community could support biodiversity through 

local action to protect and enhance habitats in and around the settlement, including 

gardens, allotments, churchyards, playing fields and other open spaces 

 

Sevenoaks Cycle Forum (Reg Oakley) 

Supports the acknowledgement of the absence of any designated safe cycle routes 

through the village. Suggests the implementation of 20MPH limits  

 

These responses are in support of the documents while making points designed to 

strengthen some of the document or suggested amendments to clarify the text. 

 

Response  

Otford parish Council have noted the comments and the relevant ones will be 

incorporated in the next version. It should be noted that the majority of the comments 

are addressed in the village design statement which is currently being updated. 

Sevenoaks District Council considers that the Parish Council can appropriately address  

these comments through minor amendments to the plan and through the updating of the 

VDS. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 18



Sevenoaks District Council 

 

Proposed Neighbourhood Plan Areas Consultation Statement 

 

Introduction 

This document provides a record of the publication that took place regarding the Ash-

cum-Ridley, Edenbridge and Shoreham Proposed Neighbourhood Plan areas and related 

Neighbourhood Planning bodies. The formal publication period provides members of the 

public and other key stakeholders an opportunity to submit comments on the proposed 

neighbourhood plan area and proposed neighbourhood planning body  

It sets out the methods used to publicise the publication process along with the main 

findings from the publication. As this was only a publication process, the response rate 

was not expected to be high.  

The Council publicised the Ash-cum-Ridley, Edenbridge and Shoreham Proposed 

Neighbourhood Plan Areas for 6 weeks from 28th Jun 2012 and 9th Aug 2012.   

This consultation included the following information submitted by the Parish/Town 

Councils  

1. a map identifying the area to be covered;  

2. a statement explaining why the area is appropriate to be designated as a 

neighbourhood area  and  

3. a statement that the organisation making the application is a relevant body  

 

The Council also published  

The name of the proposed neighbourhood area 

Details of how to respond to the publicity and make representations 

The deadline for the receipt of those responses and representations,  

 

This information was published on the Sevenoaks District Council website and through 

the Council’s on line consultation system, together with posters on local parish/town 

Council noticeboards; 

 

Comments 

 

Comments were received from the following  

Ash-cum-Ridley 

• Environment Agency (Observations)  

• Kent Wildlife Trust) (Observations)  

 

Shoreham  

• Crockenhill Parish Council (Observations) 

• E Dallimore 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



• Kent Wildlife Trust (Observations )  

• Environment Agency  (Observations) 

 

Edenbridge 

• Cooper Estates Ltd C/O Phillips Planning Services (Paul Watson) 

• Kent Wildlife Trust (Observations ) 

• Tandridge District Council (Support) 

• Environment Agency (Observations) 

 

Summary of objections received and responses  

 

Ash-cum-Ridley  no objections were received to the proposed area. 

 

Shoreham   an objection was raised and a case was put forward for the designation of 3 

areas to reflect the differences in the character of each which are unique to the rest of 

the Parish. In addition as the three wards have applied to split from each other under the 

Community Governance Review so then each Ward would have its own Neighbourhood 

Plan should the wards be granted independence from each other.    

 

The District Council does not support this proposal.  Guidance indicates that in parished 

areas the Parish Council is the relevant body to prepare the plan. The area designation 

sets out the area for which the parish council are proposing to prepare a neighbourhood 

plan – which is the current parish boundary. If the parish boundary subsequently 

changes, so will the neighbourhood area boundary. 

 

It would be premature to amend the boundary of the neighbourhood area at the moment 

as the parish boundary review won’t be determined/published until 

September/November 2012, and won’t take effect until the next Parish elections in May 

2015. However, since the neighbourhood area application refers to the parish boundary, 

if this changes during the preparation of the neighbourhood plan, it will be acceptable for 

the plan to cover the amended area. 

 

The District Council would advise that the 3 areas investigate the preparation separate 

chapters within the plan which could cover the 3 areas identified and respond to the 

unique character of these areas within the Parish.  

 

Edenbridge   An objection was raised this requested further details to be provided 

regarding why the proposed boundaries where chosen. 

 

The Parish Council has responded to this as follows: 

The Council considered two geographical areas, the local government wards and the 

tourist area defined as the Eden Valley. The town of Edenbridge (including Marlpit Hill, 

Mowshurst and Marsh Green) has a distinct sub-urban character compared with the 

much more rural character of the remainder of the Eden Valley hinterland. The rural 

Agenda Item 7

Page 20



areas have traditionally been served by other local government entities (Hever & Four 

Elms, Cowden, Chiddingstone, Penshurst, and Westerham). Thus the ward boundaries 

were considered the most appropriate neighbourhood boundary.  

The District Council supports the view of the Town Council and the use of the ward areas 

as the most appropriate area for the Neighbourhood Plan. 

Further in response to the interest raised by other organisations, the Town Council states 

that During the development of the plan ETC would be engaging and consulting widely 

within the community and with a range of interested parties, including Kent Wildlife Trust 

and adjoining councils, to produce a robust plan for the development and growth of the 

local area”. 

The District Council also supports the Town Council’s intention to consult widely which as 

stated will ensure the robustness of the Plan. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

SEAL 

VILLAGE DESIGN 

STATEMENT 

 

TOWARDS 

THE FUTURE 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



 2

 

SEAL VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT 

 
Contents 

 
          Page 
 

Map of Seal Parish Ward     3 
Foreword        4 

 
1. Shape of the village     5 
2. The village centre     6 
3. Transport       7 
4. Community Facilities    9 

5. Historic Buildings      9 
6. The Northern end of the village  10 
7. The Wildernesse Estate     11 
8. Godden Green      11 
9. The surrounding countryside   12 

10. Future Changes     13 
11. Design       14 

 
Appendix        16 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 24



 3

Map 1: Seal Parish Ward 
  
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



 4

This Village Design Statement is an update of that produced in 2004 at the request of Seal 

Parish Council. This update reflects changes in planning guidance and the environment as well 
as the views of residents of Seal as expressed in their responses to a questionnaire in 

September 2010. This Statement covers Seal Ward - that is, the centre of the village, the 

housing areas along Childsbridge Lane to the north, and the surrounding countryside west as 
far as the Sevenoaks boundary one way, and east towards Seal Chart the other way. To the 

south it covers the eastern end of the Wildernesse Estate, and the separate hamlet of Godden 

Green. 

 

Village Design Statements (VDSs) are intended to give local people a chance to say how they 

want their communities to look in the future. They have to be prepared in conformity with the 

Core Strategy of the Local Development Framework (in our case, the Sevenoaks District Core 

Strategy, adopted by the SDC in February 2011). Their purpose is to elaborate those plans in 
the detail required for local application. Once agreed by the local residents and endorsed by 

the Parish and the District Councils, they have the legal status of Supplementary Planning 
Guidance. That means the District Council has to take them into account 

in deciding on future Planning Application  

 
This document has been prepared in conformity with the District Council's Core Strategy.  

Policy SP1 of the Core Strategy states that: 
  

"All new development should be designed to a high quality and should respond to the 

distinctive local character of the area in which it is situated.  Account should be taken of 
guidance adopted by the Council in the form of Kent Design, local Character Area 

Assessments, Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans, Village Design Statements 

and Parish Plans.  In rural areas account should be taken of guidance in the Countryside 
Assessment and guidance produced by the AONBs..." 

  

 

The delivery mechanisms for the policy include: 

  
The Council will work with local communities to produce Village Design Statements, Parish 

Plans and Character Area Assessments to be adopted as Supplementary Planning 
Documents to provide detailed locally-specific guidance to support the general policy." 

  

This Village Design Statement for Seal is intended to fulfil the role identified for Village Design 

Statements in Policy SP1 in providing detailed locally-specific guidance on the design of new 

development. 

 

The approach to the design and appearance of the village depends on the way the village has 

evolved and the way it works today. So this paper contains a good deal of general background 
and some related proposals before setting out some detailed suggestions about Design in 

Section 11. These are cross-referenced (R1, R2 etc) in the main body of the text. 

 

This Statement is the product of a lot of discussion within the local community. The original 

statement of 2004 started with a questionnaire distributed to all the residents with the local 

newsletter. That was followed by a public meeting in the Village Hall. After redrafting, it was 

then approved by the Parish Council on 13 March 2003 and sent to the Sevenoaks District 

Council for further statutory consultation. This update follows a further questionnaire 
distributed to all the residents of Seal in September 2010. 

 

December 2011 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 26



 5

 

In preparing this document, recognition has been made of the responses by people from the 
Seal Ward to the Seal Parish Plan Questionnaire 2010, in particular the following:  

 

 
22% of Seal respondents have looked at the Seal Village Design Statement. However 

the policies of the VDS were reproduced in the questionnaire, and 63% felt that it was a 

useful document to ensure that development is carried out in a way that local people 

would wish.  

 
86% think the Parish Council should consult with the Local Planning Authority to agree 

a policy to provide effective control of replacement dwelling in the area in the Village 

Design Statements.  
 

84% think planning rules should be used to protect local pubs and shops from closure 

and conversion to housing if at all possible.  

 

71% think the Parish Council should seek consultation with the local authority to 
improve facilities for cyclists to ensure their safety on the roads.  

 
95% think the Parish Council seek to ensure that the extension of Sevenoaks Quarry in 

the direction of Seal does not cause material harm to residents of Seal.  

 
 

In conjunction with the Seal Parish Plan Questionnaire, an Affordable Housing Survey was 

undertaken, the result of which determine that there is a need for affordable housing in the 
Parish of Seal, for local people.  

 

 

 
1. The Shape of The Village Seal is a very old village, standing at the edge of the greensand 

ridge above the Holmesdale valley. Originally an agricultural centre, it is now largely commuter 

settlement, but it has retained its rural look and its separate identity. The village was originally 
built out of local materials, mainly ragstone, with a bit of flint from the other side of the valley, 

or local timber (oak and chestnut, mainly), and with locally-made bricks and tiles, whose warm 

colours now give the village its typical Kentish character. It grew naturally out of the 
landscape. 

 

1.2 The village lies at the northern end of the present civil parish. The very fine church stands 

at the top of the little rise above the valley, and the village grew up just south and west of the 

church, originally around a village green of which only two fragments remain. The villagers are 

open space in the centre of the village. It is bisected by an ancient road, now the A25, which 
still carries very heavy traffic despite construction of the M26 just north of the village. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



 6

 

1.3 This motorway, together with the railway line and the flood-meadows along the ancient 

Guzzle Brook, all running east-west, mark the northern edge of the village and still provide a 

natural break between Seal and Kemsing. It is essential to retain this barrier, because modern 

housing, mostly post-1945, has crept for over half a mile along Childsbridge Lane to the north 
of the village, and this is where a large part of its population now live. To the west, there is 

only the narrowest of gaps between Seal and Sevenoaks. The Sevenoaks Local Development 
Framework  recognises that this break must be maintained. To the 

south lie the grounds of Wildernesse House, now covered by the Wildernesse Estate, and by 

the golf course. Together, these provide a very clear natural barrier. To the east, where the 

main road climbs steeply out of the village up to Seal Chart, the barrier is maintained by the 

gardens of a few big houses, well-concealed from the road, and by the common land further 

along the Chart. 

 

1.4 The whole area (apart from the built-up part of the village) lies within the Metropolitan 
Green Belt. A large part of it (excluding the built-up area of the village and some land to the 

North and West of the village) is within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The historic 

centre of the village is a Conservation Area. The map on page 3 shows the extent of the areas 
designated as Metropolitan Green Belt, Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Conservation 

Area. 

 

1.5 So Seal is a well-defined separate village, with a typical Kentish character, within clear 

natural boundaries, and surrounded on three sides by agricultural or wooded land. It is very 

clear from our consultation exercise that the residents want to keep it that way. 

 

                

2. The Village Centre 

The original village centre provided services for the local farmers, for the people who worked 

on the farms and/or their families. As recently as thirty years ago, there were five shops in the 
centre of the village. Now there are only two non-specialist shops. This means that most 

shopping has to be done outside the village, with serious implications for transport (see 

Section 3). While many residents would like more local shops, recent experience suggests that 
these would not be economically viable. At the time of writing only one of the original five pubs 

is trading. There are also two restaurants and a fast-food outlet all of which seem to thrive. 

There are at least twenty-five small businesses based in and around the village centre, ranging 

alphabetically from accountancy to welding. Some of these businesses serve a mainly-local 

clientele, and there are clearly limits to the size of the local market for these. Others, often 
established by local people, use Seal as convenient base, within reach of London, from which 

to serve a wider public, and in principle could expand further. All these generate local 

employment, but the majority of the working population of Seal has to travel to work outside 
the village. 

 

 

 

Seal 

Village 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 28



 7

 

2.2 There does not seem much scope for further expansion of this local economy. The Local 

Development Framework makes no allocation of large sites for business development here (or 

elsewhere in Seal parish). It does provide for small-scale development or conversion of sites, 

subject to fairly rigorous tests, and provided no housing is lost in the process. In any case, 
there seems little commercial demand for this and although more local employment might be 

welcome, the local population is strongly against it, mainly because it would add to the parking 
and congestion problem in the centre of the village. (R2) 

 

2.3 Some change, however, is inevitable and right. The village cannot be frozen just at this 
point in its thousand-year development. But the residents are very anxious to keep its 

character. In particular, they want to preserve the village centre in something like its present 

form. Fortunately, the High Street, and the older parts immediately to the north and south are 
protected as a Conservation Area, and any changes to these buildings for commercial reasons 

(whether in structure or in appearance) are severely limited by the District Plan. Some detailed 
implications for design are set out in Section 11 (especially R4, R7, R8).  

 

                                            
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Transport 

In the recent parish questionnaire, speeding traffic and the quality of the road environment 
were ranked first and second respectively in order of priority among a list of 13 possible 

options.  Traffic affects the total appearance of Seal and the design of individual buildings. 

Traffic through the High Street, particularly in the rush hours (both business and school) has 
clearly reached saturation point. It is now an urgent safety and health issue because of the 

high level of pollution, as well as a visual and noise problem for residents. The solutions are 

largely outside the control of the village community. A bypass for Seal itself is not on that 

agenda, and does not feature in any official plans. Top of the list of other suggestions comes 

the need for eastward-facing slip roads off the motorway at Chipstead or at Otford Road, a 
proposal which is supported by 90% of residents of Seal according to the questionnaire. 

Although outside our own boundaries, this would clearly have the biggest impact. It is fair to 

say that there needs to be a study into what impact new slip roads would have and to assess 
whether they would be value for money, so the priority for the Parish Council at this point 

should be to lobby for such a study to be undertaken. 

However, even with new slip roads the problem of congestion would remain; much of the 

through traffic using the High Street originates within a few miles of Seal, and the heavy traffic 

to and from the west end of Kemsing adds a turning problem at the junctions with School Lane 

and Church Street. On the main road, solutions might include more speed cameras or a Speed 

Indicating Device (SID), restriction on road works at peak periods, and stricter enforcement of 
speed limits and parking restrictions; more islands or other traffic calming devices; and 

different surfaces to indicate the residential nature of the street.  

 

 

 

 

 

Traffic on Seal High Street 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



 8

 

On the very narrow side streets, especially School Lane and Church Road, where accidents are 

already a problem, pavements are lacking, and the threat to pedestrians is very real. Here, 

even lower speed limits, backed up by more traffic management devices, including sleeping 

lines like those in School Lane, and rumble strips, need study. Because of 
the lack of alternative routes, pedestrianisation is clearly not an option, although some 

restrictions on the use of Zion Street, Pudding Lane and Church Road are worth considering. 
As pointed out by a number of respondents to our questionnaire, the proliferation of signs and 

street furniture can be visually intrusive. It is important that improved traffic systems do not 

detract from the buildings or the countryside around them. (R15) 

 

3.2 Parking is anothe

local residents need some parking space. There is very little room for any more. More daytime 
use can and should be made of the small parking area on the edge of the Recreation Ground 

(and signs might be erected to show visitors where it is). Parked cars seriously diminish the 
attractiveness of the centre of the village (e.g. Church Road) but at present there is nowhere 

else for them to go. 

                         

                                

 

3.3 Can the demand for cars be reduced by better public transport? Because most residents 

work and shop outside the village, and all the older children go to school elsewhere, there is 

heavy use of private cars. In the 2001 census, 847 families, out of 984 in the parish of Seal, 

owned at least one car, and 165 had three cars or more. Two points emerged strongly from 
the current consultation. One is that the existing bus service, while much better than in many 

surrounding villages, could be made more convenient without much extra cost. Better-timed 
connections with the trains, extending into the evening rush, might tempt some London 

commuters to leave their cars at home, particularly since parking near Sevenoaks and Otford 

stations is now so full. (Although a railway line runs right across the northern edge of the 

village, there seems little prospect of an additional station at Childsbridge Lane.) Buses to the 

edge-of-town shopping centres at Riverhead (Tescos) or Otford Road (Sainsburys, etc.) would 

suit many shoppers and some of the staff there, (as well as serving a social need for older or 
disabled residents without their own cars). Changes in the school bus system, while more 

expensive, are also an option which needs study. So does car pooling among parents. Such a 
study needs to extend beyond Seal itself, because of the heavy school traffic from Kemsing, 

and to the Prep School in Godden Green, which adds to the congestion in Seal village. The 

Prep School creates particular difficulty on Park Lane, a narrow country lane through Godden 
Green, at drop-off and pick-up times, a point which was raised by a number of respondents to 

the questionnaire. 

 

3.4 It is clear that the traffic problem has serious implications for the appearance of the village 

and for the design of individual buildings and the land around them. 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 30



 9

                                       

 

4. Community Facilities 

While Seal has more community services than some other local centres, the loss of the Post 

Office in 2009 was regretted by many respondents to the questionnaire. The church still 

provides an important focus for village life. The village hall and the church hall, with the 
Memorial Pavilion on the Recreation Ground, the school hall, and the old scout hut, between 

them provide space for a very wide range of village activities, both formal societies and 

informal groups. The pub and restaurants already described are another essential resource. 
Outdoors, the allotments (managed by a local group of trustees) and the Recreation Ground 

(maintained by the Parish Council) cover most needs, and provide an important addition to the 
open spaces; the shortage here is of people to run the clubs and youth groups, not of space. 

Walkers and horse riders are well catered for, and the majority of residents are content with 

what is already available. But it is important to safeguard all the existing rights of way. In 
general, community facilities do not present serious design problems for Seal. 

5. Historic Buildings and the Centre of the Village 

(and about another 20 in the rest of Seal Ward). Apart from the church (reclassified as Grade I 

early in 2002), which is basically a thirteenth-century building with later additions, there are 
no specially-distinguished buildings here of great architectural merit  they are all Grade II in 

the government lists. Some are very old: there are two Kentish Hall Houses: the Kentish 

Yeoman and 31 High Street  discoveries suggest that the 

Crown also contains some very old timbers in the roof and an ancient fireplace. Forge Cottage 

in Church Road, with a splendid vaulted cellar beneath it, is about fifteenth century. The rest 
are mainly eighteenth or early nineteenth century. But individually and perhaps more 

importantly in groups, they are what people remember about Seal. 

                                      

5.2 In addition to the officially-listed buildings, there are several others within the centre of the 

village which need to be protected, both individually and as groups. That is why the residents 

think the Conservation Area is so important. The village contains a number of attractive 
buildings, mostly of the eighteenth or early nineteenth centuries - the original Wildernesse 

House; its stables; the Grey House; Lychgate House (the former vicarage, with rare white 

 and several others. There are also 
many attractive smaller houses, especially the white-painted or tile-hung terraces along School 

Lane and by the green, and those put up by the owners of Wildernesse House in the late 
nineteenth century for their estate workers, - these 

white houses in Church Street. The best loved and most often mentioned building is the 
apparently ancient block at the corner of Church Street and the High Street; although this 

contains the core of a very old house, the present picturesque half-timbered facade was 

actually are built in the 1950s. But it has become so much a part of the village scene that it 

seems essential to preserve it. These structures, and the more distinguished Listed Buildings, 

contain many attractive features (illustrated inside the back cover) which collectively help to 
build up the village picture and must be carefully maintained. (R9) 

 

 

       Seal Pavilion                                 Seal Library                               Seal Village Hall 

The Grey House Lychgate House 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



 10

 

5.3 A few modern buildings have been fitted in among the older ones. The new school, hidden 

away at the end of Zambra Way, is pleasant and unobtrusive, although many regret the loss of 

the old Victorian buildings nearer the centre. The library on the corner of School Lane attempts 

to blend into the local scene while the offices which replaced the garage at the eastern end of 
the High Street are less obtrusive, and match well. The modern flats for older people, such as 

so successful attempts at fitting in. Clearly there will be 
more changes as businesses close or expand, or as families require modifications to their 

houses. But there is an overwhelming view among residents that the centre of the village 

should retain something very like its present appearance. There is a strong preference for the 

use of locally distinctive and sustainably-produced materials and styles in any new work or 

alteration within the Conservation Area. (R6) It is therefore important that building owners 

considering such changes should consult the Parish Council early, even before starting any 
formal planning application.  

5.4 The layout of the village means that there are few long views, into or out of the centre of 
the village. The most important inward views are those which focus on the impressive 

sixteenth century perpendicular Church Tower. The tower also turns up in internal views, 

notably several gaps between houses or at the corner of streets, or from the allotments. 
Looking outward, the predominant feature is the long skyline of the North Downs. It is 

essential to keep these views unspoilt. (R4) 

5.5 There is also support for some additional greenery in the centre of the village. Property 

owners might like to add to the existing and attractive window boxes and hanging baskets, or 

to sponsor a few new trees. Voluntary efforts could provide a few more features like the 
excellent horse trough flowers, or the memorial garden by the pavilion. There may be room for 

more planting, outside the Library, along the edge of the Recreation Ground (provided that 

traffic sightlines are kept clear) or on the raised bank to the east of Childsbridge Lane at its 
southern end. But it is equally important to see that the existing stock is well-maintained. 

(R12). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

6. The Northern End of the Village 

The village has expanded along Childsbridge Lane in the half-century since the war, in several 

phases. There is former Council property (some of it now managed by the West Kent Housing 
Association, and some now privately owned) at Zambra Way, Ragge Way and Wilmar Way and 

, 

Robinwood Drive and most recently at Childsbridge Farm Place. (Infrastructure problems, 

notably flooding caused by inadequate surface drainage, may be a problem). Nearly all of this 

is in a pleasant unobtrusive style, using traditional materials, which relates well to the original 
core of the village. These areas are well planted with trees, and most of the gardens are 

carefully maintained. A few discordant notes intrude - usually new windows or doors, or 
unusual colour schemes. Parked cars are sometimes visually intrusive, but these roads were 

not designed to accommodate the present levels of car ownership, and there does not seem 

much chance of improving the situation. But in general these areas are very attractive, and 
need to be kept that way. (R3, R6, R13, R17,R18) 

 

 

 

ntleys Meadow 
 

       Bentleys Meadow                            Zambra Way                        Robinwood Drive 

Agenda Item 7

Page 32



 11

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. The Wildernesse Estate 

On its southern side, Seal Ward overlaps a part of the Wildernesse Estate. This was developed 

in the 1920s, having formerly been the grounds of a mansion belonging to the third Lord 
Hillingdon. Since 1954 the original house - now known as Dorton House - has been used for 

educational purposes by the Royal London Society for the Blind. 

7.2 Designed from the outset to retain the original estate roads and much of the original 

the countryside. To this end, he encouraged a number of well-known architects to design the 
first houses on the Estate, including several representatives of the then flourishing Arts and 

Crafts Movement, notably H. M. Baillie Scott. Many of the houses are of great individual merit, 
and the importance of the area has been recognised by Sevenoaks District Council which 

extended the Conservation Area in 1998 to cover virtually the whole Estate. 

7.3 Houses on the estate are subject to significant covenants laid down by the original 
developer. The Estate has its own flourishing Residents Association. Most of the guidelines in 

Section 11 apply with particular force to Wildernesse. 

 

 

 

 

 

8. Godden Green 

8. Godden Green 

The small hamlet of Godden Green lies one mile to the south of Seal. Although it is quite 
separate from the central village, and has more in common with the hamlets of Seal Chart and 

Stone Street, it forms part of Seal Ward and is therefore dealt with here. It straddles the main 

route between Seal and Underriver with a characterful mixture of open green spaces, Kentish 

cottages and substantial residences, surrounded on all sides by Green Belt  most of which is 

designated as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

8.2 The Green itself consists of two main spaces, both triangular in nature, lying north to south 

along the road. The centre of the hamlet is significantly defined by the buildings clustered 

and adjacent pond. 

8.3 Little has changed in t

last 100 years. The hamlet is defined to the south by woodland 
Spring Wood), to the west by Knole Park and to the north by Wildernesse Golf Course. Areas of 

pasture to the east break through the woodland pattern opening up farmland and distant 
views. This gives the area its characteristic rural identity and quality as an area of great 

landscape value. 

 

 

 

en Green 
 

Dorton House 

 

Wildernesse Avenue 

 

The Bucks Head Godden Green    Godden Green 

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



 12

 

 

8.4 New construction and development have generally been constrained by Green Belt policy  

particularly to properties fronting the green. Traditional materials - red brick, Kent ragstone, 

red clay tiles and slate  combine with local building styles to provide a typical representation 

of a small Kentish hamlet, one which local residents feel must be conserved. (R5, R6) 

 

8.5 Godden Green provides a central location for rural activity  walking, riding, visiting Knole 

Park - but is limited in the provision of other community facilities. The Prep School, pub and 

Cygnet Hospital generate some local focus, as does the Green itself. A very restricted bus 
service exists with links to Sevenoaks and surrounding villages. Some residents have 

suggested that the hamlet could sustain a village shop or some form of communal use of the 

green to encourage local user interaction. The Old Post Office on the green originally served 
this function. Inappropriate parking around the green has been an issue in the past and needs 

occasional monitoring, but generally visitors to the area are re
quality. Physically the defining character of the hamlet is complete. Its rural setting, open 

green configuration with different but sensitively scaled buildings bordering two sides offer 

little scope or need for change. Recognition of the quality and importance of maintaining such 
rural spaces so near to towns like Sevenoaks is of prime concern to both local residents and 

countryside visitors. For these reasons, the Parish will consider whether to recommend to 

Sevenoaks District Council that it should make Godden Green a separate Conservation Area. It 

is important that the Cygnet Hospital and Prep School continue to respect the essentially rural 

character of this area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Views of Seal Chart 

 

 9. The Surrounding Countryside 

Seal is surrounded on three sides by open country, and residents are most anxious to keep it 
that way. 

ilar comments. This is a 

mixture of arable and pasture land, broken up by hedges and small copses, and of more 

extensive woodland, especially on Seal Chart. Part of the Chart is a Site of Special Scientific 

Interest (SSSI). This countryside all lies within the Green Belt, and most of it is protected as 

an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (one of 41 AONBs across England and Wales which are 
equivalent to National Parks in terms of landscape quality). This means that the Seal 

countryside is generally protected from intrusive development, even for agricultural use, 
although individual proposals need to be monitored carefully by the Parish Council. 

 

9.2 As so often in Kent, this countryside is scattered with small groups of farms and cottages. 
Some of these are Listed Buildings (Penfield, Waterden, the old farmhouse at Fullers); others, 

while not so safeguarded, are of great value to the local scene (Tanners Cross, Fullers Hill, 
etc.). The Local Development Framework recognises that these must also be protected. While 

changes and additions to these buildings may occasionally be allowed, even for industrial or 

commercial use, and would be welcome if they generate additional jobs, the Local Plan 
requires that these must be well-designed and not intrude on the longer views. The village 

strongly supports this policy. (R5, R6, R7) 

 

  

Agenda Item 7

Page 34



 13

 

 

 

9.3 At the edges of the village are a few key areas which need special care, to ensure that the 

distinction between village and country is maintained. The fields to the west of the church, 
already mentioned in the section on the centre of the village, were the subject of a Planning 

Application in 2004, which was rejected following an appeal. It seems essential to leave the 
church standing on the edge of open country to the north and east. It is also important to care 

for the other public spaces (the churchyard; the allotments; and the recreation ground) on the 

fringe of the built-up areas. (R13). 

9.4 In addition to the Sites of Special Scientific Interest, much of the rest of the local fields, 

woodland and hedgerows are rich in wildlife which needs to be protected. The landscape 

suffered greatly from Dutch Elm Disease and from the Great Storm of 1987,and other big trees 
(notably oaks) have recently been lost. It is therefore important that landowners should 

replace trees when possible and reinstate hedgerows rather than use wire fences. Maximum 
use should therefore be made of any available grants from government agencies, and the 

Parish Council can help in identifying suitable opportunities. The narrow and steep local lanes 

also need special attention. It is particularly important to consider the sustainability of any 
improvements; one-off projects are not always sufficient. (R14) 

9.5 Within the built-up areas of the village, householders can add to the variety of wildlife by 
careful planting, and by avoiding the use of chemical pesticides etc. In this way, the total 

appearance of the village can be enhanced. 

 

10. Future Changes 

A Village Design Statement is not about general land-use planning questions. But because 

future planning has implications for the appearance of the village (including existing buildings) 
it needs to be mentioned here. So long as present government policies remain in place, there 

is little scope for expansion of Seal, or for more than very small amounts of infilling. The Local 
Development Framework

small scale only. This should take account of the limited scope for development to take place in 

an acceptable manner and the limited range of services and facilities available. This policy also 
states that new development should be of a scale and nature appropriate to the village and 

should respond to the distinctive local characteristics of the area in which it is situated. 
Nevertheless, applications are submitted from time to time for larger schemes, even in the 

centre of the village, which raise important issues of design of the proposed new buildings. 

(R1)  

A survey of affordable housing needs in Seal, which was carried out at the same time as the 

Parish Council questionnaire in September 2010, identified a need for a small number of 

affordable homes. 
and government guidance in PPS3 allow for small scale affordable housing to be provided 

ld not 
normally be suitable for development because of restraint policies can be developed solely for 

affordable housing to serve small rural communities. Rural exception sites should only be used 

for affordable housing in perpetuity. 
 

It is fair to say that some respondents to the questionnaire expressed opposition to such a 

scheme. Residents were asked where, if at all, such new housing might be provided. Very few 

sites within or around the village were suggested for this purpose. Nevertheless the Parish 

Council considers that if there is a possibility of helping local people who would otherwise be 
forced to leave Seal to remain here, it should fully explore options available. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 35



 14

 

 

 

11. Design  

All the elements just described combine to determine the shape of the village, and largely 
govern its general appearance. Most residents like it the way it is now (if only something could 

be done about the traffic ...!) Much of the village centre still looks like a traditional Kentish 
village. The residential areas to the north and south, though very different from each other in 

character, fit in well with this village core. They are typically outer-suburban in appearance - 

nothing very special individually, but taken together, make for a very pleasant living 
environment. 

This has implications for the way the planning rules must be applied when proposals are put 

forward for new buildings, or when changes to existing buildings, old and modern, come to be 
considered. The Sevenoaks Local Development Framework contains a general design policy 

(SP1) and the remaining Local Plan policies include a general design policy (EN1) and guidance 

on archaeological remains (EN23). The Local Plan also contains an appendix on Shop Fronts 

and Advertisements. It is less specific about the appearance of the villages. 

11.2 Within the Conservation Area, existing rules are intended to prevent damaging changes; 

it is important for these rules to be explained clearly and then applied rigorously. (R16, R17) 

Ideally, some existing intrusive illuminated signs should also be removed. And even in smaller 
matters which need no planning permission, most people consider that standards of 

appearance are important and must be kept up. (R10, R11, R15) Good neighbours will 

remember this. 

More specifically, the village wants to see the following guidelines observed. It asks the District 

and Parish Councils, and all property owners and developers within the area to follow them. 

 
R1 NEW CONSTRUCTION. Under the existing Local Development Framework, it is 

unlikely that there will be much new residential or commercial/industrial construction in Seal. 
It is essential that any new buildings should be on a small scale, and should respect and be 

consistent with the distinctive character of the area.  

 
R2 New business developments should be designed so as not to harm the character of 

the area. They should not add significantly to local traffic. Nor should they cause a nuisance to 
other properties through excessive noise, dust, vibration, noxious emissions, loss of daylight, 

visual intrusion or clutter. They must provide adequate off-road parking which should be 

screened by new planting. 
 

R3 New housing must similarly respect the character of the village, in the ways described 

below. 
 

R4 Within the village, new structures should not block familiar vistas, or overshadow 
existing buildings. They should normally be limited to two storeys, or three when adjacent 

buildings are already of that height..In assessing the acceptable height account should be 

taken of the relative height of the site and the surrounding area. Adequate parking must be 

provided, so as not to add to existing congestion in the village. 

 
R5 Outside built confines of the village, new structures must be as unobtrusive as 

possible. They should take advantage of the lie of the land and of natural screening. They 

should not show above the skyline, and should not obtrude on long views. Where relevant the 
development should be consistent with policies relating to the Metropolitan Green Belt. 

 
R6 All new buildings (residential or commercial) should normally be in local materials 

(ragstone, red brick and tile, black or white painted weatherboarding) or closely-similar 

products and in local styles, except where a really distinguished piece of modern architecture 
can be included after proper consultation with local residents. 

 

R7 EXTENSIONS AND MODIFICATIONS. Within the Conservation Area, existing 
regulations greatly limit the possibility of any major changes. But outside the Area, it is equally 

Agenda Item 7

Page 36



 15

important to maintain very high standards. This is particularly important in the conversion of 

agricultural buildings for other uses. 
 

R8 Timber, stone, brick and tile work should match existing structures. This is 

particularly important in terraces or groups of similar adjoining buildings. Replacements should 
 or plastic window frames and doors look out of place in 

older buildings. Where this is not possible, the outside appearance should remain unchanged; 

our increasing range of double-glazing systems now incorporate appropriate architectural 

features. 

 
R9 Attractive features of older buildings, including chimneys, gables, windows and doors, 

should be retained or replaced with similar work wherever possible, safety and structural 

soundness permitting. 
 

R10 Paintwork and colour schemes should normally be in sympathetic colours and avoid 

clashing with neighbouring buildings. (WKHA have issued guidance to their tenants on these 

points, offering a range of suitable colours). 

 
R11 Fencing, walls and gates should be kept low. Where a fence is more than one metre 

high, it should be screened by appropriate planting. Large walls and entrance gates should be 
avoided. 

 

R12 THE VISUAL CONTEXT. There are important points here, many of which do not fall 
within the planning laws, but which are vital to maintaining the general appearance of the 

village and its surroundings. 

 
R13 Planting in the village should make the fullest use of native species of trees; 

intrusive planting of large trees, e.g. of Leylandii, can interfere with neighbours and should be 
avoided. Planting must not interfere with traffic sightlines. Otherwise, additional planting, 

window-boxes and hanging baskets are encouraged within the village. More hedges and 

roadside trees are encouraged. The  Tree Warden can offer practical advice on 
this topic and the next. 

 
R14 Planting outside the village can include copses, roadside trees, ponds and ditches 

which both improve the appearance of the area and extend natural habitats for wildlife. 

Landowners should make the maximum possible use of grants now available for these 
purposes. 

 

R15 Street names and road signs should be as clear but as unobtrusive as possible 
consistent with safety. 

 
R16 Advertisements and signboards on commercial and industrial property must be kept 

small-scale, in keeping with the visual character of the village. 

 
R17 Outdoor lighting, and especially illuminated signs and security lights, must be very 

restrained and must not interfere with neighbours, distract drivers or obstruct long views. 
 

R18 Aerials, satellite dishes, masts and wiring, must be as unobtrusive as possible, and 

within the conservation area should be invisible from the street. Preferably they should be 
concealed or sited away from public roads. 

 
R19 Non-residential agricultural buildings, domestic stabling and field shelters 

should be designed to minimise their impact upon the beauty of the countryside  for example 

by using subdued colours or cladding them with timber and be appropriately landscaped and 
screened with native species of trees and hedges.  

 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



 16

Appendix 

 
Extracts from Sevenoaks Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
 

(The full text of the Core Strategy and Saved Local Plan is available at 

http://www.sevenoaks.gov.uk/environment/planning/planning_policy_and_the__local_develop

ment_framework/default.asp) 

 
 

Policy LO7 Development in Rural Settlements 

 
Between all the settlements, provision will be made for a total of approximately 1,160 

dwellings (2006-2026) on a range of sites suitable for residential use 
 

Within the settlement confines of New Ash Green, Otford and Westerham development on a 

modest scale will be permitted where it can take place in an acceptable manner consistent with 
local character. In New Ash Green the village centre will be regenerated so that it better meets 

the needs of the local community whilst respecting the distinctive character of the settlement. 
 

Within the settlement confines of Brasted, Crockenhill, Eynsford, Farningham, Halstead, 

Hartley, Hextable, Horton Kirby, Kemsing, Knockholt Pound, Leigh, Seal, Sevenoaks Weald, 
Shoreham, South Darenth, Sundridge and West Kingsdown infilling and redevelopment on a 

small scale only will be permitted taking account of the limited scope for development to take 
place in an acceptable manner and the limited range of services and facilities available. 

 

Within all the settlements covered by this policy new development should be of a scale and 
nature appropriate to the village concerned and should respond to the distinctive local 

characteristics of the area in which it is situated. 

 
The loss from rural settlements of services and facilities that serve the local community will be 

resisted where possible. Exceptions will be made where equivalent replacement facilities are 
provided equally accessible to the population served, or where it is demonstrated, through 

evidence submitted to the Council, that the continued operation of the service or facility is no 

longer financially viable. The Council will support and encourage innovative proposals to 
improve provision of services and facilities to serve the local community, subject to any 

development being of a scale and character appropriate to the area. 
 

Existing suitable employment sites will be retained with the opportunity for regeneration and 

redevelopment to better meet the needs of business. The Council will work with service 
providers to maintain and where possible improve rural transport services, so that the 

accessibility of rural communities is maintained. 

 
Policy LO8 The Countryside and the Rural Economy. 

 
The extent of the Green Belt will be maintained. 

 

The countryside will be conserved and the distinctive features that contribute to the special 
character of its landscape and its biodiversity will be protected and enhanced where possible. 

The distinctive character of the Kent Downs and High Weald Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty and their settings, will be conserved and enhanced. 

 

Particular regard will be given to the condition and sensitivity of the landscape character and 
securing the recommended landscape actions in the proposed SPD to ensure that all 

development conserves and enhances local landscape character and that appropriate 
mitigation is provided where damage to local character cannot be avoided. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 38



 17

Development that supports the maintenance and diversification of the rural economy, including 

development for agriculture, forestry, small scale business development and rural tourism 
projects, and the vitality of local communities will be supported provided it is compatible with 

policies for protecting the Green Belt, the Kent Downs and High Weald Areas of Outstanding 

the landscape character of other rural parts of the District and that it takes account of 

infrastructure requirements. 

 

Policy SP1: Design of New Development and Conservation 

 
All new development should be designed to a high quality and should respond to the distinctive 

local character of the area in which it is situated. Account should be taken of guidance adopted 

by the Council in the form of Kent Design, local Character Area Assessments, Conservation 
Area Appraisals and Management Plans, Village Design Statements and Parish Plans. In rural 

areas account should be taken of guidance in the Countryside Assessment and AONB 

Management Plans. In rural areas account should be taken of guidance in the countryside 

Assessment and AONB Management Plans. 

 
In areas where the local environment lacks positive features new development should 

contribute to an improvement in the quality of the environment. 
 

New development should create safe, inclusive and attractive environments that meet the 

needs of users, incorporate principles of sustainable development and maintain and enhance 
biodiversity. 

 

archaeological remains, ancient monuments, historic parks and gardens, historic buildings, 

landscapes and outstanding views will be protected and enhanced. 
 

Policy SP 4: Affordable Housing in Rural Areas 

 
Small scale developments for affordable housing only will be developed to meet local needs 

identified through rural housing needs surveys. The following criteria will be applied in 
identifying sites: 

 

a. the local need identified through the rural housing needs survey cannot be met by any other 
means through the development of sites within the defined confines of a settlement within the 

parish or, where appropriate, in an adjacent parish; 

 
b. the proposal is of a size and type suitable to meet the identified local need and will be 

available at an appropriate affordable cost commensurate with the results of the appraisal. The 
proposal is accompanied by a financial appraisal proving the scheme will meet the defined 

need. Schemes which propose an element of cross subsidy will not be acceptable; 

 
c. the proposed site is considered suitable for such purposes by virtue of its scale and is sited 

within or adjoining an existing village, is close to available services and public transport, and 
there are no overriding countryside, conservation, environmental, or highway impacts The 

initial and subsequent occupancy of sites developed under this policy will be controlled through 

planning conditions and agreements as appropriate to ensure that the accommodation remains 
available in perpetuity to meet the purposes for which it was permitted 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



1

Underriver   
Village Design Statement

2012 Edition

A Vision of Underriver 

    On entering the village of Underriver from any direction the canopy of trees and narrow lanes 
heralds a peaceful and tranquil haven. Positioned astride and below the Greensand Ridge, the 
area has unparalleled views of the Kent countryside. The houses in the valley look out on the 
imposing wooded hillside, whilst those on the ridge have spectacular views of the patchwork 
fields and historic houses of the village and the valley beyond. For residents and visitors 
Underriver is a perfect rural setting, whatever the season or weather. Surrounded by busy towns 
and close to the main arterial routes of the South East, the beauty and serenity of Underriver, 
with its winding lanes, wooded paths, and open countryside should be treasured. 

The aim of the recommendations in this Village Design Statement is to perpetuate this vision.

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



2

UNDERRIVER VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT 

 CONTENTS 

PAGE 

The purpose of this Village Design Statement   4

The Village of Underriver        4

History          6

Community         6

Buildings          7

Recommendations 1- 10        9/10 

The local economy  employment      11

Recommendations 11-13       11

Roads & Transport        14

Recommendations 14  20       14

Landscape, Wildlife and Recreation     14

Recommendations 21- 23       15

Consultation and consideration for neighbours   15

Appendix  Extracts from Core Strategy Document 16

Map of Underriver        17

In 2004 a committee of local people prepared The Underriver Village Design Statement as 
Supplementary Planning Guidance for the Sevenoaks District Local Plan, now superseded by the 
Local Development Framework.

This edition has been revised by Seal Parish Council to reflect the views of local people from 
study of the Seal Parish Plan Questionnaire 2010 and to permit the design statements 
incorporation into the Sevenoaks District Local Development Framework. It has been through a 
full consultation process prior to publication.

Sevenoaks District Council provides the Ordnance Survey mapping included within this 
publication under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to 
encourage local involvement. Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey 
copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping for their own use. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 42



3

This document has been prepared in conformity with the District Council's Core Strategy.  Policy 
SP1 of the Core Strategy states that:

"All new development should be designed to a high quality and should respond to the distinctive 
local character of the area in which it is situated.  Account should be taken of guidance adopted 
by the Council in the form of Kent Design, local Character Area Assessments, Conservation Area 
Appraisals and Management Plans, Village Design Statements and Parish Plans.  In rural areas 
account should be taken of guidance in the Countryside Assessment and guidance produced by 
the AONBs..."

The delivery mechanisms for the policy include:

"The Council will work with local communities to produce Village Design Statements, Parish 
Plans and Character Area Assessments to be adopted as Supplementary Planning 
Documents to provide detailed locally-specific guidance to support the general policy."

This Village Design Statement for Seal is intended to fulfil the role identified for Village Design 
Statements in Policy SP1 in providing detailed locally specific guidance on the design of new 
development.

In preparing this document, recognition has been made of the responses by people from the 
Underriver Ward to the Seal Parish Plan Questionnaire 2010, in particular the following:

o 77% of Underriver respondents have looked at the Underriver Village Design Statement.
o 86% think the Parish Council should consult with the Local Planning Authority to agree a 

policy to provide effective control of replacement dwelling in the area in the Village Design 
Statements.

o 75 % think planning rules should be used to protect local pubs and shops from closure and 
conversion to housing if at all possible.

o 81% think the Parish Council seek consultation with the local authority to improve facilities 
for cyclists to ensure their safety on the roads.

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



4

The Purpose of this Village Design Statement
Purpose

1) Village Design Statements are intended to provide guidance for development proposals and to 
influence the application of the planning system. The Statement provides a context for new 
development based on local character and sense of place. It is not about whether development 
should take place: that is a job for the Sevenoaks District Local Development Framework.   

structures, or changes of use of land or buildings that either require planning permission or else 
have a significant impact upon the Village community or the owners of adjoining properties. 

2) This Village Design Statement describes Underriver as it is in 2010. It emphasises the qualities 
valued by all t

past and present and will contribute to the local community. It is addressed to statutory bodies, 
public authorities, planners, developers, designers, architects, builders, engineers, local 
community groups, householders, landowners, farmers and other businesses. 

Process

3) Seal Parish Council updated and amended the 2004 document to reflect policy and community 
change in the intervening period.

4) A consultation process has been undertaken 

a.
boards.

b. Copies have been placed in the local Pub, and the Church porch.

c. The Seal Advertiser has promoted its existence and where copies can be obtained. 

d. The Underriver Village Association has been given copies for distribution and comment.

e.

5) SDC will conduct statutory consultation on this document before it can be adopted as 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). It will take its recommendations into account when 
assessing future planning applications. This Statement will thus support the Sevenoaks District 
Local Development Framework as it affects Underriver; it will assist the work of Seal Parish 
Council and of the Underriver Village Association; and it will ensure that local knowledge, 
opinions and ideas are taken into account when development proposals are made.   It will be 
updated as necessary in line with Reviews of the Local Plan.

The Village of Underriver

6)
1500 acres (600 hectares) of farmland, woodland, orchards and gardens. It is situated in the 
southerly part of the Parish of Seal in the District of Sevenoaks, Kent. It covers part of the 
Greensand Ridge to the south of Knole Park, including the southern edge of Fawke Common, 
One Tree Hill and Bitchet Common. The border then runs south, encompassing Underriver 
House and on to the edge of Great Hollanden Farm. From there it runs northwest to St Julians.   

whole community within the Underriver electoral boundary. 

7) The whole Village is in the Green Belt and nearly all is in the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty. The landscape of the Kent Downs is special and is of outstanding quality and 
value. It should be conserved and enhanced; and the long-range views into and out of the village 
should be maintained. There are extensive Sites of Special Scientific and Nature Conservation 
Interest, as well as National Trust and common land. Refer to the map at the rear of this 
document, which shows the extent of the designations.

8) Some 350-400 residents, including some 90 children, live in approximately 130 dwellings. These 
include the apartments in St Julians Club. Local employment is provided by businesses such as
St Julians, the White Rock Inn, the local farms, converted agricultural buildings and homeworkers 
with Internet connections. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 44



5

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



6

History 

9)
Although there is evidence of Saxon field names, the earliest settlements were probably 
Romschedde Manor and Shoads. Romschedde Manor was extant in the early 13th Century and 

established several substantial farmsteads, probably attracted by the abundance of spring water.   
Evidence of the original dwellings is still visible in the houses today. Five hundred years of 
undisturbed agricultural activity followed with crops, orchards and hop gardens. The hamlet was 

10) At the beginning of the 18th Century the ancient manor of Shoads was replaced by Underriver 
House, probably built by Richard Goodhugh, High Sheriff of Kent. The Goodhughs, however, did 
not survive the century; and Henry Woodgate of Riverhill, whose heirs sold it to John Davison, 
the Judge Advocate General in 1862, acquired the estate. The other major estate, St Julians, 
belonged to the Herries family; J.C.Herries, a former Chancellor of the Exchequer, had built the 
house in the 1830s. These two estates included most of the land in Underriver.  

11)
and consecrated in 1875, when a Church Elementary School was also established. In 1856 a 
post office receiving house was opened in a cottage in the Village; and, after several moves and 
two temporary closures, it was finally closed in September 1944. The White Rock Inn dates in 
part from 1820: the central section has been an Inn from at least the 1850s. The mid-19th 
Century extension of the railway to Sevenoaks (and soon afterwards to Tonbridge) gave greater 
accessibility to this hitherto remote hamlet.    In the 1890s Lord Derby purchased most of the 
Davison estate.  

12) In 1909 the Derby holdings were sold. This broke down the estate into individual freeholds; and 
some were purchased by people who wished to live in the country but to work in London. Over 
the last century the agricultural emphasis of the hamlet dwindled. Fewer people were employed 
on the land and there was a gradual increase in the number of residents who worked outside 
Underriver, either in local towns or beyond in London.  

13) After World War II the pace of change accelerated. House prices rose sharply and properties 
changed hands frequently. In the mid-1970s the Village School was closed, as its roll was then 
considered too small to be viable. In 1980 the ecclesiastical Parish was joined with Seal St 
Lawrence. 

Community

14) s beauty, location and strong community life make it an attractive place in which to 
live. About a quarter of its residents (including housewives) work in the Village; about a third are 
retired; and the remainder work in London or elsewhere. Others come into the Village to work. 
Many who live outside but close to the Village strongly support its activities. 

15) Underriver has no shops, no post office, no State School and a limited bus service. It is unlikely 
that a shop or a post office would be viable. National supermarkets can deliver milk, newspapers 
and household shopping increasingly, and there is a regular postal service. Mains drainage is not 
available and mains gas is available in part of the Village only. Internet connection is available, 
but can be co
the district. 

16) Community life is based around the Village Hall (opened in 1932), the Church, the White Rock 
Inn, the cricket ground and the recreation area. The Village Hall is a lively centre, in regular use 
by vigorous village societies including the Village Association, The Thursday Underriver Group 
and the Horticultural Society.   There are regular Pilates and fitness evenings in the village hall. 
There is a playgroup i
parties, cookery classes and other social events.

17) The Cricket Club has regular summer fixtures at weekends and a popular social calendar.

18) Horse riding, walking and cycling are popular in the area. There is an extensive system of 
footpaths and bridleways maintained by Kent County Council.

Agenda Item 7

Page 46



7

Examples of local architectural style 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



8

Buildings

19) Although Underriver has a wide range of interesting buildings the overall image is dominated by 
rural and woodland scenery. Within the village area of about 1500 acres (600 hectares) there are 
about 130 dwellings (some with associated farm buildings), the St Julians estate, a Church, an Inn, 
a Village Hall and a cricket pavilion. 

20) The buildings are quite evenly spread along a network of narrow, winding roads. Many are fully 
screened by trees and hedges and very few are conspicuous. The more visible ones are the 
houses in the centre of the Village and some of the houses on the Greensand Ridge. Other houses 
on the ridge fit so well into the landscape that it is hard to see them from the valley.  

21) The Village centre is small, comprising about twenty houses (including four managed by West Kent 
Housing Association), the Church, the Inn and the Village Hall. The houses in the village centre 
and the surrounding area were built over a long time-span ranging from the Middle Ages to more 
recent times and were occupied by farmers and craftsmen. They form an unusual settlement 
pattern of substantial buildings separated by short distances. Many of the houses, barns and walls 
in the area feature local ragstone, oak frames with wattle and daub, plaster or brick, red clay 
hanging tiles and roof tiles. There are a small number of fine buildings from the Georgian and 
Victorian periods. Oast and barn conversions add to the varied styles of dwellings in the village. 

22) Except for Underriver House and St Julians, most houses were originally built of moderate size 
with two storeys, some with attics. Over the years many have been extended, reducing the number 
of small houses in the Village. There are, however, several pre- and post-war former council 
houses (now in private ownership) in the centre of the Village, together with modern timber-framed 
dwellings and other smaller houses within the Underriver boundary. Most buildings were designed 
in the style of the period in which they were built, although some of the more recent have 
incorporated styles from earlier periods. The use of Kentish materials and other features have 
allowed many of the more modern houses to blend satisfactorily with the earlier buildings. 

23) There are a relatively high percentage of historic buildings in the area, including many which are 
listed. Examples are: 

a. High House is a medieval hall house, which dates back to the 15
th

Century.

b. Black Charles is a medieval timber-framed four-bay hall house, with a 
high-pitched roof on the front and a cat slide on the reverse slope. In 
the 18

th
century brick and stonework on the ground floor were 

substituted for the medieval walling, with tile hanging above. 

c. Catts Cottage is late medieval and dates from the late 15
th

Century. It 
has two bays with gable windows and a two-storey connecting section 
with a tall 17

th
Century chimneystack. It features Tudor timber and 

whitewashed plaster and local stone with hanging tiles. 
d. Falcon Cottage on Fawke Common dates back to the 16

th
Century. It is 

a compact cottage with ornate tile hanging to the first floor. A large 
Edwardian extension has been added in a well-matched style. 

e. Underriver House is the largest private house in the Village. It is a 
three-storey Queen Anne house with 19

th
Century additions and a 

modern wing. Built of local stone in continuous courses with flint 
infilling, it has sash windows and a hip tiled roof with dormers. 

f. The fine Church was built in the 19
th

 Century in a 13
th

Century Gothic 
style. 

g. St. Julians was built in the early 19
th

Century as a grand home with fine 
views over the Weald. It is constructed of yellow brick, with a steeply 
sloping slate roof behind three gables. It has white bargeboards and 
stone window-bays with abundant glazing. From 1951 onwards, adding 
extensions in the style that was then fashionable created a country club 
and flats.  

h. Green Lane Cottage, originally the home of a pig farmer, was built in 
the early 18

th
Century. It has a symmetrical elevation, with three 

windows on each floor and tile hanging on the first floor.

24) House replacements constructed within the curtilage of the original dwellings, where one dwelling 
replaced one dwelling and where the existing house was demolished before the replacement was 
built. Strict conditions exist to limit the size in context of the built form that existed prior to 1948. In 
the 2010 Parish Plan Questionnaire 86% of respondents urged the Parish Council to seek more 

Agenda Item 7

Page 48



9

effective control of replacement dwellings

25) Residential conversions of redundant agricultural buildings of sound and substantial construction 
i.e. excluding demountable buildings. Strict conditions exist to limit the size in context of the built 
form that existed prior to 1948.

26) Dwellings constructed under an approved affordable housing scheme that met the strict criteria in
Policy SP4 of the Core Strategy. These criteria include specific local housing need, proximity to 
local services and facilities, accessibility by public transport, acceptability of the site in landscape, 
environmental and highway terms and appropriate legal arrangement

27) Planning permission is required to use caravans or mobile homes for residential or business 
purposes. These permissions are reviewed regularly to confirm that the permitted need continues. 
It is important to ensure that established planning rights are not acquired by default.

28) The following design guidelines are recommended where planning permission is needed and 
encouraged where such permission is not required.

R1. Particular account should be taken of the visual impact of any new developments upon the 
appearance of the Village.   New developments should be designed to intrude as little as 
possible upon the openness of the countryside by taking advantage of the lie of the land 
and natural screening. The appearance of a low-density settlement should be maintained. 
Large obtrusive buildings amidst fields should be avoided. 

R2. New developments should be designed so as not to damage distant views from and to the 
Greensand Ridge (see photograph on back cover) as stated Core Strategy Policy SP1, from 
public road, footpaths, bridleways and other public rights of way and from neighbouring 
properties. Large walls, entrance gates and prominent roofs on the skyline and large 
windows reflecting the light should be avoided wherever possible. Solar panels should be 
sited discreetly. Artificial lighting should be no brighter than required for its purpose: it 
should be low-angled, discreet and focussed as narrowly as possible. It should not intrude 
upon the darkness of the night sky.

R3. New developments should be sympathetic with the general character of the Village, which 
has a wide variety of building styles, but innovative architecture might be considered in 
appropriate locations. Developers should be encouraged to use traditional local materials 
and features, such as local ragstone, weatherboarding, oak framing and red clay hanging 
tiles or roof tiles. They should generally be of single or two storey construction and not 
higher than neighbouring buildings. Replacement dwellings should be of very high quality, 
reflect local style and be located within the curtilage to minimise their impact to the 
surrounding area. The area is characterised by one and two storey buildings. Higher 
buildings are likely to be out of character with the area and will not generally be acceptable.

R4. New developments should be appropriately landscaped and screened with native species of 
trees and hedges.   Close-board fencing over one metre in height may need planning 
permission and should be screened from the road. Where it would be appropriate for 
planting to complement new development, a suitable planting scheme should be submitted 
with the planning application. Mature trees and hedges should not be felled without good 
reason. 

R5.  Residential conversions of redundant agricultural buildings of historic interest should be 
designed to conserve as much as practicable of the original character. Appropriate doors 
and windows should be used. 

R6. The materials and styles of house extensions should match or be sympathetic with those of 
the original buildings but need not necessarily be of the same architectural style.

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



10

R7. Wherever possible, non-residential agricultural buildings, domestic stabling and field 
shelters should be designed to minimise their impact upon the beauty of the countryside 
for example by using subdued colours or cladding them with timber.  

R8. Wherever possible, non-residential agricultural buildings, domestic stabling and field 
shelters should be located away from neighbouring properties. This would be especially 
important if they were likely to be used for activities that could cause a nuisance (for 
example by noise or smell) or lead to clutter in the countryside. Where practicable, they 
should be sited in natural hollows, behind existing or new natural screening or close to 
existing buildings. Road access to new agricultural buildings should have good sightlines. 

R9. Caravans and mobile homes used for residential and business purposes should be made of 
good quality materials and painted in subdued colours. They should be well landscaped 
where practicable. Those used, as agricultural dwellings should be sited where a permanent 
agricultural dwelling would be sited if such a dwelling were approved in due course. 

R10 Measures to conserve resources should be designed into new development where 
practicable and consistent with the other objectives in this Design Statement. Developers 
should be encouraged to provide high levels of insulation, discreetly sited solar panels, 
dual flush toilets and grey water collection systems; and to plan construction site 
management so as to reduce waste and minimise the use of energy and water. 

Examples of sympathetic conversions and extensions. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 50



11

The local economy - employment

29) Underriver offers limited employment opportunities, but these help to balance the community and 
so add to the attractiveness of the Village. A number of Underriver residents have businesses 
there. Others come to work in the Village in various capacities. 

30) Underriver has around 13 small farms of varying sizes and largely the farming community 
maintains the beauty of its countryside. Part time farmers outnumber full time farmers and the type 
of farming is almost entirely livestock, together with some fruit. One farm is in organic conversion 
and has a flock of free-range hens. Agricultural contractors are employed when needed. Farmers 
are experiencing the worst recession since the 1930s: in these difficult times they should have 
reasonable freedom to develop their agricultural businesses, including appropriate diversification. 
A number of properties have stabling and pasture; and many employ gardeners, home helps, 
handymen, etc. 

31) The Underriver Under-Fives Nursery, Music Box, the St Julians Day Nursery and the White Rock 
Inn meet important Village needs and should be supported. The White Rock Inn and restaurant is a 
popular venue for both residents and visitors. St Julians provides recreational facilities for its club 
members, thus serving a wider community. It also accommodates a number of mainly hi-tech 
businesses. The use of private dwellings for business purposes also provides employment. 

32) The Sevenoaks Local Plan makes it clear that proposal for the development of new businesses in 
the Green Belt, or for the expansion of existing businesses, is unlikely to be approved if they 
require the construction of new buildings on undesignated sites. Otherwise, there is a good case 
for encouraging business activities, provided that they do not intrude upon the quiet enjoyment of 
the Village and of the countryside. Any damaging business activities should not be permitted.  

33) The following guidelines are recommended where planning permission is needed and encouraged 
where such permission is not required. 

R11.  New business developments should be designed so as not to harm the character of the 
area. They should not add significantly to local traffic. Nor should they cause a nuisance to 
other properties through excessive noise, dust, vibration, noxious emissions, loss of 
daylight, visual intrusion, clutter in the countryside, excessively bright artificial lighting or 
security surveillance equipment. Artificial lighting should be no brighter than required for 
its purpose: it should be low-angled, discreet and focussed as narrowly as possible. 

R12. In principle, businesses that meet these criteria and other statutory planning policies 
should be supported, especially where they provide valued services to the local community. 
Businesses that cannot meet them would be undesirable. 

R13. Adequate provision should be made for off-road vehicle parking, which should be 
screened with native species where appropriate. 

The White Rock Inn and restaurant in the heart of the village
.

Agenda Item 7

Page 51



12

St. Julians club and business complex on the outskirts of the village 

Mixed Farming in Underriver 

Agenda Item 7

Page 52



13

A 30mph speed limit is essential for 

Horse-riding

A woodland path 

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



14

Roads and Transport

34) s winding roads contribute greatly to the character and charm of the Village. They are 

deep ditches. Excessive traffic, travelling too fast, is an increasing danger to local road-users, 
including walkers, cyclists and horse riders. Passing vehicles drive on to the verges, causing 
damage and unnatural road widening, which encourages further speeding. The lack of resources 
prevents adequate road maintenance by the Local Authority; and this adds to the danger. Kent 
County Council has plans for a pilot study to assess selected rural roads in parts of the County for 
appropriate speed limits. Meanwhile, national criteria have to be followed. 

35) There are buses twice a day between Underriver and Tonbridge on Mondays to Saturdays. There 
is no direct service to Sevenoaks or to Hildenborough Station for commuters. A better service 
would benefit non-car-owners. 

36) s to carry the present 
volumes of traffic without altering their rural character and to protect its bridleways and footpaths. 

an adequate standard. 

R15. Verge erosion caused by excessive rain should not be filled with tarmac, but should be 
rebuilt with natural sediment that hardens when it dries. 

cyclists and horse-

the restraints imposed.

R17. Suburban signing, kerbstones, pavements and street lighting should be avoided. 

R18. Road verges in the centre of the Village should be cut regularly. Elsewhere they should be 
cut regularly to one metre from the roadway where this is essential for road safety. 

R19. Footpaths, bridleways and other public rights of way should be kept open and in good 
repair.  

R20. Any proposals to close public rights of way should be rejected. Any proposals for minor 
diversions to public rights of way should be considered on their merits. Major diversions 
should be rejected, unless there are strong reasons for approving them. 

Landscape, Wildlife and Recreation 

37) Underriver is in the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and includes Sites of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), principally One Tree Hill and parts of Bitchet Common and 
Fawke Common and a Site of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI) on Rooks Hill. There are also 
ancient woodlands, including White Rocks, Rooks Hill, and Brimstonewell Wood, which have had 
continuous woodland cover since the beginning of the seventeenth century. It is important that the 
Green Belt, AONB, SSSI and Tree Preservation Order policies are enforced rigorously so as to 
preserve these priceless assets for the future. Refer to the map at the rear of this document for the 
extent of the designated areas. 

38) The northern part of Underriver is mainly woodland, with a few orchards, on greensand. Some of 
Bitchet Common is being managed to recreate heathland. The valley land is mostly heavy clay 
used for pasture. Ragstone is present at the base of the ridge, which historically has been quarried 
for local building purposes. A number of springs feed watercourses that run through the village and 
eventually feed into Hilden Brook. Several older properties have their own reservoirs. 

39) Und
and fauna. They are also much used for walking, cycling, horse riding and other forms of 
recreation. They are in good order due to volunteer and Parish Council action. The bridleways 
need drainage and surfacing with natural materials to bring them to a satisfactory standard. 

40) A wide variety of birds and other wildlife are commonly seen or heard. The woodlands contain 
many tree, shrub and undergrowth species. The heavy clay soil and improved grassland means 
that wild flowers are not special in the area, except at a few sites. The practice of coppicing is vital 
to the cycle of woodland flora and fauna. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 54



15

41) The SSSIs, the Commons and other significant parts of the Village are managed with a strong 
wildlife emphasis. Romshed Farm and St Julians follow the Countryside Stewardship Scheme, 

element. A Village Wildlife Habitat project was started in 1996.   New hedges have been planted 
and old ones are being renovated; woodland is being protected from stock; and wild flower patches 
are being developed. A beginning is being made on verge management for wild flowers. 

42) Some of Underrive
and is at risk of further visual damage from new telecommunications developments, including 
masts and satellite dishes. 

43) In the countryside, poorly aimed, over bright floodlights and security lamps have stolen the blessed 
night from humans, and countless other species which have evolved to the rhythm of light and 
darkness. The day-night cycles, behaviour, feeding and mating patterns of bats, birds, glow-
worms, moths, and countless other species are disturbed, and millions are killed, by light going 
where it is not needed.

44)
landscape, wildlife and habitat. 

R21. Landowners and householders should be encouraged to protect existing wildlife 
environments and to create new habitats in the form of copses, hedgerows, ditches, ponds, 
field verges and open spaces of rough grassland. Excessive use of chemicals should be 
avoided. Excessive garden lighting should be avoided to protect dark night skies.

R22. Local Tree Preservation Orders, which are enforced by Sevenoaks District Council, should     
be respected. Landowners and householders should be encouraged to care for their woods 
and trees and to replace them when they reach the end of their lives. They should be 
discouraged from removing old farm hedgerows and encouraged to use native species for 
new planting in appropriate locations. 

R23. New telecommunications developments, including masts, satellite dishes and other 
structures should be sensitively designed and sited. Sympathetic design and camouflage 
should be used to minimise the impact on the environment. A programme to relocate 
overhead wires underground should be encouraged. Proposals to improve broadband 
services to the community should be encouraged within the above restraints.

Examples of wildlife found in Underriver

Consultation and consideration for neighbours 

45) It is important that the Underriver Village Association and Underriver residents affected by 
proposed developments should be fully consulted before any planning permissions are given for 
new developments in the Village.  

46) Most residents wish to ensure that the ways in which they use their properties cause no avoidable 
nuisance or annoyance to their neighbours. It is a courtesy for those considering any building or 
change of use to consult their neighbours, whether or not the development requires planning 
permission. Consultation also helps to avoid problems over such matters as the size and location 
of garden sheds, play equipment, redundant machinery or other refuse, the height of boundary 
hedges or the installation and operation of security lighting. Good neighbourliness helps to make 
Underriver a happy as well as a beautiful place in which to live. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



16

Appendix

Strategy Adopted February 2011

Policy LO8

The Countryside and the Rural Economy. The extent of the Green Belt will be maintained.

The countryside will be conserved and the distinctive features that contribute to the 
special character of its landscape and its biodiversity will be protected and enhanced 
where possible. The distinctive character of the Kent Downs and High Weald Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and their settings, will be conserved and enhanced.

Particular regard will be given to the condition and sensitivity of the landscape character 
and securing the recommended landscape actions in the proposed SPD to ensure that all 
development conserves and enhances local landscape character and that appropriate 
mitigation is provided where damage to local character cannot be avoided.

Development that supports the maintenance and diversification of the rural economy, 
including development for agriculture, forestry, small scale business development and 
rural tourism projects, and the vitality of local communities will be supported provided it 
is compatible with policies for protecting the Green Belt, the Kent Downs and High Weald 
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty conserves and enhances the value and character of 

parts of the District and 
that it takes account of infrastructure requirements.

Policy SP 1

Design of New Development and Conservation

All new development should be designed to a high quality and should respond to the 
distinctive local character of the area in which it is situated. Account should be taken of 
guidance adopted by the Council in the form of Kent Design, local Character Area 
Assessments, Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans, Village Design 
Statements and Parish Plans. In rural areas account should be taken of guidance in the 
Countryside Assessment and AONB Management Plans.

In areas where the local environment lacks positive features new development should 
contribute to an improvement in the quality of the environment.

New development should create safe, inclusive and attractive environments that meet the 
needs of users, incorporate principles of sustainable development and maintain and 
enhance biodiversity.

ings, conservation 
areas, archaeological remains, ancient monuments, historic parks and gardens, historic 
buildings, landscapes and outstanding views will be protected and enhanced.

Agenda Item 7

Page 56



17

uty (shaded green) and the 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (outlined in red).  Please note information is shown only within 

the boundary of Underriver Parish Ward.

The whole of the village of Underriver is in the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Agenda Item 7

Page 57



18

View of Underriver from the Greensand Ridge 

Agenda Item 7

Page 58



P
a
rt
 O
n
e

T
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
-l
e
d
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n

Agenda Item 7

Page 59



1

A
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
is
 n
o
t 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
y 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s 
o
r 
fe
n
ce
s.
 A
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
is
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
y 
sh
a
re
d
 e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ce
s

a
n
d
 b
y 
co
m
m
o
n
 i
n
te
re
st
s.
 W
e
 w
h
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
 a
re
 j
u
st
ly
 p
ro
u
d
 o
f 
o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y

a
n
d
 o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
. 
It
 h
a
s 
a
 r
ic
h
 p
a
st
, 
a
 v
ib
ra
n
t 
p
re
se
n
t 
a
n
d
 –
 w
e
 t
ru
st
 –
 a
n
 e
ve
n
 b
e
tt
e
r 
fu
tu
re
. 
T
h
is

co
m
m
u
n
it
y-
le
d
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 a
im
s 
to
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
r 
fu
tu
re
 u
n
fo
ld
s 
in
 t
h
e
 w
a
y 
th
a
t 
lo
ca
l 
p
e
o
p
le

w
a
n
t,
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 h
a
p
p
e
n
in
g
 b
y 
ch
a
n
ce
 o
r 
a
s 
a
 r
e
su
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
o
 d
o
u
b
t 
w
e
ll
-i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 p
la
n
s 
o
f

o
u
ts
id
e
 a
g
e
n
ci
e
s.
 I
t 
a
ls
o
 a
im
s 
to
 m
a
in
ta
in
 o
u
r 
id
e
n
ti
ty
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ri
ty
 a
s 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s 
n
e
ve
r 
b
e
e
n
 a
 m
o
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 f
a
vo
u
ra
b
le
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
to
 p
la
n
 i
ts
 f
u
tu
re
.

P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
s 
h
a
ve
 f
o
r 
so
m
e
 t
im
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 G
o
ve
rn
m
e
n
t.
 H
o
w
e
ve
r,
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 L
o
ca
li
sm

B
il
l 
w
il
l 
e
n
sh
ri
n
e
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
ts
 t
h
a
t 
lo
ca
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
il
l 
h
a
ve
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
ra
ct
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y 
li
ve
. 
P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
o
u
rs
 w
il
l 
fo
rm
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 k
e
y 
b
u
il
d
in
g

b
lo
ck
s 
o
f 
th
is
 B
ig
 S
o
ci
e
ty
.

I 
sh
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
ll
y 
th
a
n
k
 a
ll
 t
h
o
se
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
w
h
o
 f
o
rm
e
d
 t
h
e

St
e
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 w
h
o
 w
o
rk
e
d
 s
o
 a
ss
id
u
o
u
sl
y 
fo
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 i
n
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
. 

T
h
e
 h
a
rd
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
ci
te
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
g
o
e
s 
w
it
h
 s
u
cc
e
ss
 l
ie
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
rs
 a
h
e
a
d
. 
E
ve
ry
 o
n
e
 o
f 
u
s

ca
n
 h
e
lp
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 s
m
a
ll
 w
a
y 
to
w
a
rd
s 
re
a
li
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 h
o
p
e
s 
a
n
d
 a
sp
ir
a
ti
o
n
s 
th
a
t 
th
is
 P
la
n
 e
x
p
re
ss
e
s.

In
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 w
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y,
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
co
m
m
o
n
 i
n
te
re
st
s 
in
 o
u
r 
fu
tu
re
, 
w
il
l 
b
e
 t
h
e
 o
n
e
s 
w
h
o

d
e
te
rm
in
e
 h
o
w
 f
a
r 
th
e
 P
la
n
 a
ch
ie
ve
s 
it
s 
a
im
s.

R
o
d
 S
h
e
lt
o
n

C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p

Ja
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1

T
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
rv
e
d
 a
t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s 
ti
m
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
:

D
o
n
n
a
 B
ro
w
n
  
 D
a
vi
d
 C
a
lc
o
tt
  
 P
a
tt
y 
C
h
a
tt
e
rj
e
e
  
 R
o
n
 D
u
ll
a
g
e
  
 J
o
h
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s-
W
in
se
r*
  
 C
a
ro
l 
G
ri
ff
it
h
s

B
il
l 
L
a
tt
im
e
r 
  
Je
ff
 L
e
e
  
 P
a
u
l 
R
o
b
e
rt
so
n
  
 R
o
d
 S
h
e
lt
o
n
 (
C
h
a
ir
) 
  
A
li
 T
ie
rn
e
y 
  
C
li
ff
 W
a
rd

E
li
za
b
e
th
 W
a
rd
* 
  
R
e
v.
 R
ic
h
a
rd
 W
o
rs
sa
m

*O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
ll
o
rs
 

D
e
si
g
n
e
d
 b
y
P
h
il
ip
 C
lu
ca
s
M
SC
D

©
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1

P
h
o
to
g
ra
p
h
s 
su
p
p
li
e
d
 b
y 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
P
 d
e
si
g
n
 t
e
a
m

F
O
R
E
W
O
R
D

Agenda Item 7

Page 60



3
2C
O
N
T
E
N
T
S

In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
5

A
b
o
u
t 
O
tf
o
rd

 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
6

P
la
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s

1
P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 S
a
fe
ty
: 
H
ig
h
w
a
ys
 a
n
d
 W
a
lk
w
a
ys

 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
1
0

2
A
 C
a
ri
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
1
4

3
F
u
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
1
8

4
M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
 A
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
2
2

5
P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 a
 G
re
e
n
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
2
8

6
E
n
co
u
ra
g
in
g
 a
 F
it
te
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
3
0

7
B
u
si
n
e
ss
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
3
4

8
P
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 F
u
tu
re
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
3
8

9
T
h
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic
e
s

1
W
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 c
o
n
si
st
 o
f?
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
4

2
W
h
o
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
?
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
4

3
H
o
w
 i
s 
a
ll
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 f
u
n
d
e
d
?
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
5

4
D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
5

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 m
a
in
 Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
5

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 O
ld
e
r 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
’ 
Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
6

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
’ 
Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
7

5
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
re
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 t
h
e
 Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
7

6
A
re
a
s 
o
f 
va
lu
e
 f
o
r 
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y,
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
ce
 a
n
d
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
8

7
B
u
il
d
in
g
s 
o
f 
lo
ca
l 
a
rc
h
it
e
ct
u
ra
l 
o
r 
h
is
to
ri
ca
l 
in
te
re
st

 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
 .
4
8

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



5
4

T
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 i
s 
th
e
 r
e
su
lt
 o
f 
e
x
te
n
si
ve
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 a
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d

b
y 
a
lm
o
st
 h
a
lf
 o
u
r 
h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
s.
  
It
 d
ra
w
s 
h
e
a
vi
ly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
su
lt
s,
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s 
o
f 
b
o
th

st
a
ti
st
ic
s 
a
n
d
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
ce
ss
 w
e
 w
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 i
n
vo
lv
e
 l
o
ca
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 c
re
a
te

th
e
 P
la
n
 i
s 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
il
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ic
e
s.
  
A
s 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
-l
e
d
 P
la
n
, 
it
 h
a
s 
to
 b
e

co
n
si
st
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
ca
l 
D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 C
o
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 b
y 
Se
ve
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t

C
o
u
n
ci
l.
 T
h
is
 i
s 
P
a
rt
 O
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
. 
 P
a
rt
 T
w
o
, 
th
e
 A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
, 
se
ts
 o
u
t 
a
ct
io
n
s,
 t
im
e
sc
a
le
s 
a
n
d

re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
: 
it
 i
s 
a
va
il
a
b
le
 o
n
li
n
e
 a
t 
w
w
w
.o
tf
o
rd
.i
n
fo
/
p
a
ri
sh
p
la
n
/
a
n
d
 a
ls
o

a
s 
a
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 O
ff
ic
e
.

T
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
 d
o
cu
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y 
g
ro
u
p
s 
o
f

lo
ca
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 a
ll
 p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
. 
T
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 i
n
vo
lv
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t

a
n
d
 h
a
s 
g
iv
e
n
 i
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
. 
B
u
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 p
la
n
 i
s 
n
o
t 
so
le
ly
 o
r 
e
ve
n

m
a
in
ly
 d
o
w
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
lo
n
e
. 
It
 w
il
l 
b
e
 u
p
 t
o
 u
s 
a
ll
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ll
y 
a
n
d
 a
s 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
to

a
ch
ie
ve
 t
h
e
 g
o
a
ls
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
is
 d
o
cu
m
e
n
t.

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 p
la
n
. 
O
u
r 
P
a
ri
sh
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
t 
to
 r
e
a
c
h
 a
ll
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s 
q
u
ic
k
ly
,

e
sp
e
ci
a
ll
y 
in
 t
h
e
se
 d
if
fi
cu
lt
 e
co
n
o
m
ic
 t
im
e
s.
 S
o
m
e
 m
a
y 
ta
k
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
is
 m
a
k
e
s 
th
e
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
s 
n
o

le
ss
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
. 
W
e
 h
o
p
e
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 w
il
l 
p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
ll
 o
f 
u
s 
w
it
h
 a
n
 a
sp
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ro
a
d
m
a
p
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
 s
o
 t
h
a
t

w
e
 c
a
n
 s
e
cu
re
 a
n
 e
ve
n
 b
e
tt
e
r 
fu
tu
re
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 

IN
T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N

Be
lo

w
 a

nd
 o

pp
os

ite
:  

co
ns

ul
ta

ti
on

 d
ay

s w
ith

in
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

Agenda Item 7

Page 62



7

A
 R
IC
H
 P
A
ST

O
tf
o
rd
 o
c
c
u
p
ie
s 
a
 s
it
e
 r
ic
h
 i
n
 h
is
to
ry
, 
w
it
h
 a
ll
 i
ts
 p
a
g
e
a
n
tr
y,
 p
o
li
ti
c
s,
 a
n
d
 v
io
le
n
c
e
. 
A
s 
lo
c
a
l

a
rc
h
a
e
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
d
ig
s 
h
a
ve
 s
h
o
w
n
, 
P
re
h
is
to
ri
c
 m
a
n
 l
iv
e
d
 h
e
re
 a
s 
fa
r 
b
a
c
k
 a
s 
2
2
0
0
 B
C
. 
L
a
te
r,
 f
o
u
r

R
o
m
a
n
 f
a
rm
s 
a
n
d
 a
 s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
w
e
re
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
e
d
: 
th
e
ir
 r
e
m
a
in
s 
su
g
g
e
st
 a
 p
ro
sp
e
ro
u
s 
li
fe
-s
ty
le
.

D
u
ri
n
g
 A
n
g
lo
-S
a
x
o
n
 t
im
e
s 
tw
o
 b
a
tt
le
s 
w
e
re
 f
o
u
g
h
t 
a
t 
O
tf
o
rd
, 
in
 7
7
6
 a
n
d
 1
0
1
6
. 
F
ro
m
 a
ro
u
n
d
 8
0
0
 A
D

th
e
 A
rc
h
b
is
h
o
p
s 
o
f 
C
a
n
te
rb
u
ry
 o
w
n
e
d
 a
 m
a
n
o
r 
h
o
u
se
 h
e
re
, 
co
m
p
le
te
 w
it
h
 m
o
a
t,
 g
re
a
t 
h
a
ll
 a
n
d

ch
a
p
e
l.
 T
h
e
 m
a
n
o
r 
w
a
s 
a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
ve
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
ca
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 o
w
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 l
a
b
o
u
rs

a
n
d
 p
a
id
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
n
ts
. 
O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
ve
 b
e
co
m
e
 u
se
d
 t
o
 s
e
e
in
g
 c
o
lo
u
rf
u
l 
p
ro
ce
ss
io
n
s 
o
f

c
h
u
rc
h
 d
ig
n
it
a
ri
e
s,
 r
o
ya
lt
y,
 a
n
d
 f
o
re
ig
n
 d
ip
lo
m
a
ts
 v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
o
r,
 r
e
p
u
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e

fo
re
m
o
st
 h
o
u
se
s 
o
f 
m
e
d
ie
va
l 
E
n
gl
a
n
d
. 
In
 1
5
1
5
 A
rc
h
b
is
h
o
p
 W
a
rh
a
m
 (
th
e
n
 L
o
rd
 C
h
a
n
ce
ll
o
r)
 c
o
n
ve
rt
e
d

th
e
 m
a
n
o
r 
h
o
u
se
 i
n
to
 a
n
 i
m
p
re
ss
iv
e
 p
a
la
ce
. 
H
is
 s
u
cc
e
ss
o
r 
T
h
o
m
a
s 
C
ra
n
m
e
r 
h
a
n
d
e
d
 o
ve
r 
O
tf
o
rd

P
a
la
ce
 t
o
 H
e
n
ry
 V
II
I 
a
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 R
e
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
L
a
te
r,
 b
o
th
 P
a
la
ce
 a
n
d
 v
il
la
g
e
 d
ri
ft
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
u
ra
l

o
b
sc
u
ri
ty
. 
O
n
ly
 t
h
e
 a
rr
iv
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 r
a
il
w
a
y 
in
 1
8
8
2
 r
e
vi
ve
d
 O
tf
o
rd
 b
y 
p
ro
vi
d
in
g 
h
o
m
e
s 
fo
r 
co
m
m
u
te
rs
,

w
h
o
se
 s
u
cc
e
ss
o
rs
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
ra
ve
l 
fr
o
m
 h
e
re
 t
o
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
.

A
 V
IB
R
A
N
T
 P
R
E
SE
N
T

W
in
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 “
V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r 
A
w
a
rd
”
 i
n
 2
0
0
2
 f
o
r 
So
u
th
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
-E
a
st
 E
n
g
la
n
d
, 
O
tf
o
rd
 w
a
s 
sa
id

to
 h
a
ve
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
cl
u
b
s 
a
n
d
 s
o
ci
e
ti
e
s 
th
a
n
 a
lm
o
st
 a
n
y 
o
th
e
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
st
.

F
o
u
r 
w
e
ll
-a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 c
h
u
rc
h
e
s 
a
tt
e
st
 t
o
 a
n
 a
ct
iv
e
 p
a
ro
ch
ia
l 
li
fe
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
n
d
 t
h
re
e
 s
ch
o
o
ls

se
rv
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
cr
e
a
si
n
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
s 
fo
r 
lo
ca
l 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 a
rr
iv
a
l 
o
f 
a
 l
a
rg
e
 S
a
in
sb
u
ry
s 
st
o
re

o
n
 o
u
r 
p
a
ri
sh
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
p
e
lt
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
is
e
 o
f 
so
m
e
 m
u
ch
-l
o
ve
d
 f
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
p
s 
in
 o
u
r 
H
ig
h

St
re
e
t,
 
th
o
u
g
h
 
so
m
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
re
p
la
c
e
d
 
b
y
 
so
m
e
 
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
c
ra
ft
 
a
n
d
 
c
lo
th
in
g
 
sh
o
p
s.
 
T
h
e

C
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 c
e
n
tr
e
s 
o
n
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 p
o
n
d
, 
th
e
 c
h
u
rc
h
 o
f 
St
 B
a
rt
h
o
lo
m
e
w
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
s 
o
f 
th
e

P
a
la
ce
. 
A
 p
o
p
u
la
r 
H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
vi
d
e
s 
a
 l
o
o
k
 i
n
to
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 r
ic
h
 h
is
to
ry
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
rs
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

o
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
iq
u
e
 s
ca
le
 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
 S
o
la
r 
Sy
st
e
m
 l
o
ca
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e

vi
ll
a
g
e
. 
N
e
w
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 s
e
tt
le
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
 e
a
ch
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
p
u
t 
m
a
in
ta
in
s 
a
 f
re
sh
 a
n
d
 a
n
im
a
te
d

so
ci
a
l 
sc
e
n
e
. 
M
e
a
n
w
h
il
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
a
u
ti
fu
l 
h
il
ls
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
rt
h
 D
o
w
n
s 
co
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
ra
w
 a
n
 e
ve
r 
in
cr
e
a
si
n
g

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
a
lk
e
rs
 t
o
 o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
.

M
o
st
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
tl
y
 p
e
rh
a
p
s,
 O
tf
o
rd
 i
s 
st
il
l 
a
 v
ib
ra
n
t 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 I
t 
is
 a
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 m
o
st

p
e
o
p
le
 k
n
o
w
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 f
o
lk
 s
to
p
 t
o
 c
h
a
t 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 m
e
e
t 
in
 t
h
e

st
re
e
t,
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
p
 o
r 
a
t 
th
e
 s
ch
o
o
l 
g
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
li
fe
 f
lo
u
ri
sh
e
s.

A
B
O
U
T
 O
T
F
O
R
D

6

U
pp

er
 r

ig
ht

: t
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 n

or
th

-w
es

t 
to

w
er

 o
f t

he
 T

ud
or

 P
al

ac
e

Lo
w

er
 r

ig
ht

: B
ec

ke
t’s

 W
el

l, 
a 

M
ed

ie
va

l s
ite

 o
f p

ilg
ri

m
ag

e

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



9
8

A
N
 E
V
E
N
 B
E
T
T
E
R
 F
U
T
U
R
E

O
ve
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
te
n
 y
e
a
rs
, 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 f
a
ce
s 
m
a
n
y 
ch
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s,
 a
s 
w
e
ll
 a
s 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s.
 T
h
e
re
 w
il
l 
b
e

o
ve
r 
5
0
0
 h
o
u
se
s 
b
u
il
t 
a
t 
D
u
n
to
n
 G
re
e
n
; 
lo
ca
l 
tr
a
ff
ic
 s
u
rv
e
ys
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 a
 l
ik
e
ly
 i
n
cr
e
a
se
 o
f 
4
.5
%
 y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y
e
a
r;
 a
n
d
 m
o
st
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
tl
y,
 w
e
 h
a
ve
 a
 l
o
ca
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is
 a
g
e
in
g
 a
s 
p
e
o
p
le
 l
iv
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r.

O
tf
o
rd
 h
a
s 
n
e
ve
r 
st
o
o
d
 a
g
a
in
st
 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
b
u
t 
w
e
 w
a
n
t 
to
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
ch
a
n
g
e
 i
s 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
lo
ca
l 
p
e
o
p
le
.

T
h
is
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
’s
 v
is
io
n
 i
s 
fo
r 
O
tf
o
rd
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 c
a
n
 f
o
re
se
e
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s

a
d
a
p
te
d
 t
o
 o
u
r 
n
e
e
d
s;
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 
e
a
ch
 o
th
e
r 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 w
a
rm
ly
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 o
u
ts
id
e
rs
. 
W
e
 w
o
u
ld

li
k
e
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 o
u
r 
lo
ca
l 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
to
 f
lo
u
ri
sh
 a
n
d
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 l
o
ca
l 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t.
 W
e
 w
a
n
t 
th
e
 n
a
tu
ra
l

b
e
a
u
ty
 o
f 
o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
ge
 t
o
 b
e
 e
n
h
a
n
ce
d
 t
h
o
u
gh
 c
a
re
fu
l 
co
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll
 o
u
r 
p
u
b
li
c 
sp
a
ce
s,
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

o
u
r 
ra
th
e
r 
n
e
g
le
c
te
d
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
si
te
s.
 W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 s
a
fe
r 
ro
a
d
s 
so
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s 
a
n
d

cy
cl
is
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
t 
th
e
 m
e
rc
y 
o
f 
fa
st
-m
o
vi
n
g 
tr
a
ff
ic
. 
W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 f
a
ci
li
ti
e
s 
fo
r 
a
ll
 o
u
r 
yo
u
n
g 
p
e
o
p
le

w
h
ic
h
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s.
 W
e
 e
sp
e
ci
a
ll
y 
w
a
n
t 
to
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
s 
o
u
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 g
e
t 
o
ld
e
r,
 t
h
e
y 
a
re

w
e
ll
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r.
 A
n
d
 e
ve
ry
o
n
e
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 a
n
d
 o
ld
, 
w
il
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s

h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r 
a
n
d
 g
re
e
n
e
r.
 T
h
e
se
 t
h
e
m
e
s 
a
re
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 p
a
g
e
s,
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
o
u
r

o
b
je
ct
iv
e
s 
in
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
ss
u
e
s 
ra
is
e
d
 b
y 
yo
u
, 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
.

P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 A
H
E
A
D

T
h
is
 d
o
cu
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
se
a
rc
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
ct
, 
a
s 
a
cc
u
ra
te
ly
 a
s 
p
o
ss
ib
le
, 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s

e
x
p
re
ss
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 I
t 
is
 t
h
e
 r
e
su
lt
 o
f 
a
 t
w
o
-y
e
a
r 
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
se
a
rc
h
 p
e
ri
o
d

ru
n
n
in
g
 f
ro
m
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 t
o
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 D
E
F
R
A
,

su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y 
g
e
n
e
ro
u
s 
lo
ca
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 m
a
n
y 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 o
rg
a
n
iz
a
ti
o
n
s.
 T
h
e
 p
ro
ce
ss
 b
e
g
a
n
 w
it
h
 a

q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
St
e
e
ri
n
g
 
G
ro
u
p
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
h
e
lp
 
o
f 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
fo
r

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
in
 R
u
ra
l 
K
e
n
t 
(A
C
R
K
),
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 t
o
 a
ll
 1
,4
5
0
 h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
s 
in
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
. 
6
1
9

re
sp
o
n
se
s 
w
e
re
 r
e
ce
iv
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
ct
io
n
s 
o
f 
th
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 r
e
fl
e
ct
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
ct
io
n
s 
o
f 
th
e

P
la
n
 i
ts
e
lf
.

T
h
e
 m
a
in
 p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
th
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s 
to
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
ta
ti
st
ic
s 
th
e
 n
a
tu
re
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f

re
si
d
e
n
ts
’ 
co
n
ce
rn
s.
 T
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
in
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 o
th
e
r 
co
n
ce
rn
s.
 A

fo
ru
m
 f
o
r 
fr
e
sh
 i
d
e
a
s 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
st
ru
ct
iv
e
 s
u
g
g
e
st
io
n
s 
w
a
s 
th
u
s 
p
ro
vi
d
e
d
. 
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
ro
p
-i
n
 e
ve
n
ts

a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
gs
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
to
 d
is
cu
ss
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
 f
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
.

T
h
e
re
 w
a
s 
a
 p
a
ri
sh
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 w
e
re
 p
re
se
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
va
l 
se
cu
re
d
. 
O
n
 a
ll
 t
h
e
se
 o
cc
a
si
o
n
s 
th
e
re
 w
a
s 
th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
fo
r 
e
ve
ry
o
n
e

to
 d
is
cu
ss
 a
n
y 
a
sp
e
ct
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
si
ti
o
n
s.
 T
h
is
 t
h
e
n
 i
s 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 64



a
w
a
re
 o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
a
n
d
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rl
in
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 m
e
ss
a
g
e
s 
a
n
d
 t
a
ck
le

sp
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
b
le
m
s/
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s 
m
u
c
h
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 f
ro
m
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d

re
g
io
n
a
l 
b
o
d
ie
s 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
ce
 t
ra
ff
ic
 i
m
p
a
ct
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 r
e
sp
e
ct
 f
o
r 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d

it
s 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
ra
ct
e
r.
 

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IS
E
D
 

T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 C
O
N
C
E
R
N
S 
R
E
Q
U
IR
IN
G
 A
T
T
E
N
T
IO
N

(a
) 
T
h
e
 d
a
n
g
e
r 
to
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s 
ca
u
se
d
 b
y:

•
th
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 o
n
 m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
s.

•
w
id
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
in
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t.

•
u
n
su
it
a
b
le
 a
n
d
/
o
r 
p
o
o
rl
y 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 w
a
lk
w
a
ys
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
lo
se
n
e
ss
 t
o
 

p
a
ss
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
. 

(b
) 
P
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
ro
a
d
s.
 

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
S

•
To
 s
e
cu
re
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
 w
it
h
 t
ra
ff
ic
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
ce
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
cr
a
sh
e
s 
a
n
d
 o
f 
in
ju
ri
e
s 
a
n
d

fa
ta
li
ti
e
s.

•
To
 e
n
h
a
n
ce
 t
h
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 c
h
a
ra
ct
e
ri
st
ic
s 
o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

•
To
 m
a
k
e
 i
t 
e
a
si
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
a
fe
r 
fo
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 w
a
lk
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
, 
e
sp
e
ci
a
ll
y 
fo
r 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f

vu
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
.

•
To
 r
e
vi
e
w
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
vi
si
o
n
.

1
1

A
 S
T
R
O
N
G
 F
O
U
N
D
AT
IO
N

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 g
e
n
e
ra
ll
y
 t
a
k
e
 c
a
re
 w
h
e
n
 m
o
vi
n
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
. 
So
m
e
 d
ri
ve
rs
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e

p
ro
b
le
m
s 
a
n
d
 r
e
sp
e
ct
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s 
a
t 
lo
ca
ti
o
n
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
th
e
 p
o
n
d
 a
re
a
. 
P
a
ri
sh
 a
n
d
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
co
u
n
ci
ll
o
rs

a
re
 a
ct
iv
e
 i
n
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
. 
O
th
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 f
in
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s 
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t

le
ve
ls
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 S
o
ci
e
ty
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s 
su
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
lo
ca
l 
h
o
m
e
-g
ro
w
n
 s
p
e
e
d

co
n
tr
o
l 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 S
p
e
e
d
w
a
tc
h
. 
A
n
 i
n
cr
e
a
si
n
g
 a
w
a
re
n
e
ss
 o
f 
g
re
e
n
 i
ss
u
e
s 
m
a
y 
le
a
d
 t
o
 a

d
e
si
re
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 c
a
r 
u
se
 e
sp
e
ci
a
ll
y 
fo
r 
sh
o
rt
 j
o
u
rn
e
ys
. 
P
o
li
ce
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s 
a
re
 i
n
cr
e
a
si
n
g
ly

1 
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
Sa

fe
ty

 H
IG
H
W
AY
S 
A
N
D
 W
A
L
K
W
AY
S

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
T
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 i
s 
tr
a
ve
rs
e
d
 b
y 
tw
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
o
a
d
s 
(A
2
2
5
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t/
P
il
g
ri
m
s 
W
a
y 
a
x
is
)

ca
rr
yi
n
g
 s
u
b
st
a
n
ti
a
l 
tr
a
ff
ic
 i
n
to
 a
n
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
C
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 (
co
m
m
u
te
r,

tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
, 
a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 u
se
).

•
A
s 
a
t 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
, 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 m
a
jo
r 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
sc
h
e
m
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 a
re
a
 i
n
cl
u
d
e
 t
h
e
 T
h
a
m
e
s

G
a
te
w
a
y,
 D
u
n
to
n
 G
re
e
n
 C
o
ld
 S
to
re
 (
“
R
ye
w
o
o
d
 M
e
a
d
o
w
s”
) 
a
n
d
 F
o
rt
 H
a
ls
te
a
d
.

•
Tr
a
ff
ic
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y 
e
x
ce
e
d
s 
sp
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s,
 s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s 
b
y 
su
b
st
a
n
ti
a
l 
m
a
rg
in
s,
 a
s 
re
co
rd
e
d
 b
y

K
e
n
t 
H
ig
h
w
a
ys
, 
tr
a
ff
ic
 c
a
m
e
ra
s 
(V
A
S)
 a
n
d
 p
o
li
ce
 t
e
a
m
s.

•
T
h
e
re
 h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n
 f
a
ta
li
ti
e
s 
a
n
d
 K
e
n
t 
H
ig
h
w
a
ys
 a
re
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
ve
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
b
a
se
d
 o
n

1
0
-y
e
a
r 
st
a
ti
st
ic
s.

•
W
id
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
re
 b
a
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
il
g
ri
m
s 
W
a
y 
W
e
st
 b
u
t 
so
m
e
ti
m
e
s 
e
n
te
r

it
 t
o
 a
cc
e
ss
 p
re
m
is
e
s.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
w
o
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 (
w
it
h
 n
u
rs
e
ri
e
s)
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 n
e
a
r 
w
h
e
re
 e
x
ce
ss
iv
e
 s
p
e
e
d
s

h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
co
rd
e
d
.

•
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
o
n
ly
 o
n
e
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

•
W
a
lk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
yc
li
st
s 
ca
n
n
o
t 
e
a
si
ly
 a
vo
id
 m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
s.

•
F
o
o
tw
a
ys
 a
lo
n
g
 m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
s 
va
ry
 i
n
 w
id
th
 a
n
d
 s
u
rf
a
ce
 q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
b
se
n
t 
a
lt
o
g
e
th
e
r

fr
o
m
 s
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
tc
h
e
s.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
re
e
 l
o
ca
ti
o
n
s 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s 
so
m
e
 l
ig
h
ti
n
g
. 

•
F
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
a
w
a
y 
fr
o
m
 m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
s 
a
re
 p
o
p
u
la
r 
b
u
t 
u
n
li
t 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s 
o
ve
rg
ro
w
n
.

•
T
h
e
 m
a
in
 f
re
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 i
s 
fu
ll
 a
t 
so
m
e
 t
im
e
s.
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 p
a
rk
in
g
 i
s 
se
e
n
 a
s 
e
x
p
e
n
si
ve
 a
n
d

co
m
m
u
te
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
 s
id
e
 r
o
a
d
s 
cr
e
a
te
s 
d
if
fi
cu
lt
ie
s 
fo
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
st
ri
ct
s 
a
cc
e
ss
 f
o
r

e
m
e
rg
e
n
cy
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s.

1
0

Si
gn

ag
e 

ov
er

ki
ll

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



“
L
o
ca
l 
ro
a
d
s 
u
se
d
 a
s 
ca
r 
p
a
rk
s 
o
n
 w
e
e
k
d
a
y
s…
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
fo
r 
se
rv
ic
e
/
e
m
e
rg
e
n
cy
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
n
d
 a
cc
e
ss
…

u
se
 o
f 
v
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s 
n
e
e
d
s 
re
v
ie
w
…
 T
u
d
o
rs
 a
re
 l
ik
e
 a
n
 a
ll
-d
a
y
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
…
”

1
.5

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 g
e
t 
SD
C
 t
o
 r
e
so
lv
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
in
 w
o
rs
t-
a
ff
e
ct
e
d
 r
o
a
d
s.

•
To
 r
e
vi
e
w
 f
re
sh
 o
p
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 a
re
a
.

IN
 A
D
D
IT
IO
N

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 s
p
e
ci
fi
c 
lo
ca
ti
o
n
s,
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
Sh
o
re
h
a
m
 R
o
a
d
, 
P
il
gr
im
s 
W
a
y 
W
e
st
 a
n
d
 S
ta
ti
o
n

R
o
a
d
, 
a
s 
b
e
in
g
 s
p
e
ci
a
ll
y 
d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s 
co
n
ce
rn
 o
ve
r 
th
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
a
g
e

d
o
m
in
a
te
s 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 e
ro
d
e
s 
it
s 
fa
b
ri
c
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r.
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
d
ro
p
-o
ff
 i
s 
a
 m
a
jo
r 
ir
ri
ta
n
t.

In
v
e
st
ig
a
ti
o
n
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
m
a
d
e
 
in
to
 
tr
a
ff
ic
-c
a
lm
in
g
 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
ty
p
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 
b
e

in
ve
st
ig
a
te
d
: 
a
 r
o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 
a
t 
B
u
b
b
le
st
o
n
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
ru
m
b
le
 s
tr
ip
s,
 v
e
h
ic
le
-a
ct
iv
a
te
d
 s
ig
n
s 
e
tc
.

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 w
il
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
va
n
t 
a
g
e
n
ci
e
s

 –
K
e
n
t 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s,
 p
o
li
c
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
si
g
n
/
e
n
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s 
su
c
h
 a
s 
C
iv
ic
 V
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 W
e
st
 K
e
n
t

A
O
N
B
 U
n
it
 –
 t
o
 d
e
ve
lo
p
 a
 b
a
la
n
ce
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
 t
o
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
a
s 
w
e
ll
 a
s 
fi
n
d
in
g
 q
u
ic
k

w
in
s 
a
t 
ke
y 
p
o
in
ts
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
o
 w
il
l 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
ke
 a
n
 a
ct
iv
e
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
, 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
s 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

o
r 
th
o
u
g
h
 b
o
d
ie
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 S
o
ci
e
ty
, 
sc
h
o
o
l 
P
TA
s 
a
n
d
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 g
ro
u
p
s.

1
3

1
2T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 W
H
AT
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 A
SK
E
D

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
ll
 r
a
n
d
o
m
ly
 s
e
le
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s.

“
Sp
e
e
d
in
g
 i
s 
a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 n
o
t 
b
e
ca
u
se
 t
h
e
 l
im
it
 i
s 
to
o
 h
ig
h
 b
u
t 
b
e
ca
u
se
 i
t’
s 
ig
n
o
re
d
 b
y
 s
o
m
e
 d
ri
v
e
rs

a
n
d
 i
s 
n
o
t 
e
n
fo
rc
e
d
…
.”

1
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 e
x
p
lo
re
 w
a
ys
 o
f 
e
n
su
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll
 d
ri
ve
rs
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 v
e
ry
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s 
a
n
d
 a
re

p
e
rs
u
a
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 o
b
se
rv
e
 t
h
e
m
.

•
To
 e
n
h
a
n
ce
 t
h
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
ch
a
ra
ct
e
r 
o
f 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 r
o
a
d
s 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
 o
f 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 ‘
g
a
te
w
a
ys
’

a
n
d
 s
im
il
a
r 
m
e
a
n
s 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 s
a
fe
r 
a
cc
e
ss
/
e
x
it
 f
ro
m
 d
ri
ve
w
a
ys
 o
n
to
 m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
s.

•
To
 s
e
e
k
 c
o
n
st
a
n
t 
su
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
ce
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s 
su
ch
 a
s

Sp
e
e
d
w
a
tc
h
.

•
To
 u
rg
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
ri
ve
rs
 t
o
 s
e
t 
g
o
o
d
 d
ri
vi
n
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
 t
o
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s 
a
s 
a

tr
a
ff
ic
-c
a
lm
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y.

“
W
id
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
a
re
 a
 g
re
a
t 
co
n
ce
rn
 w

h
e
n
 w

a
lk
in
g
 t
o
 s
ch
o
o
l 
w
it
h
 m

y

ch
il
d
re
n
…
 t
o
o
 m
u
ch
 h
e
a
v
y
 t
ra
ff
ic
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
…
”

1
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 e
n
ga
ge
 t
h
e
 h
e
lp
 o
f 
K
e
n
t 
H
ig
h
w
a
ys
 i
n
 a
 r
e
vi
e
w
 o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 r
o
a
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
a
lo
n
g 
P
il
gr
im
s 
W
a
y

E
 a
n
d
 W
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t.

•
To
 s
e
e
k
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
ve
h
ic
le
 w
id
th
 r
e
st
ri
ct
io
n
s.

“
P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 c
ro
ss
in
g
s 
n
e
e
d
e
d
, 
e
sp
e
ci
a
ll
y
 b
y
 B
u
b
b
le
st
o
n
e
 P
a
ra
d
e
, 
St
a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
ch
, 
R
y
e
 L
a
n
e
 o
n

P
il
g
ri
m
’s
 W
a
y
 W
e
st
”

1
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 f
in
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
st
 l
o
ca
ti
o
n
(s
) 
fo
r 
cr
o
ss
in
g
s 
a
n
d
 l
in
k
 t
h
e
se
 w
it
h
 t
ra
ff
ic
-c
a
lm
in
g
 m
e
a
su
re
s.

•
To
 c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
ch
a
n
gi
n
g 
th
e
 c
ro
ss
in
g 
b
y 
th
e
 m
a
in
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 t
o
 a
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
-c
o
n
tr
o
ll
e
d
 t
yp
e
 (
p
e
li
ca
n
).

“
P
a
ve
m
e
n
t 
su
rf
a
ce
s 
a
re
 i
n
 a
n
 a
p
p
a
ll
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
…
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
ll
y
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 e
ld
e
rl
y,
 p
a
rt
ia
ll
y
-

si
g
h
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
…
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 n
e
a
r 
th
e
 s
ch
o
o
l 
a
re
 s
o
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
sl
y
 n
a
rr
o
w
…
 r
e
p
la
ce
 v
il
la
g
e

ce
n
tr
e
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
a
u
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
…
”
 

1
.4

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 p
u
sh
 f
o
r 
re
vi
e
w
 a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
 o
f 
fo
o
tw
a
y 
p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
. 

•
To
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y 
o
f 
in
st
a
ll
in
g
 f
o
o
tw
a
ys
 w
h
e
re
 a
b
se
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
e
d
.

•
To
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lo
w
-l
e
ve
l 
li
g
h
ti
n
g
 o
r 
h
ig
h
-v
is
ib
il
it
y 
fo
o
tw
a
y 
fe
a
tu
re
s 
a
t 
k
e
y 
ri
sk
 p
o
in
ts
.

R
ep

ai
ri

ng
 lo

rr
y 

da
m

ag
e

W
al

ke
rs

 n
ot

 w
an

te
d

?

Agenda Item 7

Page 66



1
5

A
 S
T
R
O
N
G
 F
O
U
N
D
AT
IO
N

N
o
 o
n
e
 w
o
u
ld
 s
u
g
g
e
st
 t
h
a
t 
O
tf
o
rd
 i
s 
n
o
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y 
a
 c
a
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 m
o
re
 c
lu
b
s 
a
n
d

so
ci
e
ti
e
s 
in
 O
tf
o
rd
 t
h
a
n
 i
n
 a
lm
o
st
 a
n
y 
o
th
e
r 
p
a
ri
sh
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
st
. 
T
h
e
 c
h
u
rc
h
e
s 
a
re
 v
e
ry
 a
ct
iv
e

a
n
d
 d
o
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
p
ra
ct
ic
a
l 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
w
o
rk
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
co
n
si
d
e
ra
b
le
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 h
e
lp
 f
o
r 
th
e

e
ld
e
rl
y.
 W
e
 a
ls
o
 h
a
ve
 a
 w
e
ll
-r
u
n
 v
il
la
g
e
 M
e
m
o
ri
a
l 
H
a
ll
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
fu
ll
y 
u
ti
li
se
d
. 

H
o
w
e
ve
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s 
a
lw
a
ys
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
t 
ca
n
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 h
a
s 
p
o
in
te
d
 t
o

o
n
e
 o
r 
tw
o
 a
re
a
s 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
ve
, 
a
s 
it
 w
e
re
, 
sl
ip
p
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
a
ri
n
g
 n
e
t.
 T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
O
tf
o
rd

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
fu
tu
re
 t
o
d
a
y 
m
e
a
n
s 
w
e
 h
a
ve
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
th
e

in
cr
e
a
si
n
g
ly
 o
ld
e
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 a
re
 b
e
co
m
in
g
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
S

•
P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 a
 c
a
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.

•
Su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
 t
o
 a
 s
e
n
se
 o
f 
is
o
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
se
cu
ri
ty
 a
m
o
n
g
st
 t
h
e
 e
ld
e
rl
y.

•
H
e
lp
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
ll
e
ct
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 o
ld
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
.

•
Su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
 r
e
vi
e
w
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 o
f 
a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
e
ld
e
rl
y 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f

O
tf
o
rd
.

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IS
E
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 

C
O
N
C
E
R
N
S 
R
E
Q
U
IR
IN
G
 A
T
T
E
N
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
si
n
g
 d
e
si
g
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
.

•
B
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 o
u
r 
st
re
e
ts
.

•
Im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 R
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
o
ca
l 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 

•
P
ro
vi
d
in
g
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
ld
e
rl
y.

2 
 A

 C
ar

in
g 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
4
3
%
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 4
6
-6
4
 y
rs
. 

•
2
7
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 
o
ve
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
ld
.

•
1
1
%
 o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
ve
 m
o
b
il
it
y 
p
ro
b
le
m
s 
a
n
d
 8
%
 a
re
 h
o
ld
e
rs
 o
f 
b
lu
e
 b
a
d
g
e
s.

•
2
2
%
 o
f 
o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
li
ve
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
. 

•
5
3
%
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
ve
 l
iv
e
d
 h
e
re
 o
ve
r 
2
0
 y
e
a
rs
. 

1
4

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



1
7

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 W
H
AT
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 A
SK
E
D

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
ll
 r
a
n
d
o
m
ly
 s
e
le
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s.

“
Sh
e
lt
e
re
d
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 i
s 
so
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 m
a
n
y
 o
f 
u
s 
w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 
w
a
n
t 
to
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 t
o
 S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s

o
r 
O
rp
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
fr
ie
n
d
s.
”

2
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
ss
is
ta
n
ce
 o
f 
o
u
r 
P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
lo
ca
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
vi
d
in
g

sp
e
ci
a
ll
y 
d
e
si
g
n
e
d
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 o
ld
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
.

“
M
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 m
o
re
 a
cc
e
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 w
il
l 
a
ls
o
 h
e
lp
 f
a
m
il
ie
s 
w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d

b
u
g
g
ie
s.
”

2
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
In
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 S
a
fe
ty
 g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 t
o

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 p
u
rs
u
e
 w
a
ys
 t
o
 e
n
h
a
n
ce
 t
h
o
se
 p
u
b
li
c 
a
re
a
s 
w
h
ic
h
 c
re
a
te
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
is
a
b
le
d

a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 f
a
m
il
ie
s.

“
T
h
e
 H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
 i
s 
th
e
 o
n
ly
 p
la
ce
 a
t 
th
is
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 w
h
e
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n

ca
n
 r
u
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
. 
It
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 s
o
 m

u
ch
 m

o
re
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 –
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 p
la
y
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e

ch
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
y
b
e
 a
 s
e
a
t 
o
r 
tw

o
 f
o
r 
m
u
m
s.
”

“
C
o
u
ld
 w
e
 g
e
t 
a
 g
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
o
o
m
 f
o
r 
W
e
st
 O
tf
o
rd
? 
W
e
 b
a
d
ly
 n
e
e
d
 s
o
m
e
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 m
e
e
t,

so
 d
o
 o
u
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
…
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
m
u
m
s 
w
o
u
ld
 l
o
v
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
rè
ch
e
 h
e
re
.”

2
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
in
 p
ro
p
o
si
n
g
, 
d
e
ve
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
ro
a
d
e
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
a
ci
li
ti
e
s 
o
f 
H
a
le

L
a
n
e
 
R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 
G
ro
u
n
d
 
so
 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 
b
e
tt
e
r 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 
n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
a
ll
 
se
c
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
l

co
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 

“
K
n
o
w
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
’s
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 t
h
e
re
 t
o
 l
is
te
n
 o
r 
h
e
lp
, 
re
a
ll
y
 m

a
tt
e
rs
. 
A
 l
o
ca
l 
p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s 
a
lw
a
y
s

m
o
re
 f
ri
e
n
d
ly
 t
h
a
n
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
.”
 

2
.4

A
C
T
IO
N

•
A
: 
To
 d
is
cu
ss
 w
it
h
 O
tf
o
rd
 g
ro
u
p
s 
a
n
d
 a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
s,
 w
a
ys
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 a
 l
o
ca
l 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
ca
re
 m
ig
h
t

b
e
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
e
d
.

•
B
: 
To
 f
in
d
 w
a
ys
 t
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m
a
ke
 i
t 
m
o
re
 e
a
si
ly
 a
cc
e
ss
ib
le
.

“
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 p
o
o
r 
e
y
e
si
g
h
t 
fi
n
d
 r
e
a
d
in
g
 f
o
rm

s 
a
n
d
 l
o
ca
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
cu
lt
. 
C
a
n
 y
o
u
 h
e
lp
?”

2
.5

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
lo
ca
ll
y 
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 m
a
te
ri
a
l 
is
 a
va
il
a
b
le
 i
n
 l
a
rg
e
 t
yp
e
 a
n
d
/
o
r 
o
n
-l
in
e

w
h
e
n
e
ve
r 
p
o
ss
ib
le
.

1
6

“
A
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 p
a
ck
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
 g
re
a
t 
w
a
y
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
ce
 u
s 
to
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 t
e
ll
 u
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e

cl
u
b
s,
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
.”

2
.6

A
C
T
IO
N

•
In
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 
to
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 O
tf
o
rd

W
e
lc
o
m
e
 P
a
ck
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 n
e
w
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
.

IN
 A
D
D
IT
IO
N

M
a
n
y 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
co
n
ce
rn
s 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 f
e
lt
 d
o
 n
o
t 
co
m
e
 u
n
d
e
r

th
e
 r
e
m
it
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
s 
h
o
w
e
ve
r,
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
in
g
 w
h
e
re
ve
r 
p
o
ss
ib
le
.

M
A
N
Y
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID

“
F
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
in
g
le
, 
y
e
t 
a
b
le
, 
o
ld
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
 s
e
n
se
 o
f 
is
o
la
ti
o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
s

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
w
k
w
a
rd
n
e
ss
 o
f 
re
-b
u
il
d
in
g
 s
o
ci
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk
s 
a
s 
a
 s
in
g
le
 p
e
rs
o
n
.”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
co
n
ta
ct
 a
ll
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
lu
b
s 
a
n
d
 s
o
ci
e
ti
e
s 
to
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 d
o
 m
o
re
 t
o

w
e
lc
o
m
e
 s
in
gl
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
W
e
 w
il
l 
d
o
 o
u
r 
b
e
st
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
 s
in
gl
e
s 
a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
/
co
ff
e
e
 c
lu
b
 w
it
h
in

th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.

M
A
N
Y
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID

“
W
h
y
 c
a
n
’t
 O
tf
o
rd
 p
u
b
s 
b
e
 s
to
p
p
e
d
 f
ro
m
 h
a
v
in
g
 l
o
u
d
 m
u
si
c 
a
ft
e
r 
1
0
 p
m

a
t 
n
ig
h
t
?”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
If
 y
o
u
 a
re
 c
o
n
ce
rn
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
in
tr
u
si
ve
 n
o
is
e
, 
yo
u
 c
a
n
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 0
1
7
3
2
 2
2
7
0
0
0
 a
t 
a
n
y

ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
a
lk
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 O
ff
ic
e
r.
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 68



1
9

A
 S
T
R
O
N
G
 F
O
U
N
D
AT
IO
N

T
h
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 D
e
si
g
n
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
(2
0
0
8
) 
w
a
s 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
si
g
n

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 r
e
fl
e
ct
 t
h
e
 w
is
h
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
It
 w
a
s 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
d
o
cu
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
o
k
 t
w
o

ye
a
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
il
a
ti
o
n
. 
It
 s
ti
ll
 r
e
p
re
se
n
ts
 t
h
e
 c
le
a
r 
a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
ta
ti
ve
 v
o
ic
e
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
.

It
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 u
se
d
 o
n
 n
u
m
e
ro
u
s 
o
cc
a
si
o
n
s 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
rg
u
m
e
n
ts
 b
y 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
n
d

b
y
 
Se
v
e
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
. 
It
s 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
re
 
su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
u
p
h
e
ld
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
l

co
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 A
s 
su
ch
 i
t 
co
m
p
ri
se
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G

A
ll
 t
h
e
 D
e
si
g
n
 P
ri
n
ci
p
le
s 
e
x
p
re
ss
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 V
il
la
g
e
 D
e
si
g
n
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n

A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
, 
b
e
ca
u
se
 t
h
e
y 
re
la
te
 t
o
:

•
T
h
e
 L
a
n
d
sc
a
p
e
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
ce
s.

•
B
u
il
d
in
g
 D
e
si
g
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 E
n
ve
lo
p
e
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
. 

•
H
o
u
si
n
g
 D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
.

•
E
x
te
n
si
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 A
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s.

•
W
a
lk
in
g
 a
n
d
 V
e
h
ic
le
 m
o
ve
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 e
n
ve
lo
p
e
.

•
B
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s 
a
n
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
fu
rn
it
u
re
.

3 
Fu

tu
re

Pl
an

ni
ng

, D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
&
H
O
U
SI
N
G

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y 
1
,4
5
0
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
h
o
m
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
.

•
O
f 
th
e
se
, 
th
e
re
 a
re
 1
1
0
 h
o
m
e
s 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
s 
So
ci
a
l 
H
o
u
si
n
g
, 
7
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n

p
u
rc
h
a
se
d
 p
ri
va
te
ly
.

•
In
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 t
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 V
il
la
g
e
 D
e
si
g
n
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 b
y 
Se
ve
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
s 
su
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 g
u
id
a
n
ce
.

•
In
 2
0
1
0
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
1
 a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s 
to
 b
u
il
d
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s 
in
 O
tf
o
rd
, 
th
re
e
 o
f 
th
e
m
 a
s 
tw
o
-

fo
r-
o
n
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
.

•
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 s
ix
 o
f 
th
o
se
 a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s 
w
e
re
 r
e
fu
se
d
.

•
In
 2
0
1
0
, 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 6
4
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 o
n
ly
 4

re
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
w
e
re
 a
t 
va
ri
a
n
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
D
C
 d
e
ci
si
o
n
s.

1
8

T
he

 c
on

st
an

t 
fig

ht
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n
ou

r 
ru

ra
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

Agenda Item 7

Page 69



2
1

2
0

•
F
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
a
n
d
 B
ri
d
le
w
a
ys
.

•
T
h
e
 T
ra
d
in
g
 E
st
a
te
 a
n
d
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 a
re
a
.

•
A
g
ri
cu
lt
u
ra
l 
D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 C
O
N
C
E
R
N
S 
A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IE
S:

•
G
a
rd
e
n
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
w
o
-f
o
r-
o
n
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 o
b
sc
u
re
/
re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
’s

vi
e
w
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
ca
l 
co
u
n
tr
ys
id
e
 a
n
d
/
o
r 
cr
e
a
te
 t
h
e
 s
e
n
se
 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 d
e
n
si
ty
.

•
D
e
si
g
n
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 o
u
t 
o
f 
ch
a
ra
ct
e
r 
w
it
h
 l
o
ca
l 
h
o
m
e
s.
 

•
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
se
 o
f 
o
u
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 s
to
ck
.

•
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 o
ld
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 d
o
w
n
si
ze
, 
so

th
e
y 
d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
ve
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 s
in
g
le
-o
cc
u
p
ie
r 
p
ri
va
te
 h
o
m
e
s 
ca
n
 b
e
 r
e
le
a
se
d

o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
t.

•
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
te
ct
 o
u
r 
g
re
e
n
 a
re
a
s 
a
n
d
 a
vo
id
 i
n
tr
u
d
in
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 G
re
e
n
 B
e
lt
. 

•
To
 r
e
si
st
 a
n
y 
n
e
w
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 p
ro
je
ct
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
g
g
e
d
 o
n
to
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 e
n
ve
lo
p
e
.

E
F
F
E
C
T
IN
G
 A
 C
H
A
N
G
E
 I
N
 P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 R
E
G
U
L
AT
IO
N
S 

A
S 
T
H
E
Y
 A
F
F
E
C
T
 O
U
R
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y

O
n
e
 a
sp
e
ct
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 l
a
w
 s
ti
ll
 s
ta
n
d
s 
a
t 
va
ri
a
n
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
o
cr
a
ti
c 
ri
g
h
ts
 o
f 
o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y.

A
t 
p
re
se
n
t 
a
 p
ro
sp
e
ct
iv
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
e
r 
h
a
s 
a
 r
ig
h
t 
o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
l 
if
 a
n
 a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm
is
si
o
n

is
 r
e
fu
se
d
, 
w
h
e
re
a
s 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y/
P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y 
h
a
s 
n
o
 s
u
ch
 s
im
il
a
r 
ri
g
h
t 
o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
l

a
g
a
in
st
 a
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
a
t 
va
ri
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
is
h
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 O
u
r 
p
a
ri
sh

co
u
n
ci
l 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n
 a
w
a
re
, 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
ce
rn
e
d
, 
th
a
t 
th
o
se
 a
g
g
ri
e
ve
d

b
y 
a
 g
ra
n
t 
o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm
is
si
o
n
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
ve
 s
u
ch
 a
 r
ig
h
t 
o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
l,
 d
e
sp
it
e
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
st
 e
ff
o
rt
s 
to

h
ig
h
li
g
h
t 
th
is
 i
ss
u
e
 a
n
d
 p
re
ss
 f
o
r 
re
vi
e
w
s 
o
f 
d
e
ci
si
o
n
s 
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
st
.

O
u
r 
P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 s
e
e
k
s 
to
 d
o
 e
ve
ry
th
in
g
 p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 l
a
w

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
in
g
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
in
 t
h
e
 L
o
ca
li
sm
 B
il
l.
 T
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 i
n
te
n
d
s 
a
ct
iv
e
ly
 t
o
 l
o
b
b
y 
fo
r

a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
ch
a
n
g
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 l
a
w
s 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
ca
li
sm
 B
il
l 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to

o
b
ta
in
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y 
ri
g
h
t 
o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
l 
in
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 m
a
tt
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y 
ca
n
 b
e
 a
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
o
r

a
 l
o
c
a
l 
vo
lu
n
ta
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
O
n
ly
 i
n
 t
h
is
 w
a
y
 w
il
l 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
e
c
o
m
e

re
sp
e
ct
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s.

W
ar

m
 c

ol
ou

ra
ti

on
 o

f t
ile

 a
nd

 lo
ca

lly
 m

ad
e 

br
ic

k
co

nt
ri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
at

tr
ac

ti
on

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e.
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 70



2
3

A
 S
T
R
O
N
G
 F
O
U
N
D
AT
IO
N

‘V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r’
 n
o
 i
d
le
 b
o
a
st
, 
b
u
t 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 s
u
ch
 a
 c
la
im
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s 
e
ff
o
rt
 a
n
d
 d
e
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 b
y

th
e
 w
h
o
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 W
it
h
 v
e
ry
 f
e
w
 e
x
ce
p
ti
o
n
s 
th
e
re
 i
s 
li
tt
le
 l
it
te
r 
o
n
 o
u
r 
st
re
e
ts
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 d
o
g

d
ro
p
p
in
g
s 
re
m
a
in
 a
 c
o
n
st
a
n
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
 i
n
 o
n
e
 o
r 
tw
o
 a
re
a
s.
 O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
ce
iv
e
s 
a
 c
o
n
st
a
n
t 
st
re
a
m
 o
f

vi
si
to
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 i
s 
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m
a
in
 h
u
b
s 
fo
r 
w
a
lk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
a
m
b
le
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
p
p
e
r

D
a
re
n
t 
va
ll
e
y.
 V
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 w
il
l 
in
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 y
e
a
rs
 w
it
h

th
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
h
e
 T
h
a
m
e
s 
G
a
te
w
a
y 
p
ro
je
ct
. 
T
h
e
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s 
C
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n

A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
co
n
tr
ib
u
te
s 
to
 o
u
r 
a
im
 o
f 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 O
tf
o
rd
 a
s 
a
n
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 v
il
la
g
e
. 
W
e

w
is
h
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
 t
h
ro
u
gh
 o
n
 i
ts
 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s,
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
vi
n
g 
th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
fo
o
tw
a
ys
,

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
lu
tt
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
, 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 s
p
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
-

in
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
 o
f 
fi
n
g
e
r-
p
o
st
s 
e
tc
.

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 T
A
SK
S 
A
S 
P
R
IO
R
IT
IE
S

•
M
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 m
o
re
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
.

•
P
ro
vi
d
e
 e
ff
e
ct
iv
e
 w
a
ys
 o
f 
sh
o
w
in
g
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 h
is
to
ry
 t
o
 v
is
it
o
rs
. 

•
D
e
ve
lo
p
 P
a
la
ce
 F
ie
ld
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
la
ce
 t
o
w
e
r 
a
s 
a
 h
is
to
ri
ca
l 
a
ss
e
t.

•
M
a
k
e
 B
u
b
b
le
st
o
n
e
 P
a
ra
d
e
 m
o
re
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
r 
fo
r 
p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s.
 

•
In
cr
e
a
se
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
o
g
 m
e
ss
 b
in
s.

4 
 M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

n 
AT
T
R
A
C
T
IV
E
 V
IL
L
A
G
E

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
O
tf
o
rd
 i
s 
th
e
 o
n
ly
 v
il
la
g
e
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 w
it
h
 a
 l
is
te
d
 v
il
la
g
e
 p
o
n
d
.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 4
1
 l
is
te
d
 s
tr
u
ct
u
re
s 
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
.

•
W
e
 w
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
st
ig
io
u
s 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r 
a
w
a
rd
 i
n
 2
0
0
2
 f
o
r 
So
u
th
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
st

E
n
g
la
n
d

•
O
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 h
a
s 
re
m
a
in
s 
o
f 
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
rg
e
st
 p
a
la
ce
s 
in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
.

•
In
 1
5
2
0
 H
e
n
ry
 V
II
I 
a
n
d
 K
a
th
e
ri
n
e
 o
f 
A
ra
g
o
n
 s
ta
ye
d
 h
e
re
 w
it
h
 a
 r
e
ti
n
u
e
 o
f 
5
,0
0
0
, 
e
n
 r
o
u
te
 t
o

th
e
 F
ie
ld
 o
f 
C
lo
th
 o
f 
G
o
ld
 

•
T
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 o
ve
r 
1
,0
0
0
 v
is
it
o
rs
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
w
o
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
s 
a
n
d
 f
o
u
r 
p
u
b
li
c 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
ce
s.

•
T
h
e
 P
il
g
ri
m
s 
W
a
y,
 t
h
e
 D
a
re
n
t 
V
a
ll
e
y 
P
a
th
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 D
o
w
n
s 
W
a
y,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
a
n

in
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ro
u
te
, 
p
a
ss
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

2
2

Agenda Item 7

Page 71



T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D
 T
H
E
 N
E
E
D
 T
O
 P
U
R
SU
E
 

T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
S

•
To
 h
o
ld
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
re
vi
e
w
s 
o
f 
w
a
ys
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 m
a
d
e
 m
o
re
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
. 

•
To
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
n
h
a
n
ci
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 h
is
to
ri
c 
p
a
st
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

•
To
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
/
 r
e
vi
e
w
 w
a
ys
 o
f 
sh
o
w
in
g
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 h
is
to
ry
 t
o
 v
is
it
o
rs
.

•
To
 m
a
rk
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 W
H
AT
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 A
SK
E
D

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
ll
 r
a
n
d
o
m
ly
 s
e
le
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s.

“
A
 g
re
a
t 
sh
a
m
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 l
o
o
k
s 
so
 u
n
-c
a
re
d
 f
o
r.
 O
th
e
r 
v
il
la
g
e
s 
li
k
e
 o
u
rs
 s
e
e
m
 t
o

m
a
k
e
 m
o
re
 o
f 
a
n
 e
ff
o
rt
.”

4
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
re
ta
il
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
ri
sh
 a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
s,
 t
o
 d
ra
w
 u
p
 a
 l
is
t 
o
f 
‘i
m
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
’

w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
th
e
 l
o
o
k
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 g
a
th
e
r 
su
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 c
a
rr
y 
th
e
m
 o
u
t.
 T
h
e

P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 S
a
fe
ty
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
ve
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 u
n
su
it
a
b
le
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
K
C
C
 H
ig
h
w
a
ys

D
e
p
t.

“
U
n
le
ss
 y
o
u
 l
iv
e
 h
e
re
, 
y
o
u
 w

o
u
ld
 k
n
o
w
 n
o
th
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
O
tf
o
rd
’s
 h
is
to
ry
 o
r 
th
e
 o
ri
g
in
s 
o
f 
it
s

b
u
il
d
in
g
s.
 C
a
n
’t
 w
e
 f
in
d
 a
 w
a
y
 t
o
 t
e
ll
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
e
 s
to
ri
e
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
?”

4
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
re
ta
il
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
, 
to
 c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
a
ys
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h

th
e
 s
to
ri
e
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
p
a
st
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 i
ll
u
st
ra
te
d
 f
o
r 
vi
si
to
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
o
se
 h
o
u
se
s 
o
f 
h
is
to
ri
ca
l

n
o
te
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

“
R
e
st
o
re
 t
h
e
 P
a
la
ce
 T
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 p
u
t 
it
 t
o
 g
o
o
d
 u
se
 –
 d
o
n
’t
 l
e
t 
it
 c
ru
m
b
le
 u
n
ti
l 
it
 i
s 
b
e
y
o
n
d
 e
co
n
o
m
ic

re
p
a
ir
. 
T
h
e
 P
a
la
ce
 f
ie
ld
 i
s 
lo
n
g
 o
v
e
rd
u
e
 f
o
r 
b
e
in
g
 s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
ca
ll
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s 
a
 c
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n

si
te
. 
C
a
n
 w
e
 r
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
o
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
?”

4
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
In
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 E
n
gl
is
h
 H
e
ri
ta
ge
, 
a
n
d
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
ks
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r

P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 s
e
e
k 
im
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
la
ce
 T
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 G
a
te
h
o
u
se
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
re
ve
n
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r

e
ro
si
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
ca
y.
 T
h
ro
u
gh
 u
se
 o
f 
ta
st
e
fu
l 
e
xp
la
n
a
to
ry
 s
ig
n
a
ge
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 v
is
it
s,
 t
o
 ‘
p
ro
m
o
te
’

th
e
 P
a
la
ce
 s
it
e
 a
s 
a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 h
is
to
ri
ca
l 
a
ss
e
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

2
5

2
4

Be
lo

w
 le

ft
: a

 c
om

m
un

it
y 

pr
io

ri
ty

 is
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 P
al

ac
e 

Fi
el

d 
an

d 
th

e
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 T
ud

or
 to

w
er

 a
s h

ist
or

ic
al

 a
ss

et
s t

o 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

.

Agenda Item 7

Page 72



2
7

2
6

“
B
u
b
b
le
st
o
n
e
 P
a
ra
d
e
 l
o
o
k
s 
v
e
ry
 d
e
p
re
ss
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
o
w
n
-m

a
rk
e
t.
 I
t 
n
e
e
d
s 
to
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 m
o
re
 i
n
 k
e
e
p
in
g

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 c
h
a
ra
ct
e
r.
 S
ig
n
a
g
e
, 
tr
e
e
s,
 h
a
n
g
in
g
 b
a
sk
e
ts
…
 P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 s
a
fe
ty
 i
s 
co
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y

co
m
p
ro
m
is
e
d
 b
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 p
a
rk
 b
e
si
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
p
s.
”
 

4
.4

A
C
T
IO
N

•
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
B
u
b
b
le
st
o
n
e
 P
a
ra
d
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
il
e
rs
, 
to
 p
ro
p
o
se

w
a
ys
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
d
e
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 m
a
d
e
 m
o
re
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
co
m
e
 s
a
fe
r 
fo
r 
p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s.

T
h
is
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
.

IN
 A
D
D
IT
IO
N

M
A
N
Y
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID

“
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 i
n
su
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
d
o
g
g
ie
 b
in
s 
in
 s
o
m
e
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
H
o
t 
sp
o
ts
, 
n
a
m
e
ly

P
ic
k
m
o
ss
 L
a
n
e
, 
P
a
la
ce
 F
ie
ld
 a
n
d
 H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 R
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
.”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
ve
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 
m
a
d
e
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 w
it
h
 p
o
ss
ib
le
 b
e
n
e
fa
ct
o
rs
 t
o
 r
e
so
lv
e
 t
h
is
 p
ro
b
le
m

a
n
d
 h
a
ve
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
p
ra
ct
ic
a
l 
h
e
lp
. 

M
A
N
Y
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID

“
W
it
h
 m

o
re
 v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 O
tf
o
rd
, 
a
n
d
 a
 b
u
sy
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
, 
w
h
e
re
 a
re
 v
is
it
o
rs

g
o
in
g
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
?”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
T
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
ce
n
tr
a
ti
n
g
 o
n
 P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
re
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ri
n
g
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s

to
 d
is
cu
ss
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l.
 I
t 
is
 h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n
s 
w
il
l 
b
e
 p
u
t

to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
in
 d
u
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
. 

..
..

Be
lo

w
: t

he
 c

ru
m

bl
in

g 
pa

la
ce

 to
w

er
, a

nd
 a

 sc
ru

ff
y 

tr
af

ic
 is

la
nd

.

R
oo

m
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t?
..

..
A

bo
ve

: B
ub

bl
es

to
ne

 p
ar

ad
e.

..
. 

A
 p

la
nt

er
 o

f s
pr

in
g 

flo
w

er
s o

ut
si

de
 O

tf
or

d 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

br
ig

ht
en

s-
up

 a
 d

ul
l M

ar
ch

 d
ay

..

Agenda Item 7

Page 73



C
A
N
 W
E
 M
A
K
E
 A
 D
IF
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
?

It
’s
 e
a
sy
 t
o
 f
e
e
l 
h
e
lp
le
ss
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
ce
 o
f 
g
lo
b
a
l 
p
re
ss
u
re
s 
o
n
 o
u
r 
cl
im
a
te
. 
W
h
a
t 
ca
n
 w
e
 d
o
 h
e
re
 i
n

O
tf
o
rd
? 
If
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 e
ve
ry
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
w
e
re
 t
o
 t
a
ke
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
tu
re
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
a
n
d
s,
 w
e
 c
o
u
ld
 s
ta
rt

to
 m
a
k
e
 a
 d
if
fe
re
n
ce
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
o
u
sa
n
d
s 
o
f 
lo
ca
l 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
in
 t
h
e
 U
K
 w
h
o
 a
re
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
a
k
e

a
ct
io
n
 o
n
 c
li
m
a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 i
s 
tr
u
e
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
co
u
n
tr
ie
s.
 

IN
 D
IS
C
U
SS
IO
N
S,
 T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
E
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 P
R
IN
C
IP
L
E
S

•
To
 d
e
ve
lo
p
 a
 b
a
se
 o
f 
su
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
b
e
co
m
in
g
 m
o
re
 g
re
e
n
 a
s 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.

•
To
 h
o
ld
 e
ve
n
ts
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 a
d
va
n
ta
g
e
s 
o
f 
a
 g
re
e
n
e
r 
li
fe
st
yl
e
. 

•
To
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
ca
l 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
ch
o
o
ls
. 

•
To
 i
n
ve
st
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 l
o
w
-c
a
rb
o
n
 h
e
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
u
b
li
c/
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
b
u
il
d
in
g
s.

•
To
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
 t
h
e
 e
x
a
ct
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
it
s 
re
d
u
ct
io
n
.

•
To
 s
e
t 
a
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 s
ch
e
d
u
le
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 H
A
V
E
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D

•
To
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 i
n
vo
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
in
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
ce
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 c
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 T
H
E
 V
IE
W
S 
E
X
P
R
E
SS
E
D

5
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 f
o
rm
 a
 n
e
w
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
ll
e
d
 ‘
O
tf
o
rd
 G
re
e
n
 T
e
a
m
’.
 I
ts
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
 i
s 
to

g
e
n
e
ra
te
 i
n
vo
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
in
 r
e
d
u
ci
n
g
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 c
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t.

5
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 d
e
ve
lo
p
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 h
o
ld
 e
ve
n
ts
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
 g
re
e
n
e
r 
li
fe
st
yl
e
. 
(F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
n
 N
o
ve
m
b
e
r

2
0
1
0
 w
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 a
 f
a
m
il
y 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
a
y 
o
n
 G
re
e
n
 I
ss
u
e
s 
a
t 
O
tf
o
rd
 L
ib
ra
ry
).

5
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
ca
l 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
ch
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
w
a
ys
 t
h
a
t

th
e
y 
ca
n
 r
e
d
u
ce
 e
n
e
rg
y 
u
se
.

5
.4

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 i
n
v
e
st
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
lo
w
-c
a
rb
o
n
 h
e
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
u
b
li
c
/
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s,
 e
g
 t
h
o
se

b
u
il
d
in
g
s 
in
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

5
.5

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
it
s 
re
d
u
ct
io
n
 a
n
d
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

p
la
n
.

2
9

5 
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
a 
G
R
E
E
N
E
R
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
O
tf
o
rd
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y 
p
ro
d
u
ce
s 
a
n
 e
st
im
a
te
d
 1
0
,0
0
0
 t
o
n
n
e
s 
o
f 
C
O
2
p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 u
se
 o
f 
g
a
s

a
n
d
 e
le
ct
ri
ci
ty
 i
n
 o
u
r 
h
o
m
e
s.
 T
h
a
t'
s 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 C
O
2
to
 f
il
l 
th
e
 A
lb
e
rt
 H
a
ll
 6
 t
im
e
s 
o
ve
r 
e
a
ch
 y
e
a
r.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 m
a
n
y 
h
o
m
e
s 
in
 O
tf
o
rd
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 b
e
tt
e
r 
h
o
m
e
 i
n
su
la
ti
o
n
 (
so
u
rc
e
:

SD
C
 s
u
rv
e
y)
.

•
7
4
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U
K
 a
re
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 f
o
r 
w
a
ys
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
ce
 t
h
e
ir
 e
n
e
rg
y 
b
il
ls
 (
so
u
rc
e
: 
E
n
e
rg
y

Sa
vi
n
g
s 
Tr
u
st
).

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 m
a
n
y 
o
th
e
r 
w
a
ys
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
ce
 o
u
r 
ca
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
re
a
te
 a
 g
re
e
n
e
r

co
m
m
u
n
it
y.

2
8

Agenda Item 7

Page 74



T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 W
H
AT
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 A
SK
E
D

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
ll
 r
a
n
d
o
m
ly
 s
e
le
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s.

“
C
y
cl
e
 l
a
n
e
s 
a
n
d
 c
y
cl
e
 p
a
th
s 
a
re
 b
a
d
ly
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
. 
C
y
cl
in
g
 o
n
 a
ll
 l
o
ca
l 
ro
a
d
s 
is
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s.

–
Sh
a
re
d
 u
se
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
o
 e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
’s
 b
e
n
e
fi
t.
”

6
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 a
ct
iv
e
ly
 r
e
vi
e
w
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
sa
fe
 c
yc
le
 r
o
u
te
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 a
n
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f

th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 c
o
u
n
ci
l,
 t
o
 l
o
b
b
y 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
. 
W
e
 r
e
co
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
 e
co
n
o
m
ic
 r
e
st
ra
in
ts
,

n
e
w
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 p
a
th
s 
ca
n
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 i
n
cl
u
d
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 p
la
n
n
in
g
.

“
W
h
y
 c
a
n
’t
 w
e
 u
se
 o
u
r 
co
u
n
tr
y
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
fo
r 
cy
cl
in
g
? 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 l
o
ts
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
o
ff
-r
o
a
d
.”

6
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
C
yc
li
n
g
 o
n
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
is
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s 
to
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s 
a
n
d
 i
ll
e
g
a
l.
 U
se
 o
f 
b
ri
d
le
 p
a
th
s 
is
 p
e
rm
is
si
b
le
,

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
ca
n
 o
n
 o
cc
a
si
o
n
 b
e
 d
if
fi
cu
lt
. 
P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s 
(a
n
d
 h
o
rs
e
s)
 a
lw
a
ys
 h
a
ve
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
.

T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
re
vi
e
w
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
b
ri
d
le

p
a
th
s 
to
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
m
o
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
cy
cl
in
g
 (
a
n
d
 j
o
g
g
in
g
).

•
T
h
e
 T
h
a
m
e
s 
G
a
te
w
a
y
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
te
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 c
y
c
le
 p
a
th
 (
th
e
 D
a
re
n
t 
V
a
ll
e
y

p
a
th
) 
w
il
l 
b
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
 l
in
k
in
g
 O
tf
o
rd
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
fl
u
e
n
ce
 o
f 
th
e
 D
a
re
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e

T
h
a
m
e
s.
 T
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
e
rn
 s
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 p
a
th
 h
a
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 w
il
l

m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
ss
 a
n
d
 a
d
vi
se
.

3
1

A
N
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W

M
o
st
 v
il
la
g
e
s 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
n
v
io
u
s 
o
f 
th
e
 m
a
n
y
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
in
 O
tf
o
rd
 f
o
r 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 f
it
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re

h
o
w
e
ve
r,
 s
o
m
e
 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s,
 l
ik
e
 c
yc
li
n
g
 o
r 
b
a
d
m
in
to
n
, 
th
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 
su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
. 
B
e
ca
u
se
 t
h
in
g
s 
e
vo
lv
e

w
it
h
 t
im
e
, 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 m
a
n
y 
fi
tn
e
ss
/
sp
o
rt
in
g
 c
lu
b
s 
is
 n
o
t 
re
a
d
il
y 
a
va
il
a
b
le
. 
T
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n

q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 h
a
s 
n
o
w
 p
o
in
te
d
 u
p
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 a
ll
o
w
 u
s 
to
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 t
o

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
ce
rn
s.

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IS
E
D
 

T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 C
O
N
C
E
R
N
S 
R
E
Q
U
IR
IN
G
 A
T
T
E
N
T
IO
N

•
A
n
 a
b
se
n
ce
 o
f 
sa
fe
 c
yc
le
 r
o
u
te
s.
 

•
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
o
tp
a
th
s 
g
e
t 
o
ve
rg
ro
w
n
 o
r 
u
n
ca
re
d
 f
o
r.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 c
le
a
r 
p
u
b
li
c 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 b
o
a
rd
s 
sh
o
w
in
g
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
 r
o
u
te
s.

•
It
 i
s 
d
if
fi
cu
lt
 t
o
 f
in
d
 o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
sp
o
rt
s 
a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
-f
it
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
a
re
 a
va
il
a
b
le
.

•
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
n
o
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
to
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
 o
ve
r 
4
5
s 
k
e
e
p
 f
it
. 

•
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
a
 l
a
ck
 o
f 
to
d
d
le
rs
/
ju
n
io
r 
p
la
yg
ro
u
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 H
A
V
E
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D

•
To
 r
e
gu
la
rl
y 
re
vi
e
w
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
ce
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
a
tt
a
in
in
g 
a
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r 
li
fe
st
yl
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
,

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y 
fo
r 
th
e
 i
n
cr
e
a
si
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 p
e
rs
o
n
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
.

6 
 E

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 a

 F
IT
T
E
R
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
O
tf
o
rd
 f
o
rm
s 
th
e
 h
u
b
 o
f 
n
u
m
e
ro
u
s 
w
a
lk
s 
in
to
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 D
o
w
n
s 
a
n
d
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 D
a
re
n
t 
V
a
ll
e
y.

•
Sp
o
rt
s 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
a
 w
id
e
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
 a
re
 a
va
il
a
b
le
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 c
ri
ck
e
t,
 f
o
o
tb
a
ll
, 
te
n
n
is
,

p
é
ta
n
q
u
e
, 
ta
b
le
 t
e
n
n
is
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
-m
a
t 
b
o
w
ls
.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 m
a
n
y 
cl
u
b
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
to
 k
e
e
p
 f
it
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 a
e
ro
b
ic
s,
 y
o
g
a
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
y 
st
yl
e
s 
o
f

d
a
n
ce
.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 f
a
ci
li
ti
e
s 
fo
r 
d
e
si
g
n
a
te
d
 c
yc
le
 l
a
n
e
s 
o
r 
p
a
th
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
.

•
O
ve
r 
7
0
%
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
’s
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 o
ve
r 
4
5
, 
a
n
d
 3
0
%
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 o
ve
r 
6
5
.

3
0

Agenda Item 7

Page 75



IN
 A
D
D
IT
IO
N

•
To
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 ‘
c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
w
a
lk
s’
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
y
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il

w
h
ic
h
 d
e
p
a
rt
 f
ro
m
 O
tf
o
rd
. 

•
In
 c
o
n
ju
n
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 l
o
ca
l 
ra
m
b
le
rs
 a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
ca
l 
la
n
d
-o
w
n
e
rs
 t
o

in
tr
o
d
u
ce
 o
cc
a
si
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 b
o
a
rd
s 
o
n
 l
o
ca
l 
fl
o
ra
 a
n
d
 f
a
u
n
a
.

•
Su
b
je
ct
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
sc
h
o
o
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s,
 p
a
re
n
ts
/
g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
va
n
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s,

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
-e
st
a
b
li
sh
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
‘w
a
lk
in
g
 b
u
se
s’
 t
o
 a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 t
h
a
t

th
e
y 
ca
n
 b
e
 a
ch
ie
ve
d
 w
it
h
 s
a
fe
ty
.

•
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
h
a
ve
 m
a
d
e
 i
t 
cl
e
a
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
 i
s 
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 f
o
r 
th
e
 u
se
 o
f

a
ll
 v
il
la
g
e
rs
 o
f 
a
ll
 a
g
e
s,
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
si
m
p
ly
 t
h
e
 p
re
ro
g
a
ti
ve
 o
f 
sp
o
rt
s 
p
e
o
p
le
.

3
3

“
T
h
e
 M
o
u
n
t 
u
p
p
e
r 
fo
o
tp
a
th
 i
s 
g
e
tt
in
g
 w
a
sh
e
d
 a
w
a
y.
 P
ic
k
m
o
ss
 L
a
n
e
 g
e
ts
 o
v
e
rg
ro
w
n
 w
it
h
 n
e
tt
le
s 
–

y
o
u
 c
a
n
’t
 t
a
k
e
 a
 p
u
sh
ch
a
ir
 d
o
w
n
 t
h
e
re
. 
T
h
e
 C
h
u
rc
h
-t
o
-S
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
 g
e
ts
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s 
w
it
h

o
v
e
rh
a
n
g
in
g
 b
ra
m
b
le
s 
a
n
d
 n
e
tt
le
s.
”

6
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
 o
f 
o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
is
 t
h
e
 r
e
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y 
o
f 
K
e
n
t 
C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
re
g
u
la
rl
y 
a
sk
s 
th
e
m
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
ct
io
n
. 
F
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 a
re
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 b
y 
a

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s.
 T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
, 
a
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
fo
o
tp
a
th
s,
 w
il
l 
id
e
n
ti
fy

sp
e
ci
fi
c 
p
ro
b
le
m
 a
re
a
s 
a
n
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 w
il
l 
se
e
k
 t
o
 h
a
ve
 t
h
e
m
 r
e
ct
if
ie
d
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

ye
a
r,
 g
ro
u
p
s 
o
f 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 m
a
y 
b
e
 a
sk
e
d
 t
o
 a
ss
is
t 
in
 r
e
ct
if
yi
n
g
 p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
s.

“
U
n
le
ss
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
a
m
b
le
rs
 m

a
p
, 
y
o
u
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 i
d
e
a
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
a
re
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
.

W
h
y
 d
o
n
’t
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
p
e
r 
d
is
p
la
y
 b
o
a
rd
s 
fo
r 
v
is
it
o
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 G
re
e
n
?”
 

6
.4

A
C
T
IO
N

•
To
 d
e
si
g
n
, 
e
st
im
a
te
 a
n
d
 i
n
st
a
ll
 a
n
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 p
ic
to
ri
a
l 
ra
m
b
le
rs
’ 
m
a
p
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a

fo
r 
u
se
 b
y 
vi
si
to
rs
 d
e
p
a
rt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
il
w
a
y 
st
a
ti
o
n
. 

•
To
 l
in
k
 t
h
is
 w
it
h
 w
o
o
d
e
n
 f
in
g
e
r 
p
o
st
s 
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 t
o
 d
e
p
a
rt
u
re
 p
o
in
ts
.

“
W
h
y
 i
s 
th
e
re
 n
o
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 f
in
d
 o
u
t 
d
e
ta
il
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
p
o
rt
s 
cl
u
b
s 
a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
-f
it
 c
la
ss
e
s
?”

6
.5

A
C
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 m
a
n
y 
sp
o
rt
s 
cl
u
b
s 
a
n
d
 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
th
a
t 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y

e
x
is
t.
 T
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 p
u
b
li
sh
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

w
w
.o
tf
o
rd
.i
n
fo
w
e
b
si
te
. 
H
a
rd
 c
o
p
ie
s 
w
il
l 
b
e
 a
va
il
a
b
le
 i
n

th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 O
ff
ic
e
.

“
C
o
u
ld
 w
e
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
in
tr
o
d
u
ci
n
g
 t
h
e
 m
o
d
e
rn
 f
it
n
e
ss
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
is
 s
o
 p
o
p
u
la
r 
e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 i
n
 p
a
rk
s

fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 
k
e
e
p
-f
it
te
rs
?”

6
.6

A
C
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
re
vi
e
w
 t
h
e
 t
yp
e
s 
a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
in
tr
o
d
u
ci
n
g
 o
u
t-
d
o
o
rs
 m
o
d
e
rn
,

va
n
d
a
l-
p
ro
o
f,
 f
it
n
e
ss
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
u
se
 b
y 
a
d
u
lt
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
W
e
 w
il
l 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
st
a
b
li
sh
 a
 c
le
a
r

in
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
a
n
t 
b
y 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y,
 a
s 
w
e
ll
 a
s 
su
p
p
o
rt
 b
y 
th
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
b
e
fo
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n

b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t.

“
H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
 r
e
a
ll
y
 n
e
e
d
s 
a
 p
ro
p
e
r 
to
d
d
le
rs
 p
la
y
g
ro
u
n
d
. 
M
a
n
y
 o
f 
u
s 
h
a
v
e
 k
id
d
ie
s

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 s
w
in
g
s 
a
re
 n
o
t 
e
n
o
u
g
h
.”

6
.7

A
C
T
IO
N

•
If
 f
u
n
d
s 
b
e
co
m
e
 a
va
il
a
b
le
 a
s 
h
o
p
e
d
, 
th
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
w
il
l 
b
e
 d
is
cu
ss
in
g

w
it
h
 l
o
ca
l 
p
a
re
n
ts
 i
d
e
a
s 
fo
r 
su
it
a
b
le
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 l
o
ca
ti
o
n
. 

3
2

Agenda Item 7

Page 76



M
A
K
IN
G
 A
 P
O
SI
T
IV
E
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
A
s 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
, 
w
e
 c
a
n
 a
ll
 d
o
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 p
o
si
ti
v
e
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
lo
si
n
g
 o
u
r 
c
ru
c
ia
l 
sh
o
p
s 
a
n
d

se
rv
ic
e
s.
 T
h
e
 r
u
le
 o
f 
th
u
m
b
 i
s 
th
a
t 
if
 w
e
 d
o
n
’t
 u
se
 i
t,
 w
e
 w
il
l 
lo
se
 i
t.
 T
h
a
t 
is
 w
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
h
a
p
p
e
n
.

T
h
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 i
s 
o
u
rs
.

•
It
 i
s 
e
ss
e
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
w
e
 s
tr
iv
e
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 f
a
ci
li
ti
e
s 
w
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y 
h
a
ve
 a
va
il
a
b
le
, 
b
y 
co
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y

m
a
k
in
g
 u
se
 o
f 
th
e
m
 a
n
d
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
in
g
 o
th
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
h
o
p
 l
o
ca
ll
y 
w
h
e
n
e
ve
r 
p
o
ss
ib
le
.

•
M
a
n
y 
o
f 
o
u
r 
re
ta
il
 s
h
o
p
s,
 r
e
st
a
u
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
s 
re
ly
 h
e
a
vi
ly
 u
p
o
n
 v
is
it
o
r 
tr
a
d
e
. 
M
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 v
is
it
o
r

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce
 a
s 
e
n
jo
ya
b
le
 a
s 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
fa
ct
o
r 
in
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
lo
ca
l 
re
ta
il
 e
co
n
o
m
y.

•
B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 V
e
st
ry
 E
st
a
te
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 w
it
h
 r
is
in
g
 r
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
in
g
 r
a
te
s 
a
n
d
 m
a
n
y 
h
a
ve
 c
lo
se
d

in
 t
h
e
 p
a
st
 y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
ir
 s
it
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
-o
c
c
u
p
ie
d
. 
It
 i
s 
th
e
 h
o
p
e
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 t
o

in
ve
st
ig
a
te
 w
a
ys
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 V
e
st
ry
 E
st
a
te
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
o
ca
l

e
co
n
o
m
y.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 H
A
V
E
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D

•
To
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
ll
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
h
o
p
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
.

•
To
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
m
o
te
 O
tf
o
rd
 a
s 
a
n
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 v
e
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
vi
si
to
rs
 t
o
 s
h
o
p
.

•
To
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
te
ct
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s.
 

•
To
 p
u
rs
u
e
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
u
b
li
c 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 W
H
AT
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 A
SK
E
D

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
ll
 r
a
n
d
o
m
ly
 s
e
le
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s.

“
W
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
ct
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
sh
o
p
s 
to
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
ju
st
 a
n
ti
q
u
e
 a
n
d
 b
ri
c-
a
-b
ra
c

sh
o
p
s.
 W
e
 a
re
 b
e
co
m
in
g
 l
ik
e
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
B
ra
st
e
a
d
.”

7
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 s
h
o
p
 l
o
c
a
ll
y 
w
h
e
re
ve
r 
p
o
ss
ib
le
, 
si
n
c
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 w
il
l

d
e
ci
d
e
 w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
th
ri
ve
 i
n
 o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
. 

3
5

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IS
E
D
 

T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 C
O
N
C
E
R
N
S 
R
E
Q
U
IR
IN
G
 A
T
T
E
N
T
IO
N

•
G
o
ve
rn
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
c
u
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 
m
a
y,
 a
t 
so
m
e
 p
o
in
t,
 p
u
t 
so
m
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
ru
c
ia
l

se
rv
ic
e
s 
(n
o
ta
b
ly
 t
h
e
 b
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
 l
ib
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
) 
a
t 
ri
sk
. 

•
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 d
o
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 w
e
e
k
ly
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
, 
o
u
r 
tw
o
 l
o
ca
l

fo
o
d
 r
e
ta
il
e
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 r
e
ta
il
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
 a
s 
m
u
ch
 l
o
ca
l 
su
p
p
o
rt
 a
s 
p
o
ss
ib
le
.

•
T
h
e
 p
o
o
rl
y-
u
se
d
 b
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
 d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
o
p
e
ra
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
ve
n
in
g
s 
o
r 
o
n
 S
u
n
d
a
ys
 o
r 
B
a
n
k
 h
o
li
d
a
ys
,

re
st
ri
ct
in
g
 t
ra
ve
l 
to
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
k
s 
fo
r 
a
n
yo
n
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 c
a
r.

•
P
a
rk
in
g
 f
o
r 
vi
si
to
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 i
s 
re
st
ri
c
te
d
 b
y 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 p
a
rk
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e

vi
ll
a
g
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
st
 o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s 
p
u
sh
in
g
 m
a
n
y 
co
m
m
u
te
rs
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 o
n
 l
o
ca
l

re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
st
re
e
ts
.

•
A
 f
o
rm
 o
f 
d
ir
e
ct
o
ry
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
ca
n
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 u
se
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 
tr
a
d
e
 a
n
d

p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
o
se
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 l
o
ca
l 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t.

7 
 B
U
SI
N
E
SS
E
S

an
d 
T
R
A
N
SP
O
R
T

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 8
5
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
m
p
lo
ye
d
 l
o
ca
ll
y 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s.

•
In
 O
tf
o
rd
 v
il
la
g
e
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 2
9
 s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 8
 (
n
o
n
 r
e
ta
il
) 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s.
 T
h
e
se
 e
m
p
lo
y

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
4
0
 p
e
o
p
le
.

•
O
n
 t
h
e
 V
e
st
ry
 T
ra
d
in
g 
E
st
a
te
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 2
0
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
w
h
ic
h
 e
m
p
lo
y 
a
p
p
ro
xi
m
a
te
ly
 5
5
0
 p
e
o
p
le
.

•
In
 R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 R
e
ta
il
 P
a
rk
 (
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
) 
th
e
re
 a
re
 3
 m
a
jo
r 
re
ta
il
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 

p
e
tr
o
l 
st
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
se
 e
m
p
lo
y 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
2
0
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

•
O
tf
o
rd
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
 m
e
d
ic
a
l 
ce
n
tr
e
, 
d
e
n
ti
st
, 
p
h
a
rm
a
cy
, 
p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 l
ib
ra
ry
.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 3
 f
o
o
d
-p
u
b
s,
 t
w
o
 c
a
fé
s 
a
n
d
 t
w
o
 r
e
st
a
u
ra
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
a
ls
o
 a
 f
a
st
-f
o
o
d

o
u
tl
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 V
e
st
ry
 t
ra
d
in
g
 e
st
a
te
.

•
A
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
ve
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y 
o
p
e
ra
te
 f
ro
m

h
o
m
e
.

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 3
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
ch
o
o
ls
, 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 2
 a
re
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t.

•
A
n
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
tr
a
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
e
ra
te
s 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
/
M
a
id
st
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
n
e
ct
s 
w
it
h
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
k
s.

•
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
a
n
 i
n
te
rm
it
te
n
t 
b
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s 
li
m
it
e
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
ti
m
e
s.

•
T
h
e
re
 i
s 
a
 w
e
ll
-r
u
n
 O
tf
o
rd
 w
e
b
si
te
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il
 a
d
d
re
ss
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
o
p
e
ra
te
d
 p
ri
va
te
ly
.

3
4

Agenda Item 7

Page 77



•
It
 i
s 
a
ls
o
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
o
ll
a
te
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 O
tf
o
rd
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y 
h
e
lp
 p
ro
vi
d
e

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
o
ca
l 
jo
b
 s
e
e
k
e
rs
.

•
In
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n
 w
it
h
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 V
e
st
ry
 E
st
a
te
, 
to
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 w
a
ys
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
ir
 t
ra
d
e
 m
ig
h
t

b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
.

“
O
u
r 
b
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
 i
s 
in
te
rm

it
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
to
p
s 
fa
r 
to
o
 e
a
rl
y
 t
o
 a
ll
o
w
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 v
is
it
s 
to
 S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s.
”
 

7
.4

A
C
T
IO
N

•
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 b
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
vi
d
e
r 
a
n
d

co
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y 
lo
b
b
y 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
.

“
H
o
w
 c
a
n
 w
e
 g
e
t 
m
o
re
 v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 o
u
r 
sh
o
p
s 
if
 t
h
e
re
 i
s 
n
o
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 p
a
rk
?”

7
.5

A
C
T
IO
N

•
Im
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
a
ci
li
ti
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 
a
 h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 
It
 i
s 
h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
th
e
se
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y 
co
m
e
 a
b
o
u
t.
 T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e

A
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
 V
il
la
g
e
te
a
m
 w
il
l 
a
ls
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
ce
n
ti
ve
s 
to
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
 v
is
it
o
rs
.

3
7

“
C
a
n
 w

e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 F
a
rm

e
rs
 M

a
rk
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 G
re
e
n
? 
It
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
ly
 v
il
la
g
e
rs
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir

n
e
ce
ss
a
ry
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 l
o
o
k
 v
e
ry
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
.”

7
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 f
o
r 
a
 f
a
rm
e
rs
’ 
m
a
rk
e
t 
b
y
 v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e

m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 
m
a
rk
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
in
su
rm
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 o
b
st
a
cl
e
s,
 n
o
t

le
a
st
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
rk
e
t 
re
ta
il
e
rs
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 o
v
e
r-
st
re
tc
h
e
d
 b
y
 t
o
o
 m
a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
fa
rm
e
rs
’ 
m
a
rk
e
ts
.

H
o
w
e
ve
r,
 t
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 a
re
 b
u
il
d
in
g
 a
 d
a
ta
b
a
se
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 
m
o
b
il
e
 r
e
ta
il
 p
ro
vi
d
e
rs
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

b
u
tc
h
e
rs
, 
g
re
e
n
g
ro
ce
rs
 a
n
d
 f
is
h
m
o
n
g
e
rs
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 c
a
ll
 o
n
 O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
si
s.
 T
h
is

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 p
a
ss
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
 d
u
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
h
ro
u
gh
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 n
e
w
sl
e
tt
e
r,
 p
a
ri
sh
 o
ff
ic
e

a
n
d
 o
n
li
n
e
 a
t 
o
tf
o
rd
/
in
fo
.c
o
m
.

“
C
o
u
ld
 l
o
ca
l 
sm

a
ll
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 i
n
 a
 l
o
ca
l 
d
ir
e
ct
o
ry
? 
  –
n
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s 
m
a
d
e
 o
f 
V
e
st
ry

E
st
a
te
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s.
”

7
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g 
G
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
co
n
ta
ct
 l
o
ca
l 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
to
 p
re
p
a
re
 a
 l
o
ca
l 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
 d
ir
e
ct
o
ry
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
li
sh

th
is
 o
n
-l
in
e
. 
(W
o
rk
in
g 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
a
ri
n
g 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
te
a
m
, 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 l
o
ca
l 
se
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
vi
d
e
rs
,

m
a
y 
a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W
e
lc
o
m
e
 P
a
ck
.)

3
6

Agenda Item 7

Page 78



3
9

P
R
E
D
IC
T
IN
G
 T
H
E
 F
U
T
U
R
E

N
o
 p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 c
a
n
 b
e
 t
o
ta
ll
y 
a
cc
u
ra
te
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 j
u
st
 t
o
o
 m
a
n
y 
va
ri
a
b
le
s.
 W
e
 c
a
n

h
o
w
e
ve
r 
g
e
t 
a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
so
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
rc
e
s 
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 a
ff
e
ct
 o
u
r 
vi
ll
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
te
n
 y
e
a
rs
.

F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
re
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 b
o
th
 p
ri
va
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
tr
a
ff
ic
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e

A
2
2
5
: 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
il
l,
 b
e
ca
u
se
 o
f 
th
e
 e
co
n
o
m
ic
 d
o
w
n
tu
rn
, 
h
a
ve
 l
e
ss
 m
o
n
e
y 
to
 s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 o
u
r 
lo
ca
l 
sh
o
p
s,

re
st
a
u
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
li
c 
h
o
u
se
s;
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y 
w
e
ll
 b
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
vi
si
to
rs

to
 O
tf
o
rd
.

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 i
s 
to
 h
e
lp
 u
s 
fa
c
e
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 b
ri
n
g
s 
a
n
d
 t
o

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 s
u
ff
e
r 
fr
o
m
 i
ts
 i
n
e
vi
ta
b
le
 c
o
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s.
 

T
H
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IS
E
D
 

T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G
 C
O
N
C
E
R
N
S 
R
E
Q
U
IR
IN
G
 A
T
T
E
N
T
IO
N

•
To
 p
re
ve
n
t 
a
n
y 
in
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
se
 o
f 
R
ye
 L
a
n
e
 a
s 
a
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
o
u
te
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 a
g
a
in
st
 a
n
y 
p
la
n
s

fo
r 
w
id
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
ig
h
te
n
in
g
 t
h
is
 a
n
ci
e
n
t 
ca
rt
-w
a
y.

•
To
 c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 O
tf
o
rd
 o
f 
a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
se
 i
n
 v
is
it
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re

co
n
ti
n
g
e
n
cy
 p
la
n
.

•
To
 w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
il
it
y 
o
f 
o
u
r 
lo
ca
l 
e
co
n
o
m
y 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s.

•
To
 l
ia
is
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
o
f 
th
e
 U
p
p
e
r 
D
a
re
n
t 
V
a
ll
e
y
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g

o
u
ts
id
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
ce
s 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 v
a
ll
e
y.

8 
 P

re
pa

ri
ng

 fo
r 
T
H
E
 F
U
T
U
R
E

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
T
h
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 f
o
rm
e
r 
D
u
n
to
n
 G
re
e
n
 C
o
ld
 S
to
re
 s
it
e
 (
to
 b
e
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s 
R
ye
w
o
o
d

M
e
a
d
o
w
s)
 i
s 
p
ro
ce
e
d
in
g
. 
It
 w
il
l 
p
ro
vi
d
e
 h
o
m
e
s 
fo
r 
a
t 
le
a
st
 5
0
0
 n
e
w
 f
a
m
il
ie
s 
a
t 
th
e

So
u
th
e
rn
 e
n
d
 o
f 
R
ye
 L
a
n
e
.

•
In
 D
a
rt
fo
rd
, 
5
,5
0
0
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 b
u
il
t 
o
ve
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
5
 y
e
a
rs
. 
D
a
rt
fo
rd
 i
s 
1
0
 m
il
e
s

n
o
rt
h
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
. 

•
Sa
in
sb
u
ry
’s
 n
e
w
 g
la
ss
 f
ro
n
ta
g
e
 i
s 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
st
a
ll
e
d
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 d
e
ck
e
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
n
d
 l
ig
h
ti
n
g

m
a
st
s,
 j
u
st
 b
e
yo
n
d
 o
u
r 
p
a
ri
sh
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
. 

•
T
h
e
 D
a
re
n
t 
V
a
ll
e
y 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 d
e
si
g
n
a
te
d
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
w
o
 ‘
R
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
s’
 f
o
r 
th
o
u
sa
n
d
s 
o
f

n
e
w
 f
a
m
il
ie
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 T
h
a
m
e
s 
G
a
te
w
a
y 
(N
o
rt
h
 K
e
n
t)
 r
e
g
io
n
. 

•
T
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
ca
rs
 u
si
n
g
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
k
s 
ro
a
d
s 
is
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 t
o
 i
n
cr
e
a
se
 b
y 
4
.5
%
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r.

3
8

R
ei

ns
ta

ti
ng

 th
e 

Po
nd

Agenda Item 7

Page 79



“
O
tf
o
rd
 m

a
y
 l
o
se
 i
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty
 a
s 
a
 r
u
ra
l 
v
il
la
g
e
. 
W
e
 w
il
l 
b
e
 l
ik
e
 t
h
o
se
 p
la
ce
s 
y
o
u
 p
a
ss
 t
h
ro
u
g
h

w
h
o
se
 n
a
m
e
 y
o
u
 c
a
n
’t
 r
e
ca
ll
 w
it
h
 j
u
st
 o
n
e
 l
o
ca
l 
sh
o
p
.”

8
.3

A
C
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
 i
s 
th
a
t 
th
e
 v
is
ib
le
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
ge
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
a
d
ic
a
ll
y 
e
n
h
a
n
ce
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 b
y 
m
a
n
y

o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
. 
T
h
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
P
a
la
c
e
 F
ie
ld
, 
th
e

su
g
g
e
st
io
n
s 
fo
r 
st
im
u
la
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 h
is
to
ri
ca
l 
in
te
re
st
 o
f 
vi
si
to
rs
, 
a
 n
e
w
ly
 d
e
si
g
n
e
d
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 C
e
n
tr
e

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
va
il
a
b
il
it
y 
o
f 
sp
a
re
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
ce
, 
e
ve
n
, 
o
n
e
 d
a
y 
w
e
 h
o
p
e
, 
a
 c
yc
le
 r
o
u
te
 t
o
 S
e
ve
n
o
a
k
s,

w
il
l 
a
ll
 h
a
ve
 a
 p
o
si
ti
ve
 e
ff
e
ct
 u
p
o
n
 o
u
r 
fu
tu
re
 v
is
it
o
rs
. 
It
 i
s 
th
e
 h
o
p
e
 o
f 
th
is
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
th
a
t

O
tf
o
rd
 w
il
l 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
h
u
b
 f
o
r 
fa
m
il
ie
s 
w
is
h
in
g
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 v
a
ll
e
y
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 m
a
n
y

a
tt
ra
ct
io
n
s.
 S
u
ch
 a
n
 e
ff
e
ct
 c
a
n
 p
u
t 
O
tf
o
rd
 f
ir
m
ly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
p
 f
o
r 
vi
si
to
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp

su
p
p
o
rt
 a
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 f
u
tu
re
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
sh
o
p
s,
 p
u
b
s 
a
n
d
 r
e
st
a
u
ra
n
ts
.

IN
 A
D
D
IT
IO
N

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
th
e
r 
co
n
ce
rn
s 
h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 f
e
e
l 
d
o
 n
o
t 
to
 c
o
m
e

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
m
it
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r-
te
rm
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
. 
T
h
e
y 
a
re
, 
h
o
w
e
ve
r,
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
in
g

w
h
e
re
ve
r 
p
o
ss
ib
le
. 

SO
M
E
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID

“
P
la
n
 n
o
w
 f
o
r 
a
 g
ri
d
-l
o
ck
e
d
 f
u
tu
re
. 
A
 b
y
-p
a
ss
 f
o
r 
O
tf
o
rd
? 
W
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
t

le
a
st
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
.”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 i
s 
a
 m
u
ch
-v
a
u
n
te
d
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l,
 i
t 
is
 u
n
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 f
e
a
si
b
le
 i
n
 a
n
yt
h
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
ch
in
g

th
e
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 f
u
tu
re
 m
u
ch
 a
s 
w
e
 m
ig
h
t 
se
e
 t
h
e
 a
d
va
n
ta
g
e
s 
o
f 
it
. 
O
u
r 
b
e
st
 a
p
p
ro
a
ch
 f
o
r 
n
o
w
 i
s

to
 p
re
ss
 f
o
r 
ch
a
n
g
e
s 
in
 t
ra
ff
ic
 f
lo
w
s 
to
 r
e
d
u
ce
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
th
ro
u
g
h
-t
ra
ff
ic
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
. 

SO
M
E
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID

“
W
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
h
a
p
p
e
n
 w
h
e
n
 F
o
rt
 H
a
ls
te
a
d
 g
e
ts
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
?”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
F
o
rt
 H
a
ls
te
d
 i
s 
n
o
t 
p
ro
g
re
ss
in
g
 i
n
 i
ts
 p
re
se
n
t 
fo
rm
. 
H
o
w
e
ve
r,
 a
n
y

fr
e
sh
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 f
o
r 
u
se
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
lo
se
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
ff
e
ct
 u
p
o
n
 O
tf
o
rd

p
a
ri
sh
. 

SO
M
E
 O
F
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 S
A
ID
“
H
o
w
 c
a
n
 w
e
 k
n
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
g
o
e
s 
o
n
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
? 
B
e
tt
e
r 
to
 j
u
st
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 w
h
e
n

th
in
g
s 
h
a
p
p
e
n
.”
 

O
U
R
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE

•
W
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
a
gr
e
e
. 
It
 i
s 
b
e
tt
e
r 
to
 b
e
 a
le
rt
 a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re
d
. 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g 
G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 P
a
ri
sh

C
o
u
n
c
il
 m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 o
u
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
, 
T
h
a
m
e
s 
G
a
te
w
a
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s,
 D
a
rt
fo
rd
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
s 
w
e
ll
 a
s 
re
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s 
w
it
h
 a
ll
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
ri
sh
e
s

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 u
p
p
e
r 
D
a
re
n
t 
V
a
ll
e
y.
 T
h
is
 p
ro
vi
d
e
s 
a
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 e
xt
e
rn
a
l 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 h
a
ve
 a
ff
e
ct
 O
tf
o
rd
.

4
1

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 H
A
V
E
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D
 T
H
E
 N
E
E
D
:

•
To
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y 
re
vi
e
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 t
o
 o
u
ts
id
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
ce
s 
w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y 
a
ff
e
ct
 o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
n
d
 t
o

se
e
k
 w
a
ys
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
ct
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 H
A
S 
R
E
SP
O
N
D
E
D
 T
O
 W
H
AT
 Y
O
U
 H
A
V
E
 A
SK
E
D

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
ll
 r
a
n
d
o
m
ly
 s
e
le
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s.

“
R
y
e
 L
a
n
e
 w
il
l 
b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 e
x
tr
a
 t
ra
ff
ic
. 
It
 w
il
l 
b
e
co
m
e
 u
n
su
st
a
in
a
b
le
. 
D
o
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g

so
o
n
 b
e
fo
re
 i
t 
is
 t
o
o
 l
a
te
. 
It
 w
il
l 
m
a
k
e
 i
t 
se
ri
o
u
sl
y
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s 
to
 e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
.”

8
.1

A
C
T
IO
N

•
T
h
e
 P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
ct
io
n
 t
e
a
m
 w
il
l 
p
re
ss
 f
o
r 
a
ct
io
n
 t
o
 p
ro
te
ct
 R
ye
 L
a
n
e
 a
s 
p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
R
ye
w
o
o
d

M
e
a
d
o
w
s 
g
o
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 t
h
e
y 
w
il
l 
lo
b
b
y 
a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
co
n
ce
rt
e
d

a
ct
io
n
 b
y 
K
e
n
t 
H
ig
h
w
a
ys
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
re
le
va
n
t 
a
g
e
n
ci
e
s.

“
If
 w
e
 g
e
t 
a
n
 e
v
e
n
 g
re
a
te
r 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
y
 m
o
re
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
to
p
p
in
g
,

w
il
l 
w
e
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
? 
W
h
a
t 
ca
n
 w
e
 d
o
 a
b
o
u
t 
it
?”

8
.2

A
C
T
IO
N

•
A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
ta
sk
 t
e
a
m
 d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 p
a
ri
sh
io
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
o
u
n
ci
ll
o
rs
 w
il
l 
re
vi
e
w
 t
h
e
 l
ik
e
ly

co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s 
o
f 
a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 v
is
it
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
se
 t
h
e
 a
ct
io
n
s

w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 e
ff
e
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 A
c
ti
o
n
s 
c
a
n
 b
e

p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
cu
ss
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
ca
l 
D
e
si
g
n
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
.

4
0

Fo
r 

th
e 

pa
st

, t
he

 p
re

se
nt

 a
nd

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
N

eg
le

ct
 w

ill
 ro

b 
fu

tu
re

 g
en

er
at

io
ns

 o
f i

ts
 h

er
it

ag
e

Agenda Item 7

Page 80



Y
o
u
th

 C
e
n
tr
e

•
8
8
%
 o
f 
re
sp
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
y 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 a
 Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 a
ll
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
.

•
7
2
%
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 l
o
ca
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
, 
n
o
t 
in
 a
n
 o
u
tl
yi
n
g
 a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ri
sh
.

•
8
1
%
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
y 
w
o
u
ld
 p
re
fe
r 
it
 a
va
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 m
ix
e
d
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
s 
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
ti
m
e
s.

•
9
3
%
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 r
o
o
m
s 
fo
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
a
n
d
 9
5
%
 a
 k
it
ch
e
n
.

In
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
, 
th
e
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
ls
o
 s
a
id
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
:

•
B
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
o
ci
a
li
se
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
g
e
-g
ro
u
p
.

•
H
a
ve
 a
n
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce
d
 y
o
u
th
 w
o
rk
e
r 
o
n
 s
it
e
 a
t 
a
ll
 t
im
e
s.

•
H
a
ve
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
to
 p
u
t 
o
n
 s
p
e
ci
a
l 
fu
n
d
-r
a
is
in
g
 e
ve
n
ts
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
m
se
lv
e
s.

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 n

e
w
 s
k
il
ls

•
3
9
%
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
 w
is
h
 t
o
 h
a
ve
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
to
 l
e
a
rn
 n
e
w
 s
k
il
ls
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y 
fo
r 
cr
e
a
ti
ve
 w
o
rk
.

A
d
v
ic
e
 o

n
 l
if
e
-s
k
il
ls

•
6
7
%
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
n
 i
n
te
re
st
 i
n
 g
e
tt
in
g
 a
d
vi
ce
 o
n
 m
a
tt
e
rs
 s
u
ch
 a
s 
in
te
rv
ie
w
 t
e
ch
n
iq
u
e
s,
 g
e
tt
in
g

p
a
rt
-t
im
e
 w
o
rk
, 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 y
o
u
r 
o
w
n
 f
in
a
n
ce
, 
fi
rs
t-
a
id
 s
k
il
ls
 e
tc
.

A
 v
o
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

•
6
0
%
 e
x
p
re
ss
e
d
 a
 c
le
a
r 
w
is
h
 t
o
 h
a
ve
 a
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y,
 e
sp
e
ci
a
ll
y 
to
 h
a
ve
 a
 v
o
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e

P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 
T
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
ss
 o
f 
fo
rm
in
g
 a
 Y
o
u
th
 F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d

fi
n
a
n
ci
n
g
 i
ts
 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s.
 

H
a
p
p
y
 i
n
 O

tf
o
rd

?

•
To
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
 “
A
re
 y
o
u
 h
a
p
p
y 
li
vi
n
g
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
”
 6
6
%
 s
a
id
 t
h
e
y 
e
n
jo
ye
d
 l
iv
in
g
 h
e
re
.

T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 H
A
V
E
 E
N
D
O
R
SE
D
 T
H
E
 F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G

•
To
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 w
it
h
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l 
yo
u
th
 o
rg
a
n
iz
a
ti
o
n
s;

•
To
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
Yo
u
th
 F
o
ru
m
 a
s 
a
 m
e
a
n
s 
o
f 
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
;

•
To
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
 o
f 
a
 y
o
u
th
 c
lu
b
 n
e
a
r 
H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 R
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
;

•
To
 p
u
rs
u
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
to
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 /
d
ro
p
-i
n
 f
a
ci
li
ty
 f
o
r 
yo
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
il
la
g
e
.

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
AT
IO
N
 F
R
O
M
 T
H
E
 S
T
E
E
R
IN
G
 G
R
O
U
P

W
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
se
ly
 w
it
h
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 
w
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 s
e
t 
u
p
 d
is
c
u
ss
io
n
s 
w
it
h
 t
h
e

Se
v
e
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 Y
o
u
th
 T
e
a
m
, 
o
u
r 
lo
c
a
l 
y
o
u
th
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
 y
o
u
th

su
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 f
a
m
il
ia
r 
w
it
h
 o
u
r 
a
re
a
. 
W
e
 h
o
p
e
 t
h
a
t,
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 w
e
 h
a
ve
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 
co
ll
e
ct
e
d

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
s 
a
n
d
 i
d
e
a
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y 
co
m
in
g 
in
to
 s
h
a
p
e
 t
h
ro
u
gh
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
, 
a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
sp
o
n
se

ca
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
a
ll
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
.

4
3

T
H
E
 P
R
E
SE
N
T
 S
TA
T
U
S

A
 y
o
u
th
 F
o
ru
m
/
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
m
a
d
e
 u
p
 f
ro
m
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
ll
 p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 i
s 
b
e
in
g
 a
ct
iv
e
ly

su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l.
 B
o
th
 S
t.
 B
a
rt
h
o
lo
m
e
w
’s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 M
e
th
o
d
is
t 
C
h
u
rc
h
 r
u
n
 p
o
p
u
la
r

yo
u
th
 c
lu
b
s 
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 f
o
r 
yo
u
n
g
e
r 
te
e
n
a
g
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 S
co
u
ts
 a
n
d
 G
u
id
e
s 
g
ro
u
p
s 
a
re
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y

p
o
p
u
la
r 
w
it
h
 a
 s
te
a
d
y 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
re
- 
a
n
d
 e
a
rl
y 
te
e
n
a
g
e
rs
.

U
n
ti
l 
re
ce
n
tl
y 
P
la
ys
p
a
ce
 (
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
yo
u
th
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
) 
h
a
ve
 r
u
n
 a
 m
id
- 
to
 l
a
te
-t
e
e
n
 c
lu
b

in
 t
h
e
 p
re
vi
o
u
sl
y 
u
n
u
se
d
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 r
o
o
m
s 
o
n
 H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 R
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
. 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
ve
 d
w
in
d
le
d

re
ce
n
tl
y 
a
s 
m
a
n
y 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
ve
 f
o
u
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 f
a
ci
li
ty
 m
a
y 
re
d
u
ce
 i
ts
 r
o
le
 u
n
ti
l 
su
ch

ti
m
e
 a
s 
a
 n
e
w
 w
a
ve
 o
f 
si
b
li
n
g
s 
w
is
h
e
s 
to
 j
o
in
.

A
n
 e
n
th
u
si
a
st
ic
 t
e
a
m
 o
f 
o
u
tr
e
a
ch
 y
o
u
th
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
K
C
C
 m
e
e
ts
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y 
w
it
h

th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ri
sh
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
ct
s 
a
n
d
 g
iv
in
g
 g
u
id
a
n
ce
. 
O
u
r 
lo
ca
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
L
ia
is
o
n

O
ff
ic
e
r,
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y 
o
u
r 
P
C
SO
 (
P
o
li
ce
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
Su
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r)
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
sl
y 
w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o

b
u
il
d
 c
o
n
ta
ct
s 
w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
.

L
e
ss
 t
h
a
n
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
a
ll
 y
o
u
n
g 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
sh
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
n
g 
P
e
rs
o
n
s’
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
T
h
is

h
a
s 
n
o
t 
p
ro
vi
d
e
d
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 s
ta
ti
st
ic
a
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 b
a
se
 f
ir
m
 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
o
n
 t
h
e

n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
yo
u
n
g
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
w
is
h
 t
o
 d
is
cu
ss
 t
h
e
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
 w
it
h
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l

yo
u
th
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce
d
 y
o
u
th
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
b
e
fo
re
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
y

re
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 a
ct
io
n
. 
O
u
r 
P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
g
re
e
s 
w
it
h
 t
h
is
 d
e
ci
si
o
n
.

N
o
n
e
th
e
le
ss
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
rs
o
n
’s
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
fl
e
ct
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
.

O
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
si
s 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
re
ce
iv
e
d
, 
th
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 i
n
te
re
st
s 
a
n
d
 w
is
h
e
s 
w
e
re
 c
le
a
rl
y 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
:

9 
 T

he
 Y
O
U
N
G
 P
E
O
P
L
E
 o

f O
tf

or
d

FA
C
T
 F
IL
E

•
Yo
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
1
 a
n
d
 1
7
 r
e
p
re
se
n
t 
8
.7
%
 o
f 
a
ll
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
.

•
W
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
, 
o
ve
r 
6
0
%
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
1
 a
n
d
 1
6
. 

•
O
tf
o
rd
’s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
a
lm
o
st
 e
q
u
a
ll
y 
d
iv
id
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 b
o
ys
 a
n
d
 g
ir
ls
.

•
O
f 
th
e
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
2
3
%
 a
tt
e
n
d
 s
ch
o
o
l 
in
 O
tf
o
rd
, 
1
9
%
 i
n

Se
ve
n
o
a
k
s,
 a
n
d
 6
1
%
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
.

•
2
6
%
 a
re
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
cl
u
b
s 
o
r 
a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
s 
(c
h
u
rc
h
 c
lu
b
s,
 s
co
u
ts
, 
G
u
id
e
s,
 B
ro
w
n
ie
s,
 e
tc
.)
.

•
7
7
%
 a
re
 n
o
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
a
n
y 
cl
u
b
 o
r 
a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
. 

4
2

Agenda Item 7

Page 81



a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
. 
A
n
d
, 
o
f 
c
o
u
rs
e
, 
th
e
re
 w
a
s 
th
e
 w
h
o
le

co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 i
n
vo
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 s
u
g
g
e
st
io
n
s 
a
n
d
 i
d
e
a
s,
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e

th
e
 c
re
d
ib
le
 r
e
fl
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
vi
e
w
s 
a
n
d
 e
ff
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ll
 w
is
h
 i
t 
to
 b
e
. 

3
  
H
O
W
 I
S 
A
L
L 
T
H
IS
 W
O
R
K
 B
E
IN
G
 F
U
N
D
E
D
?

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
lw
a
y
s 
c
o
st
s 
in
 p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
s 
e
x
te
n
si
v
e
 a
s 
o
u
rs
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e

g
e
n
e
ro
si
ty
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s,
 l
o
ca
l 
a
ss
o
ci
a
ti
o
n
s,
 c
lu
b
s 
a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
, 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
h
a
ve

b
e
e
n
 f
o
rt
h
co
m
in
g
.

P
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
a
n
k
s 
a
re
 o
w
e
d
 t
o
 D
E
F
R
A
 a
n
d
 A
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
in
 R
u
ra
l 
K
e
n
t;
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh

C
o
u
n
ci
l;
 O
tf
o
rd
’s
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
ci
ll
o
r;
 t
h
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 S
o
ci
e
ty
; 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 H
is
to
ri
ca
l 
So
ci
e
ty
; 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd

F
e
te
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
n
d
 O
tf
o
rd
.n
e
t.
 

A
s 
th
e
 P
la
n
 c
a
m
e
 i
n
to
 b
e
in
g,
 a
ct
io
n
 t
e
a
m
s 
le
d
 b
y 
St
e
e
ri
n
g 
G
ro
u
p
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
o
rk
e
d
 c
lo
se
ly
 w
it
h
 A
C
R
K

“
F
u
n
d
in
g
 B
u
d
d
ie
s”
 w
h
o
 h
a
ve
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 e
ss
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
d
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 c
o
u
n
ty

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
d
vi
so
rs
 “
K
e
n
t 
C
a
n
”
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
a
is
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
p
ro
je
ct
s.
 

4
  
D
E
M
O
G
R
A
P
H
IC
 I
N
F
O
R
M
AT
IO
N
 O
N
 O
U
R
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y

A
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 p
ro
ce
ss
, 
w
e
 a
sk
e
d
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 c
e
rt
a
in
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t

co
u
ld
 b
e
 o
f 
h
e
lp
 w
h
e
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 f
u
tu
re
 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s.
 G
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
sp
o
n
se
s 
re
ce
iv
e
d

(6
1
9
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 O
tf
o
rd
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 f
ig
u
re
 r
e
p
re
se
n
ts
, 
a
ll
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 t
h
e

q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 a
s 
st
a
ti
st
ic
a
ll
y 
a
cc
u
ra
te
 t
o
 w
it
h
in
 +
/
- 
3
.2
 %
.

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y 
(t
h
e
 D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s)
 a
re
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 t
h
re
e

ta
b
le
s.

4
5

4
41
  
W
H
AT
 D
O
E
S 
T
H
E
 O
T
F
O
R
D
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
 C
O
N
SI
ST
 O
F
?

T
h
is
, 
P
a
rt
 O
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 d
o
cu
m
e
n
t,
 i
s 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 p
ro
p
e
r.
 I
t 
se
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 m
a
in
 a
re
a
s 
o
f 
co
n
ce
rn
 a
n
d

d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
h
e
a
d
in
gs
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fl
e
ct
 t
h
o
se
 o
f 
th
e
 o
ri
gi
n
a
l 
q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
It
 i
n
cl
u
d
e
s 
th
e
 m
a
in

o
b
je
ct
iv
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s 
a
re
a
s 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 b
y 
O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
s 
k
e
y
 t
o
 t
h
e

fu
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 v
il
la
g
e
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
ta
in
s 
id
e
a
s 
fo
r 
sp
e
ci
fi
c 
a
ct
io
n
s,
 t
h
in
g
s 
to
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 w
h
ic
h
 w
il
l 
b
ri
n
g

a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
 a
ll
 s
e
e
k
.

T
h
e
re
 
is
 
a
ls
o
 
a
 
se
c
o
n
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t,
 
P
a
rt
 
Tw
o
. 
T
h
is
 
is
 
a
n
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
, 
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 
o
n
li
n
e
 
a
t

w
w
w
.o
tf
o
rd
.i
n
fo
/
p
a
ri
sh
p
la
n
/
o
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 O
ff
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
in
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
il
 i
d
e
a
s 
fo
r

a
ct
io
n
s 
to
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
h
o
w
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
se
 m
a
y 
b
e
 a
ch
ie
ve
d
 a
n
d
 w
h
o
 w
il
l 
(i
n
it
ia
ll
y)
 p
la
n
 a
n
d

le
a
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 a
ch
ie
ve
m
e
n
t.
 M
a
n
y 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 a
ct
io
n
s 
w
il
l 
in
cl
u
d
e
 o
u
ts
id
e
 b
o
d
ie
s

o
r 
a
g
e
n
ci
e
s 
o
r 
su
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s 
w
h
o
 m
a
y 
a
ct
 a
s 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 a
 p
ro
je
ct
. 
T
h
e
 A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
 w
il
l 
ch
a
n
g
e

o
ve
r 
ti
m
e
 a
s 
a
ct
io
n
s 
a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 i
d
e
a
s 
a
d
d
e
d
, 
ch
a
n
g
e
d
 o
r 
re
je
ct
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 f
u
ll
y 
in
vo
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 h
a
s 
in
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
ts

su
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
ct
io
n
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
. 
T
h
e
 e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ce
 a
n
d
 a
ct
iv
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
P
a
ri
sh
 c
o
u
n
ci
ll
o
rs

in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 y
e
a
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 e
ss
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 t
u
rn
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 i
n
to
 r
e
a
li
ty
.

T
h
in
g
s 
w
il
l 
ch
a
n
g
e
. 
T
h
e
y 
a
lw
a
ys
 d
o
. 
B
u
t 
th
e
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
o
ld
 g
o
o
d
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y 
ye
a
rs

to
 c
o
m
e
.

2
  
W
H
O
 H
E
L
P
E
D
 T
O
 C
R
E
AT
E
 T
H
E
 P
A
R
IS
H
 P
L
A
N
?

O
ve
r 
th
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 i
t 
h
a
s 
ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 f
o
rm
u
la
te
 o
u
r 
P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
, 
th
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 h
a
s 
m
e
t 
o
n
 o
ve
r

th
ir
ty
 o
cc
a
si
o
n
s 
to
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 m
o
ve
d
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
n
 a
 c
o
n
st
ru
ct
iv
e
 m
a
n
n
e
r.
 T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p

co
n
si
st
s 
o
f 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
vo
lu
n
te
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 e
ve
ry
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ri
sh
. 
It
 w
a
s 
co
n
si
d
e
re
d

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
v
ie
w
s 
w
e
re
 
h
e
a
rd
 
a
n
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
St
e
e
ri
n
g
 
G
ro
u
p
 
sh
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
tr
u
ly

re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
ve
 o
f 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 F
o
r 
n
a
m
e
s 
o
f 
St
e
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
, 
p
le
a
se
 s
e
e
 i
n
si
d
e

th
e
 f
ro
n
t 
co
ve
r.

Tw
o
 p
a
ri
sh
 c
o
u
n
c
il
lo
rs
 a
re
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
. 
T
h
e
ir
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 h
a
s

p
ro
vi
d
e
d
 i
n
va
lu
a
b
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 i
s 
e
n
ti
re
ly
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
b
u
t

h
a
s 
k
e
p
t 
th
e
m
 
in
fo
rm
e
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
re
g
u
la
r 
a
n
d
 
d
e
ta
il
e
d
 
m
in
u
te
s.
 A
 
w
e
b
 
p
a
g
e
 
w
a
s 
a
d
d
e
d
 
to

w
w
w
.o
tf
o
rd
.n
e
t
so
 t
h
a
t 
u
p
d
a
te
s 
co
u
ld
 b
e
 p
o
st
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.
 A
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
in

R
u
ra
l 
K
e
n
t 
(A
C
R
K
) 
h
a
s 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

in
v
a
lu
a
b
le
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
, 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 b
o
th
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
th
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
h
a
ve
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 a
va
il
a
b
le
 a
t 
a
ll
 t
im
e
s 
to
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
d
vi
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
.

D
is
tr
ic
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
M
ic
h
e
ll
e
 L
o
w
e
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
ty
 c
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
N
ic
k
 C
h
a
rd
 h
a
ve
 a
ls
o
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
m
se
lv
e
s

A
P
P
E
N
D
IC
E
S

H
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
iv
e
 

in
 y
o
u
r 
h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
?

1 1
2
0

2
2
%

2 2
7
3

5
0
%

3 7
2

1
3
%

4 6
9

1
2
%

5 1
5

3
%

m
o
re 3

W
h
a
t 
a
g
e
 a
re
 t
h
e
y
?

1
-1
0
 y
rs

1
0
3

1
1
-1
8
 y
rs

8
8

1
9
-2
5
 y
rs

6
4

8
%

2
6
-4
5
 y
rs

1
8
3

2
2
%

4
6
-6
4
 y
rs

3
4
8

4
3
%

6
5
+
 y
rs

2
2
3

2
7
%

H
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 y
e
a
rs
 h
a
v
e

y
o
u
 l
iv
e
d
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
?

1
-5
 y
rs

9
8

1
8
%

6
-1
0
 y
rs

6
7

1
2
%

1
1
-2
0
 y
rs

9
4

1
7
%

2
0
+
 y
rs

2
9
4

5
3
%

D
E
M
O
G
R
A
P
H
IC
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE
S 
T
O
 M
A
IN
 Q
U
E
ST
IO
N
N
A
IR
E

C
o
n
t
in
u
e
d

Agenda Item 7

Page 82



4
7

4
6H
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 c
a
rs
 d
o

y
o
u
 p
a
rk
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
?

1 2
5
3

4
7
%

2 2
1
1

3
9
%

3 4
2

8
%

4 7 1
%

A
re
 y
o
u
 a
b
le
 t
o
 w
a
lk

u
n
a
id
e
d
?

Y
e
s

2
4
1

8
4
%

N
o

1
9

7
%

a
 l
it
tl
e

3
0

9
%

D
o
 y
o
u
 n
e
e
d
 S
o
c
ia
l

S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
h
e
lp
 i
n
 t
h
e

h
o
m
e
?

Y
e
s

4

N
o

2
7
9

D
o
 y
o
u
 n
e
e
d
 

a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
h
e
lp
?

Y
e
s

3
6

1
3
%

N
o

2
4
4

8
7
%

H
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s

d
o
 y
o
u
 o
w
n
?

1 1
9

2 2

H
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 v
a
n
s 
d
o
 y
o
u

p
a
rk
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
?

1 2
5

2 1

W
h
e
re
 d
o
 y
o
u
 p
a
rk

y
o
u
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
?

P
ro
p
e
rt
y

4
7
3

9
0
%

M
o
b
il
it
y

6
4

1
1
%

V
is
u
a
l

2
2

4
%

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

3
6

6
%

B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e

4
7

8
%

R
o
a
d

3
8

7
%

E
ls
e
w
h
e
re

1
5

3
%

D
o
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h

p
ro
b
le
m
 w
it
h
..
..
?

H
o
w
 o
ld
 a
re
 y
o
u
?

6
5
-7
5
 y
rs

1
4
6

5
0
%

7
6
-8
5
 y
rs

1
0
9

3
8
%

8
6
+
 y
rs

3
5

2
3
%

H
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 y
e
a
rs
 h
a
v
e

y
o
u
 l
iv
e
d
 i
n
 O
tf
o
rd
?

1
-5
 y
rs

2
2

8
%

6
-1
5
 y
rs

3
3

1
2
%

1
6
-3
4
 y
rs

7
6

2
7
%

3
5
+
 y
rs

1
5
0

5
3
%

D
o
 y
o
u
 l
iv
e
 w
it
h
..
.
?

S
p
o
u
se

1
6
6

5
8
%

R
e
la
ti
v
e

1
2

4
%

A
lo
n
e

1
0
0

3
8
%

C
a
re
r

1

C
o
n
t
in
u
e
d

A
re
 y
o
u
 M
a
le
 o
r

F
e
m
a
le
?

(f
ig
u
re
s 
in
cl
u
d
e
 c
o
u
p
le
s)

M
a
le

1
6
4

4
3
%

F
e
m
a
le

2
2
2

5
7
%

D
E
M
O
G
R
A
P
H
IC
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE
S 
T
O
 O
L
D
E
R
 R
E
SI
D
E
N
T
S 
Q
U
E
ST
IO
N
N
A
IR
E

A
re
 y
o
u
 a
 b
o
y
 o
r 
g
ir
l?

B
o
y

5
3

G
ir
l

5
0

W
h
e
re
 d
o
 y
o
u
 a
tt
e
n
d

sc
h
o
o
l?

In
 O
tf
o
rd

2
3

In
 S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s

1
9

E
ls
e
w
h
e
re

6
1

A
re
 y
o
u
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f

a
 u
n
if
o
rm

e
d
 g
ro
u
p
?

S
c
o
u
ts

1
3

G
u
id
e
s

4

O
th
e
r

9

N
o
n
e

7
7

D
o
 y
o
u
 g
o
 t
o
 a
 y
o
u
th

c
lu
b
 o
r 
c
e
n
tr
e
?

Y
e
s

2
4

N
o

7
9

W
h
a
t 
a
g
e
 a
re
 y
o
u
?

9
-1
0
 y
rs

2
1

1
1
-1
3
 y
rs

3
5

1
4
-1
6
 y
rs

3
1

1
7
-1
8
 y
rs

1
6

D
E
M
O
G
R
A
P
H
IC
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE
S 
T
O
 Y
O
U
N
G
E
R
 R
E
SI
D
E
N
T
S 
Q
U
E
ST
IO
N
N
A
IR
E

W
h
ic
h
 o
n
e
?

M
e
th
o
d
is
t 
H
ig
h
 V
o
lt
a
g
e
4

S
t 
B
a
rt
’s
 Y
P
F
/F
ro
g
s
7

B
a
p
ti
st
 Z
e
st
 (
B
G
)
2

C
ro
y
d
o
n
1

C
a
d
e
ts
1

C
u
b
s
1

U
n
k
n
o
w
n
8

5
: 
N
U
M
B
E
R
S 
O
F
 R
E
SP
O
N
SE
S 
T
O
 T
H
E
 Q
U
E
ST
IO
N
N
A
IR
E
S

1
,4
1
5
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
s 
w
e
re
 d
e
li
ve
re
d
 t
o
 h
o
m
e
s 
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 P
a
ri
sh
. 
6
1
9
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
w
e
re
 r
e
ce
iv
e
d

to
 t
h
e
 M
a
in
 Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
p
re
se
n
te
d
 a
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
 r
a
te
 o
f 
4
3
.9
%
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
a
 s
ta
ti
st
ic
a
ll
y

m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
fi
g
u
re
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 b
a
se
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s.
 2
7
2
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 t
h
e
 O
ld
e
r 
P
e
rs
o
n
’s

Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 1
0
3
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 
to
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
P
e
rs
o
n
’s
 Q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 r
e
ce
iv
e
d
.

A
ll
 r
e
su
lt
s 
w
e
re
 r
e
co
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 l
o
g
g
e
d
 b
y 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
, 
a
n
d
 f
u
ll
 s
ta
ti
st
ic
s 
fo
r 
th
e

P
a
ri
sh
 P
la
n
 q
u
e
st
io
n
n
a
ir
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 a
t 
w
w
w
.o
tf
o
rd
.i
n
fo
/
p
a
ri
sh
p
la
n
/
.

Agenda Item 7

Page 83



4
86
: 
A
R
E
A
S 
O
F
 V
A
L
U
E
 F
O
R
 B
IO
D
IV
E
R
SI
T
Y,
 O
P
E
N
 S
PA
C
E
 A
N
D
 R
E
C
R
E
AT
IO
N

T
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 a
re
a
s 
a
re
 c
o
n
si
d
e
re
d
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
w
it
h
in
 O
tf
o
rd
 P
a
ri
sh
 w
h
ic
h
 m
e
ri
t

co
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
:

7
: 
B
U
IL
D
IN
G
S 
O
F
 L
O
C
A
L 
A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
A
L 
O
R
 H
IS
T
O
R
IC
A
L 
IN
T
E
R
E
ST

T
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s 
a
n
d
 m
o
n
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 o
f 
a
rc
h
it
e
ct
u
ra
l 
o
r 
h
is
to
ri
ca
l 
in
te
re
st
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e

p
ro
te
ct
e
d
 a
s 
e
ss
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
p
a
ri
sh
 h
e
ri
ta
ge
 (
m
o
re
 d
e
ta
il
 o
n
 a
ll
 t
h
e
se
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 
is
 a
va
il
a
b
le

a
t 
O
tf
o
rd
 H
e
ri
ta
ge
 C
e
n
tr
e
):

•
T
h
e
 O
ld
 P
a
rs
o
n
a
ge
 (
a
 m
e
d
ie
va
l 
h
a
ll
-h
o
u
se
,

w
it
h
 c
1
8
 b
ri
ck
 a
n
d
 t
il
e
-h
u
n
g 
e
xt
e
ri
o
r)

•
T
h
e
 H
o
rn
s 
P
u
b
li
c 
H
o
u
se
 (
c1
6
-1
7
 t
im
b
e
r-

fr
a
m
e
d
, 
o
n
ce
 t
h
re
e
 c
o
tt
a
ge
s)

•
P
ic
k
m
o
ss
 (
p
a
rt
 m
e
d
ie
va
l 
h
a
ll
-h
o
u
se
)

•
T
h
e
 O
ld
 P
a
rs
o
n
a
ge
 (
ti
m
b
e
re
d
 J
a
co
b
e
a
n
)

•
B
ri
d
ge
 C
o
tt
a
ge
 (
c1
7
 t
il
e
-h
u
n
g 
ye
o
m
a
n
’s

co
tt
a
ge
s)

•
T
h
e
 G
ra
n
ge
 (
c1
7
 h
o
u
se
 a
n
d
 s
it
e
 o
f 
ta
n
n
e
ry
)

•
B
ro
u
gh
to
n
 M
a
n
o
r 
(o
w
n
e
d
 b
y 
T
h
o
m
a
s 
P
o
ll
e
y 
-

la
te
r 
P
o
lh
il
l 
- 
in
 1
5
5
4
)

•
C
h
u
rc
h
 H
a
ll
 (
b
u
il
t 
in
 e
a
rl
y 
c2
0
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
si
gn

o
f 
Si
r 
E
d
w
a
rd
 L
u
ty
e
n
s)

•
T
h
e
 S
ch
o
o
l 
H
o
u
se
 (
o
ff
ic
e
s 
o
f 
P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
l)

•
T
h
e
 o
ld
 v
il
la
ge
 s
ch
o
o
l 
b
u
il
d
in
g 
(b
u
il
t 
1
8
7
2
)

•
T
h
e
 S
u
n
 D
ia
l 
(m
o
u
n
te
d
 a
t 
2
2
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t)

•
T
h
e
 V
il
la
ge
 M
o
sa
ic
 (
b
y 
O
li
ve
r 
B
u
d
d
, 
2
0
0
0
)

•
O
tf
o
rd
 p
a
la
ce
 (
b
u
il
t 
b
y 
A
rc
h
b
is
h
o
p
 W
a
rh
a
m

in
 1
5
1
5
)

•
O
tf
o
rd
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
. 

•
H
a
le
 L
a
n
e
 r
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
. 

•
T
h
e
 C
h
a
lk
p
it
. 

•
T
h
e
 V
il
la
ge
 G
re
e
n
. 

•
T
h
e
 V
il
la
ge
 P
o
n
d
. 

•
P
a
la
ce
 F
ie
ld
. 

•
O
xe
n
h
il
l 
M
e
a
d
o
w
 a
n
d
 S
h
a
w
. 

•
Te
ls
to
n
 P
a
rk
. 

•
A
ll
 d
e
si
gn
a
te
d
 a
gr
ic
u
lt
u
ra
l 
la
n
d

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh
. 

•
A
ll
 t
h
e
 u
n
d
e
ve
lo
p
e
d
 a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e

N
o
rt
h
 D
o
w
n
s.

•
C
h
a
n
tr
y 
C
o
tt
a
ge
 (
o
n
ce
 a
 p
a
ir
 o
f 
c1
6
-1
7

ti
m
b
e
r-
fr
a
m
e
d
 c
o
tt
a
ge
s)

•
T
h
e
 C
h
a
n
tr
y 
(c
1
4
 c
o
u
rt
 h
o
u
se
, 
a
d
a
p
te
d
)

•
St
 B
a
rt
h
o
lo
m
e
w
’s
 C
h
u
rc
h
 (
la
te
 c
1
0
)

•
P
o
n
d
 H
o
u
se
 a
n
d
 H
o
lm
e
sd
a
le
 (
e
a
rl
y 
c1
8
)

•
B
u
b
b
le
st
o
n
e
 F
a
rm
 (
c1
6
-1
7
 f
ra
m
e
d
 c
o
tt
a
ge
)

•
C
o
le
ts
 W
e
ll
 (
1
7
9
0
 w
it
h
 c
1
9
 a
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s)

•
N
o
s 
2
0
,2
2
,2
4
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
(i
n
 1
7
9
0
 t
h
e
 P
a
ri
sh

W
o
rk
h
o
u
se
)

•
T
h
e
 P
o
n
d
 (
n
o
w
 a
 l
is
te
d
 b
u
il
d
in
g)

•
F
o
rg
e
 R
e
st
a
u
ra
n
t 
(t
h
re
e
 c
1
7
 c
o
tt
a
ge
s)

•
T
h
e
 B
u
ll
 (
th
e
 e
a
rl
y 
Tu
d
o
r 
h
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
a
st
e
r

m
a
so
n
 o
f 
O
tf
o
rd
 p
a
la
ce
)

•
C
o
rn
e
r 
H
o
u
se
 (
c1
7
 f
a
rm
h
o
u
se
)

•
C
a
st
le
 F
a
rm
 (
e
a
rl
y 
c1
6
 f
a
rm
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
a
la
ce
)

•
T
h
e
 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
 S
o
la
r 
Sy
st
e
m
 (
ce
n
tr
e
d
 

o
n
 O
tf
o
rd
 R
e
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
, 
2
0
0
0
)

Agenda Item 7

Page 84



w
w

w
.o

tf
o

r
d

.i
n

fo
/p

a
r
is

h
p

la
n

/ 

Agenda Item 7

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



The Otford Community-led Parish Plan

P
a
rt Tw

o

Agenda Item 7

Page 87



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

1
: 

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
: 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 &

 W
A

LK
W

A
Y

S

S
p

e
e

d
in

g
 l

im
it

 i
s 

to
o

 h
ig

h
 a

n
d

 i
s 

ig
n

o
re

d
 b

y
 m

a
n

y
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
e

n
fo

rc
e

d

1
:1

:a
E

xp
lo

re
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 d
ri

v
e

rs
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
sp

e
e

d
 l

im
it

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

n
s 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

K
C

C
H

D
J.

Le
e

N
/A

o
f 

e
n

fo
rc

in
g

 t
h

e
m

.

I:
1

:b
D

e
v

e
lo

p
 w

a
y

s 
o

f 
h

e
ig

h
te

n
in

g
 d

ri
v

e
rs

' a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 
e

n
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

K
C

C
H

D
J.

Le
e

N
/A

h
o

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

 I
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
'v

il
la

g
e

 g
a

te
w

a
y

s'
 a

n
d

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

  
v

e
rg

e

 p
o

st
s 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.

I:
1

:c
T

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 S
p

e
e

d
w

a
tc

h
: 

 t
h

e
 p

o
li

ce
 S

p
e

e
d

-C
o

n
tr

o
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

W
K

P
D

J.
Le

e
N

/A

I:
1

:d
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 u

se
 o

f 
re

a
r-

sc
re

e
n

 s
ti

ck
e

rs
, 

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 l
e

a
fl

e
t 

d
ro

p
s,

 t
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
J.

Le
e

in
cr

e
a

se
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 t
h

a
t 

lo
ca

l 
d

ri
v

e
rs

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

m
se

lv
e

s 
in

fl
u

e
n

ce
 s

p
e

e
d

.

W
id

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

s,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
re

 a
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 p

ro
b

le
m

.

1
:2

:a
W

it
h

 K
e

n
t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
o

n
 P

W
 E

a
st

 a
n

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

K
C

C
H

D
J.

Le
e

N
/A

W
e

st
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t.

 T
o

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 K
e

n
t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s.

1
:2

:b
T

o
 l

o
b

b
y

 f
o

r 
g

re
a

te
r 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
w

id
th

 r
e

st
ri

ct
io

n
s

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

J.
Le

e
N

/A

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 c
ro

ss
in

g
s 

a
re

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 s
a

fe
ty

1
:3

:a
A

ct
io

n
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 s

it
e

s 
fo

r 
cr

o
ss

in
g

s
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
K

C
C

H
D

J.
Le

e
N

/A

w
h

ic
h

 a
d

h
e

re
 t

o
 K

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

G
u

id
e

li
n

e
s.

 T
o

 l
o

b
b

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

1
:3

:b
A

ct
io

n
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
K

C
C

H
D

J.
Le

e
N

/A

cr
o

ss
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

to
 b

e
co

m
e

 a
 P

e
li

ca
n

 c
ro

ss
in

g
.

M
a

n
y

 o
f 

O
tf

o
rd

's
 p

a
v

e
m

e
n

t 
su

rf
a

ce
s 

a
re

 p
o

o
rl

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

, 
o

ft
e

n
 n

a
rr

o
w

, 

a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
ti

m
e

s 
n

o
n

-e
x

is
ta

n
t.

 T
h

e
 H

ig
h

 S
re

e
t 

p
a

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 u
n

-a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

.

1
:4

:a
T

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
A

O
N

B
J.

Le
e

N
/A

th
e

 v
il

la
g

e
. 

T
o

 l
o

b
b

y
 f

o
r 

it
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

.
K

C
C

H
D

1
:4

:b
T

o
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

 f
o

o
tw

a
y

s 
w

h
e

re
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
A

O
N

B
J.

Le
e

N
/A

a
t 

p
re

se
n

t 
th

e
y

 a
re

 n
o

n
 e

xi
st

a
n

t.
 T

o
 l

o
b

b
y

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
.

K
C

C
H

D

1
:4

:c
T

o
  

re
v

ie
w

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

n
e

ss
 o

f 
in

tr
o

d
u

ci
n

g
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

 
O

P
C

J.
Le

e
N

/A

lo
w

-l
e

v
e

l 
li

g
h

ti
n

g
 o

r 
h

ig
h

-v
is

ib
il

it
y

 f
o

o
tw

a
y

 f
e

a
tu

re
s 

in
 c

e
rt

a
in

 k
e

y
 

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 r
is

k
 p

o
in

ts
. 

T
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 w
it

h
 K

e
n

t 
H

ii
g

h
w

a
y

s 
a

n
d

 l
o

b
b

y
.

Agenda Item 7

Page 88



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 v
il

la
g

e
.

1
:5

:a
T

o
 p

u
t 

p
re

ss
u

re
 o

n
 S

D
C

 t
o

 r
e

so
lv

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

in
 w

o
rs

t-
a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 r

o
a

d
s.

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

S
D

C
J.

Le
e

N
/A

1
:5

:b
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 O

P
C

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
y

st
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

 v
il

la
g

e
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
.

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
J.

Le
e

N
/A

1
:5

:c
W

it
h

 O
P

C
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
su

g
g

e
st

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a
 'G

re
e

n
'

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
J.

Le
e

N
/A

ca
r 

p
a

rk
, 

o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

 v
il

la
g

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
to

 f
a

ci
li

ta
te

 s
ch

o
o

l 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
o

n
g

e
st

io
n

.
S

D
C

Agenda Item 7

Page 89



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
Le

a
d

e
r

2
: 

A
 C

A
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

T
o

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
lo

ca
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

  o
ld

e
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 o
f 

O
tf

o
rd

.

2
: 

1
: 

a
E

st
a

b
li

sh
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
: 

S
D

C
:

M
e

d
iu

m
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

2
: 

1
: 

b
D

ra
w

 u
p

 s
h

o
rt

-l
is

t 
o

f 
su

it
a

b
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
si

g
n

 o
p

ti
o

n
s

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
Lo

n
g

2
: 

1
: 

c 
R

e
v

ie
w

 l
e

a
se

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

s.
 

O
P

C
:

Lo
n

g

W
h

e
re

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 r

e
ct

if
y

 p
u

b
li

c 
a

re
a

s 
w

h
ic

h
 c

re
a

te
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 f
a

m
il

ie
s.

2
:2

:a
F

o
rm

 a
ct

io
n

 t
e

a
m

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 p
ro

b
le

m
 a

re
a

s
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
M

e
d

iu
m

R
.S

h
e

lt
o

n

2
:2

:b
P

ro
p

o
se

 r
e

m
e

d
ie

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 O

P
C

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
M

e
d

iu
m

2
:2

:c
Lo

b
b

y
 K

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

/ 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

to
 t

a
k

e
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 

a
ct

io
n

O
P

C
K

C
C

M
e

d
iu

m

In
tr

o
d

u
ce

 a
 t

o
d

d
le

rs
 p

la
y

 g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 s
e

a
ts

 o
n

 H
a

le
 L

a
n

e
 r

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

n
d

 

2
:3

:a
W

it
h

 O
P

C
 t

o
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
 s

u
rv

e
y

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 w
o

u
ld

 u
se

 t
h

e
 f

a
ci

li
ty

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
O

n
-g

o
in

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

2
:3

:b
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

s.
 O

u
tl

in
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

. 
Q

u
o

te
s.

  
In

v
o

lv
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

: 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

: 
S

D
C

M
e

d
iu

m

2
:3

:c
R

a
is

e
 f

in
a

n
ce

 (
Lo

ca
l 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 +

 F
u

n
d

in
g

)
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
M

e
d

iu
m

2
:3

:d
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v

a
l:

 P
re

p
a

re
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 a

n
d

 i
n

st
a

ll
O

P
C

M
e

d
iu

m
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 L

o
tt

C
o

m
m

 f
u

n
d

in
g

C
re

a
te

 a
  

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
W

e
st

 O
tf

o
rd

2
:3

:e
A

ss
e

ss
  

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 n

e
e

d
s.

 E
st

a
b

li
sh

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
li

ty
: 

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

Lo
n

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

ct
s:

 I
n

v
o

lv
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

: 
R

e
v

ie
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
Lo

n
g

E
st

im
a

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 &

 t
im

e
sc

a
le

. 
R

a
is

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
Lo

n
g

W
a

y
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 l
o

ca
l 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
ca

re
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

2
:4

:a
D

is
cu

ss
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

W
I 

a
n

d
 O

tf
o

rd
 S

o
ci

e
ty

, 
w

a
y

s 
in

 w
h

ic
h

 a
 c

a
re

 n
e

tw
o

rk
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
S

D
C

M
e

d
iu

m
C

. 
G

ri
ff

it
h

s
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

. 
R

e
v

ie
w

 l
o

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
w

h
o

 c
a

n
 p

ro
v

id
e

/s
u

p
p

o
rt

.

M
a

k
in

g
 r

e
a

d
in

g
 o

f 
fo

rm
s 

a
n

d
 l

o
ca

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 e
a

si
e

r

2
:5

:a
:

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
la

rg
e

 t
y

p
e

 o
r 

e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 m
e

d
ia

 f
o

r 
lo

ca
l

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
/C

h
u

rc
h

e
s

S
h

o
rt

J.
 E

d
-W

in

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 c
lu

b
s 

&
 a

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ts

.

Agenda Item 7

Page 90



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 m

a
k

e
 i

t 
m

o
re

 

 e
a

si
ly

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

.

2
:6

:a
:

B
u

il
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
'r

o
a

d
-c

li
n

ic
s'

 w
h

e
re

 a
 w

id
e

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

B
.L

a
tt

im
e

r
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 g

ro
u

p

ca
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 o

p
n

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
si

s 
to

 g
ro

u
p

s 
o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

 v
il

la
g

e
 ‘

w
e

lc
o

m
e

 p
a

ck
’ 

fo
r 

a
ll

 n
e

w
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

.

0
2

:0
7

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 P
C

 'I
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

' w
it

h
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

S
h

o
rt

R
.S

h
e

lt
o

n
O

tf
o

rd
 S

o
c.

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 l
o

ca
l 

su
p

p
li

e
rs

: 
D

e
si

g
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
ce

 a
s 

h
a

rd
 c

o
p

ie
s

C
.G

ri
ff

it
h

s

Agenda Item 7

Page 91



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

3
: 

F
U

T
U

R
E

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

, 
D

E
V

E
V

E
LO

P
M

N
T

 &
 H

O
U

S
IN

G

la
ck

 o
f 

R
ig

h
t 

o
f 

a
p

p
e

a
l 

in
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

b
y

 a
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
/P

a
ri

sh
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

3
:1

:a
Lo

b
b

y
in

g
 o

f 
M

P
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 h

a
v

e
 t

h
is

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

so
c.

/ 
O

P
C

Lo
n

g
J.

 E
d

-W
in

Agenda Item 7

Page 92



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

4
: 

M
A

IN
T

A
IN

IN
G

 A
N

 A
T

T
R

A
C

T
IV

E
 V

IL
LA

G
E

T
h

e
 v

il
la

g
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 l

o
o

k
s 

so
 u

n
-c

a
re

d
 f

o
r.

  

4
:1

:a
 T

o
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 a

re
a

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 &
 r

e
ta

il
e

rs
 f

e
e

l 
ca

n
 b

e
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

.
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
R

e
ta

il
e

rs
O

n
-g

o
in

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

 P
ro

p
o

se
 t

h
e

 a
ct

io
n

 t
h

a
t 

is
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
In

v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 F
in

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

A
O

N
B

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 A
ct

io
n

 G
ro

u
p

/O
P

C
  

to
 l

o
b

b
y

 K
e

n
t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
fo

r 
a

ct
io

n
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

K
e

n
t 

H
W

.

P
ro

p
o

se
 w

a
y

s 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 l
o

ca
l 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 m
o

n
u

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

a
rc

h
it

e
ct

u
ra

l

o
r 

h
is

to
ri

ca
l 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
. 

T
o

 r
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 v

il
la

g
e

4
:2

: 
a

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
w

a
y

s 
o

f 
p

o
rt

ra
y

in
g

  
th

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

ty
 o

f 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
E

n
g

. 
H

e
r.

S
h

o
rt

W
a

rd
s

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 L
o

tt

 v
il

la
g

e
 b

u
id

in
g

s.
 E

st
im

a
te

: 
S

e
e

k
 f

u
n

d
in

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

4
:2

:b
S

e
e

k
 a

d
v

ic
e

 o
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

M
d

w
a

y
  

C
l.

S
h

o
rt

W
a

rd
s

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 L
o

tt

a
s 

it
 w

a
s 

a
t 

tu
rn

 o
f 

ce
n

tu
ry

. 
p

re
p

a
re

 e
st

im
a

te
: 

S
e

e
k

 f
u

n
d

in
g

O
P

C
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

D
o

n
't

 l
e

t 
th

e
 P

a
la

ce
 T

o
w

e
r 

cr
u

m
b

le
 u

n
ti

l 
it

 i
s 

u
n

re
p

a
ir

a
b

le
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
E

n
g

 H
e

r.
O

n
-g

o
in

g
S

D
C

4
:3

:a
W

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

E
n

g
li

sh
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
, 

p
re

ss
u

re
 S

D
C

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 c
o

rr
e

ct
iv

e
 

O
P

C
S

D
C

C
.W

a
rd

a
ct

io
n

. 
T

e
a

m
 t

o
 a

d
v

is
e

 o
n

 a
n

y
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

b
e

n
e

fi
ci

a
l

4
:3

:b
P

u
rs

u
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 'N
a

tu
ra

l 
M

e
a

d
o

w
' a

re
a

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
O

tf
. 

S
o

c
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

E
.W

a
rd

O
tf

o
rd

 S
o

c.

o
f 

a
 s

a
fe

 'd
ip

p
in

g
' f

o
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
.

C
.G

ri
ff

it
h

s

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

a
la

ce
 F

ie
ld

 i
s 

lo
n

g
 o

v
e

rd
u

e
 f

o
r 

sy
m

p
a

th
e

ti
c 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t

4
:4

:a
R

e
v

ie
w

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

d
e

si
g

n
in

g
 c

o
n

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

 t
o

 i
ll

u
st

ra
te

 a
t 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

E
n

g
 H

e
ri

t
O

n
-g

o
in

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 L
o

tt

p
o

in
ts

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
ie

ld
, 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 P
a

la
ce

 m
a

y
 h

a
v

e
 l

o
o

k
e

d
 i

n
 1

5
2

0
. 

 
M

e
d

w
a

y
 C

l.
c.

G
ri

ff
it

h
s

B
u

b
b

le
st

o
n

e
 P

a
ra

d
e

 c
a

n
 l

o
o

k
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

 a
n

d
 b

e
 s

a
fe

r 
fo

r 
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
s.

4
:5

a
R

e
v

ie
w

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 l
o

o
k

 o
f 

th
e

 p
a

ra
d

e
, 

th
e

 a
v

a
il

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
A

O
N

B
M

e
d

iu
m

E
.W

a
rd

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

it
h

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts

4
:5

b
If

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

g
re

e
, 

re
v

ie
w

 w
a

y
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
K

C
C

M
e

d
iu

m
E

.W
a

rd

im
p

ro
v

e
d

.
J.

Le
e

Agenda Item 7

Page 93



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

T
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 d

o
g

g
ie

 b
in

s

4
:6

a
S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri

sh
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
to

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

E
.W

a
rd

b
in

s 
(w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 c
le

a
ra

n
ce

) 
in

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
re

a
s.

(E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t)

Agenda Item 7

Page 94



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

5
: 

P
R

O
M

O
T

IN
G

 A
 G

R
E

E
N

E
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

5
:1

:a
S

e
t 

u
p

 O
tf

o
rd

 G
re

e
n

 T
e

a
m

 (
O

G
T

) 
co

re
 g

ro
u

p
O

G
T

S
D

C
O

n
-g

o
in

g
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:1

:b
B

u
il

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

O
G

T
E

n
 S

a
v

 T
r

O
n

-g
o

in
g

5
:2

a
H

o
ld

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

e
v

e
n

t 
in

 O
tf

o
rd

, 
p

o
ss

ib
ly

 a
 d

e
b

a
te

 o
n

 c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
O

G
T

S
e

v
 T

T
 g

p
S

h
o

rt
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:2

b
B

u
il

d
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

w
it

h
 l

o
ca

l 
ch

u
rc

h
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 b

o
d

ie
s

O
G

T
S

h
o

rt
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:3

:a
E

st
a

b
li

sh
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 w

it
h

 O
P

S
, 

R
u

ss
e

ll
 H

o
u

se
 a

n
d

 S
t 

M
ic

h
a

e
l's

O
G

T
S

h
o

rt
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:3

:b
S

e
e

k
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

e
a

ch
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
b

o
u

t
O

G
T

M
e

d
iu

m
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

5
:3

:c
D

is
cu

ss
 p

o
ss

ib
il

it
y

 o
f 

h
e

lp
in

g
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 b
e

co
m

e
 m

o
re

 e
co

-c
o

n
sc

io
u

s
O

G
T

Lo
n

g
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:4

:a
F

in
d

 s
o

m
e

o
n

e
 t

o
 d

o
 a

 f
e

a
si

b
il

it
y

 s
tu

d
y

 o
f 

th
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
h

e
a

ti
n

g
 i

n
O

G
T

S
e

v
 T

T
 g

p
O

n
-g

o
in

g
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

v
il

la
g

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

5
:4

:b
S

e
e

k
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
O

G
T

K
e

n
t 

C
A

N
O

n
-g

o
in

g
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:4

:c
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

in
it

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
O

G
T

M
e

d
iu

m
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

5
:5

:a
C

a
lc

u
la

te
 O

tf
o

rd
's

 C
a

rb
o

n
 f

o
o

tp
ri

n
t

O
G

T
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

B
.L

a
tt

im
e

r

5
:5

:b
S

e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
it

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
O

G
T

O
P

C
O

n
-g

o
in

g
B

.L
a

tt
im

e
r

Agenda Item 7

Page 95



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

6
: 

E
N

C
O

U
R

A
G

IN
G

 A
 F

IT
T

E
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

C
y

cl
e

 l
a

n
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
y

cl
e

 p
a

th
s 

a
re

 b
a

d
ly

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 i
n

 O
tf

o
rd

. 

6
:1

:a
T

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

ro
u

te
s 

a
n

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

s,
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

it
h

 S
U

S
T

R
A

N
S

, 
 S

D
C

 a
n

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
n

-g
o

in
g

R
.D

u
ll

a
g

e

O
P

C
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
te

re
st

e
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s,
 t

o
 l

o
b

b
y

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
.

U
ti

li
se

 b
ri

d
le

 p
a

th
s.

6
:2

:a
T

o
 a

ss
e

ss
 w

h
a

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

M
e

d
iu

m
R

.D
u

ll
a

g
e

o
f 

la
n

d
-o

w
n

e
r,

 t
o

 a
ss

e
ss

 c
o

st
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

.
(E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t)

6
:2

:b
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 G
re

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 G

a
te

w
a

y
s 

T
h

a
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 M

e
d

w
a

y
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
G

G
T

M
O

n
-g

o
in

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

o
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 D
a

re
n

t 
ri

v
e

r 
p

a
th

 a
n

d
 a

d
v

is
e

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
.

P
ro

b
le

m
s 

w
it

h
 c

e
rt

a
in

 v
il

la
g

e
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s

6
.3

:a
In

 a
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 P

a
ri

sh
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

co
n

ce
rn

. 
D

e
ci

d
e

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

R
.D

u
ll

a
g

e

u
p

o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 

a
ct

io
n

 w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.
(E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t)
E

.W
a

rd

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 3
D

m
a

p
 d

is
p

la
y

 a
d

jo
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 &

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

fo
o

tp
a

th
s 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
O

n
-g

o
in

g

6
:4

:a
W

it
h

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
to

 d
e

si
g

n
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
 m

a
p

 o
f 

lo
ca

l
(E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t)
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

fo
o

tp
a

th
s,

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 h

a
v

e
 i

t 
in

st
a

ll
e

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

rp
a

rk
.

Li
n

k
 w

it
h

 t
a

st
e

fu
l 

fi
n

g
e

r-
p

o
st

s 
a

t 
st

a
rt

 p
o

in
ts

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
O

n
-g

o
in

g
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

6
:4

:b
E

st
a

b
li

sh
 c

o
st

 o
f 

p
o

st
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
/i

n
st

a
ll

a
ti

o
n

. 
G

a
in

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 t

o
(E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t)
E

.W
a

rd

in
st

a
ll

. 
S

e
e

k
 f

u
n

d
in

g

P
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

o
f 

sp
o

rt
s 

cl
u

b
s 

a
n

d
 k

e
e

p
-f

it
 c

la
ss

e
s

6
:5

:a
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 s

p
o

rt
s 

a
u

d
it

 o
f 

cl
u

b
s 

a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.
 P

u
b

li
sh

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
R

.D
u

ll
a

g
e

w
w

w
.o

tf
o

rd
.i

n
fo

 w
e

b
si

te
. 

  
S

u
p

p
ly

 h
a

rd
 c

o
p

ie
s 

to
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 O
ff

ic
e

.

In
tr

o
d

u
ce

 m
o

d
e

rn
 f

it
n

e
ss

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

m
a

tu
re

 a
n

d
 o

ld
e

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
.

6
:6

:a
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 n

e
e

d
 s

u
rv

e
y

 t
o

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
. 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 s
u

it
a

b
le

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
Lo

n
g

R
.D

u
ll

a
g

e

si
te

. 
O

b
ta

in
 e

st
im

a
te

s 
o

f 
co

st
: 

S
e

e
k

 f
u

n
d

in
g

.
(R

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
)

Agenda Item 7

Page 96



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

7
: 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 &

 T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T

E
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 n
e

w
 s

h
o

p
p

e
rs

 t
o

 O
tf

o
rd

 a
n

d
 O

tf
o

rd
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
h

o
p

 l
o

ca
ll

y
.

7
:1

:a
T

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 w
a

y
s 

o
f 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 
re

ta
il

e
rs

 t
o

 a
 w

id
e

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

. 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

n
-g

o
in

g
P

.C
h

a
t.

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
p

e
ci

a
l 
re

ta
il

 e
v

e
n

ts
 (

C
h

ri
st

m
a

s 
sh

o
p

p
in

g
 f

e
st

iv
a

l)

A
 f

a
rm

e
r'

s 
m

a
rk

e
t 

w
o

u
ld

 s
u

p
p

ly
 v

il
la

g
e

 n
e

e
d

s.

7
:2

:a
T

o
 b

u
il

d
 a

 d
a

ta
b

a
se

 o
f 

m
o

b
il

e
 f

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

su
p

p
li

e
rs

. 
T

o
 b

ro
a

d
ca

st
 t

h
is

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

S
h

o
rt

P
.C

h
a

t.

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
o

u
g

h
 P

a
ri

sh
 n

e
w

sl
e

tt
e

r:
 w

e
b

 s
it

e
s:

 l
o

ca
l 

m
a

g
a

zi
n

e
s.

C
re

a
ti

n
g

 a
 d

ir
e

ct
o

ry
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 l

o
ca

ll
y

.

7
:3

:a
S

te
e

ri
n

g
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 a

ss
im

il
a

te
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

p
ro

d
u

ce
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li

sh
 i

t.
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
M

e
d

iu
m

P
.C

h
a

t.

7
:3

:b
C

o
ll

a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
M

e
d

iu
m

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 p

a
ri

sh
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li

sh
 o

n
 o

fo
rd

.n
e

t/
in

fo
 w

e
b

si
te

.

7
:3

:c
T

o
 h

o
ld

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 V

e
st

ry
 E

st
a

te
 (

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 A
u

to
) 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

S
D

C
Lo

n
g

P
.C

h
a

t.

a
n

d
 e

xa
m

in
e

 w
a

y
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 g
re

a
te

r 
p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

.

O
u

r 
b

u
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 i
s 

in
te

rm
it

te
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
to

p
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
  

to
o

 e
a

rl
y

7
:4

:a
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
 l

o
b

b
y

 A
rr

iv
a

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

lo
ca

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

O
P

C
O

n
-g

o
in

g
P

.C
h

a
t.

C
o

u
n

ty
 c

o
u

n
ci

ll
o

rs
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

.
(S

e
rv

ic
e

s)

Agenda Item 7

Page 97



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

8
: 

P
R

E
P

A
R

IN
G

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 F
U

T
U

R
E

R
y

e
 L

a
n

e
 w

il
l 

b
e

co
m

e
 d

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s 
&

 u
n

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 w

it
h

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

tr
a

ff
ic

 r
e

su
lt

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
u

n
to

n
 G

re
e

n
 C

o
ld

 S
to

re
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

8
:1

:a
 P

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 S

a
fe

ty
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 c

a
n

v
a

ss
 o

p
in

io
n

 f
ro

m
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

. 
D

is
cu

ss
 w

it
h

 S
D

C
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

J.
 L

e
e

T
o

 p
ro

p
o

se
 w

o
rk

a
b

le
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
ir

 n
e

e
d

s.
(H

ig
h

w
a

y
s)

T
o

 p
re

se
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
o

b
b

y
 K

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

to
 e

xp
e

d
it

e
.

K
C

C
 H

ig
h

w
.

W
il

l 
th

e
 v

il
la

g
e

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
 w

it
h

 a
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 v
is

it
o

rs
?

8
:2

:a
A

ct
io

n
 g

ro
u

p
 w

it
h

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
 r

e
v

ie
w

 c
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
s 

o
f 

in
cr

e
a

se
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
P

.C
S

h
o

rt
R

.S
h

e
lt

o
n

in
 v

is
it

o
r 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

. 
P

ro
p

o
se

 m
e

a
n

s 
o

f 
d

e
a

li
n

g
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s.

P
u

t 
in

 h
a

n
d

 a
 p

re
p

a
ri

to
ry

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

cy
 p

la
n

.

O
tf

o
rd

 c
a

n
 l

o
se

 i
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 i
f 

it
 b

e
co

m
e

s 
o

v
e

r-
ru

n
 w

it
h

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 v

is
it

o
rs

.
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
P

.C
.

S
h

o
rt

R
.S

h
e

lt
o

n

8
:3

:a
T

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 a
ss

e
ts

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 o
u

r 
u

n
iq

u
e

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

r 
is

 p
re

se
rv

e
d

a
n

d
 e

n
jo

y
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

u
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 l
o

ca
l 

re
ta

il
e

rs
.

8
:4

:a
T

o
 e

n
la

rg
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 u

p
p

e
r 

 
Lo

n
g

C
.W

a
r
d

D
a

re
n

t 
V

a
ll

e
y

, 
it

s 
h

is
to

ry
  

a
n

d
 i

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s,

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 O
tf

o
rd

 c
e

n
tr

e
 b

e
co

m
e

s 

a
 s

p
ri

n
b

o
a

rd
 f

o
r 

lo
ca

l 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
w

is
h

in
g

 t
o

 e
xp

lo
re

 t
h

e
 v

a
ll

e
y

.

Agenda Item 7

Page 98



T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
: 

 P
A

R
T

 T
W

O

La
st

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1

P
ro

j.
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
S

u
p

p
o

rt
T

im
e

sc
a

le
P

ro
je

ct
F

u
n

d
in

g

N
o

.
A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

P
ro

g
re

ss
C

o
n

ta
ct

S
o

u
rc

e
s

9
: 

Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
LE

9
:1

:a
T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 Y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
s 

fo
ru

m
 o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
O

P
C

O
n

-g
o

in
g

R
.K

n
ig

h
t

P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

(R
e

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

)

9
:2

:a
T

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

 a
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
 v

e
n

u
e

 o
n

 H
a

le
 L

a
n

e
 R

e
c 

O
P

C
S

h
o

rt
R

.K
n

ig
h

t

u
n

ti
l 

a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
si

te
 c

a
n

 b
e

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

.

9
:3

:a
T

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

  
h

e
lp

 a
ll

 c
lu

b
s 

a
cc

e
ss

 s
p

e
a

k
e

rs
/p

re
se

n
te

rs
A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a

m
S

D
C

 Y
o

u
th

 w
h

o
 c

a
n

 t
a

lk
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
 l

if
e

-s
u

b
je

ct
s 

o
f 

in
te

re
st

 t
o

 t
h

e
m

.

9
:4

:a
T

o
 t

a
k

e
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
st

e
p

s 
to

 h
e

lp
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 a

ll
 a

sp
e

ct
s

A
ct

io
n

 T
e

a
m

S
D

C
 Y

o
u

th
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

.

Agenda Item 7

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                  

ANNUAL REVIEW OF PARKING CHARGES FOR 2013/14 AND CHRISTMAS PARKING 

2012  

Environment Select Committee – 23 October 2012 

Report of the: Community and Planning Services Director 

Also to be considered by: Cabinet 8 November 2012 

Status: Select Committee for consideration and comment 

Executive Summary:  

This report is the annual review of parking charges.  It proposes options for increases in 

respect to car park and on-street parking charges to meet the budget for 2013/14, and 

includes consideration of free Christmas parking for 2012. 

This report supports the Key Aim of the effective management of Council resources.  

Portfolio Holder Councillor Mrs Avril Hunter 

Head of Service Head of Environmental and Operational Services – Mr Richard 

Wilson 

Recommendation:  It be RESOLVED that the following proposals be considered and that 

the views of this Committee be submitted to Cabinet for consideration in relation to: 

(a) the proposed increases to car park charges for 2013/14; 

(b) the proposed increases to on-street parking charges for 2013/14; 

(c) free parking throughout the district for two Saturdays before Christmas 2012; with 
preferred dates to be confirmed. 

Introduction 

1. Through the Council’s budget process, the budget plan increase for parking 

income from both car park and on-street parking for 2013/14 is set at 3.5%. 

2. In addition to achieving the target increases for both of the parking accounts, and 

for guide purposes in connection with the budget setting process, the options 

provided indicate additional income that could be achieved. 

3. Included in this report is a suggestion that the Council considers repeating its free 

parking concession on two Saturdays before Christmas. 

Background 

4. Because car park ticket machines do not accept bronze coins, and because of the 

general lack of availability of 5p coins, parking tariffs are usually set to the nearest 

Agenda Item 8

Page 101



  

10p.  This practice is commonly adopted by local authorities.  It should be noted 

that although a tariff increase of 10p may be relatively low in monetary terms, it 

can be high in percentage terms depending upon the scale of the charge, 

particularly in relation to lower tariffs. 

5. Historic information in respect to increases in the Council’s car park charges is 

shown in the History of Parking Charges for Car Parks and On-Street Parking, 

attached as Appendix A.  This has been taken into account in formulating the 

proposals and options put forward. 

6. For guide purposes, current car parking charges for neighbouring authorities are 

attached as Appendix B. 

7. For information, in relation to parking in the vicinity of rail stations, the current day 

charge for the station car parks operated on behalf of Southeastern Trains is 

£6.50 at Sevenoaks and £5.50 at Swanley.  Annual season ticket charges at 

Sevenoaks are £1,176 for Car Park 4 (off Morewood Close) and £1,345 for Car 

Park 1 (adjacent the station). 

Car Park Proposals for 2013/14 

8. The budget increase of 3.5% is £68,075. 

9. Proposals and options are provided and attached as Appendix C.  This comprises a 

table showing individual increases proposed and the resultant income for all three 

options, and a second table showing the same increases in percentage terms.  All 

income figures quoted are net of VAT. 

10. The proposals within each option are not exclusive to that particular option, but 

can be interchanged or swapped with those in other options to provide a preferred 

set of proposals should Members so wish.  However, care should be taken to 

maintain the charging differential between the Blighs car park and the other short 

stay car parks in the town centre. 

11. In Option 1, a straight 10p increase has been applied to most tariffs except to 

some longer period tariffs where a 20p increase may be more appropriate.  In the 

Swanley, Westerham and St Johns Hill, Sevenoaks car parks only the most used, 

longer period tariffs have been included. 

12. In Option 2, slightly higher increases have generally been applied in order to 

preserve the current charges for 30 minutes parking in Blighs and for 1 hour in 

the other town centre car parks.  This is suggested to encourage turnover of 

spaces in the town centre. 

13. In Option 3, the application of a higher set of increases to the short stay tariffs in 

the Sevenoaks town centre car parks, excluding the shortest periods, obviates the 

need to consider increases in the other car parks.  This approach would avoid 

increasing day charges, which tends to mostly effect town centre workers, and 

would avoid increasing season ticket costs for town centre and station car parks 

where the take-up of season tickets has tended to drop-off over recent months. 

14. Although not shown in the options, there may be scope to consider increasing the 

day charge in the Bradbourne and Sennocke car parks by 30p to £6.50.  This 

Agenda Item 8

Page 102



would bring it in line with the current charge in the other station car parks which is 

the policy normally followed.  The rail operator usually reviews its parking charges 

in the Spring. 

15. The two-day ticket in the Bradbourne car park will be automatically adjusted so 

that its twice the day ticket rate. 

16. All of the options shown achieve the budget target of 3.5%, but in different ways. 

As stated earlier, individual proposals can be selected from any of the Options to 

provide a preferred selection should Members wish. 

17. The cost of altering ticket machines and signing has been taken into account in 

the budget figures provided. 

18. The adjustment of car park charges will require an amendment to the Council’s 

Off-Street Parking Places Order.  The process requires the Council to undertake 

statutory public consultation by way of Public Advertisement of the proposals.  To 

enable any revised charges to take effect at the beginning of April 2013, the 

proposals would need to be advertised in January so that any objections received 

could be reported to Cabinet for consideration in February to facilitate 

implementation on, or as soon after, 1st April 2013. 

Car Parks – Evening Charge 

19. As for last year, no increases to the evening parking charge are proposed.  As 

Sevenoaks District Council is one of a few Councils in this area of Kent that have 

an evening parking charge, and taking into account the likely impact any increase 

may have upon businesses in the Sevenoaks town centre, no increase is proposed 

as part of this review. 

Car Parks – Sunday Charges 

20. Because of the likely impact upon surrounding residential streets, the 

consideration of Sunday parking charges is not included in this review.  Should 

members feel this is something which should be considered, it is recommended 

that a separate review be undertaken. 

On-Street Proposals for 2013/14 

21. The target increase of 3.5% is £18,455. 

22. Last year’s on-street review concentrated upon changes to permit costs along with 

a few adjustments to the long stay charges as shown in the History of Parking 

Charges, Appendix A. 

23. This year’s review does not effect permit charges, but suggests increases to the 

longer periods of pay and display to achieve the budget target.  In addition, a 

revision to the charges in Westerham are proposed to continue the 

standardisation of tariffs which featured in last year’s review. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 103



  

24. It is noted that the charges in Swanley were amended to the standard tariff last 

year.  However, it is considered appropriate to include this area in the options so 

that it is kept in line with the other areas within the District. 

25. In respect to the parking scheme outside Knockholt station, as this was only 

implemented last year and is subject to a scheme review, is has not been included 

in this review. 

26. Options are provided, attached as Appendix D, for the consideration of increases 

to meet the budget target.  The proposals are presented in the same table format 

as for the car park proposals with three options being provided for consideration.  

The figures shown do not include VAT as this is not applicable to on-street parking. 

27. In Option 1, a nominal increase of 10p has been applied to the various all day 

charges.  The opportunity is taken to continue the standardisation of tariffs 

embarked upon last year by amending the tariff structure for the parking areas in 

Westerham so that it falls in line with others in the District.  However, without 

considering other increases, this selection falls short of the budget target of 3.5%. 

28. Option 2 builds upon the approach taken in Option 1 of increasing the longer stay 

periods by including a 10p increase on the 4 hour charge and by increasing the 

day charges by 20p.  This, with the inclusion of the standardisation of the 

Westerham tariffs, gives 3.7%. 

29. A different approach has been taken in Option 3 where apart from the 

standardisation to the Westerham charges, the only increase proposed is a 10p 

increase to the shortest 30 minute period.  Although the increase would be high in 

percentage terms, as the charge is doubled, the cost of 30 minutes parking would 

still be relatively low at 20p.  Ignoring the income from the standardisation of the 

Westerham tariffs, the 10p increase achieves just under 3.6%, but with the 

Westerham adjustment achieves 5.7% in total. 

Christmas Parking 2012 

30. Last year, the Council provided free parking on the two Saturdays before 

Christmas to encourage people to shop locally and to help support local 

businesses in the face of competition from other shopping areas in the region.  

Members are asked to consider repeating the free parking concession this 

Christmas. 

31. This only applies to Sevenoaks and Westerham as parking charges in Swanley 

(and now in Halstead outside Knockholt station) only apply Monday to Friday. 

32. This year, Christmas Day falls on a Tuesday.  We have obtained the views of the 

Sevenoaks Chamber of Commerce, the Sevenoaks Town Council and the 

Westerham Town Council regarding preferred dates for the free parking 

concession.  The views received are as follows: 

• The Administrator of the Sevenoaks and District Chamber of Commerce 

has commented:  “Thank you so much for offering the free parking again 

for the Christmas season. Looking at the calendar, I think perhaps 

Saturday 8th & 15th December would perhaps be best, as I don't know if 

Agenda Item 8

Page 104



there will be a lot of people coming in on the Saturday 22nd but would be 

interested to see what the Town Council feel.” 

• The Sevenoaks Town Council have commented:  “Should the District 

Council agree to the provision of free parking for 2 Saturdays prior to 

Christmas, the Town Council would suggest Saturday 15 & 22 December. 

Many thanks for consulting with us.” 

• The Clerk to Westerham Town Council has commented:  “I do not think 

there are any strong preferences, it seemed to work well last year so 

perhaps the same!” 

33. It should be noted that the provision of free parking will enable people to park up 

to the maximum period of stay should they so wish, which is likely to reduce the 

turnover of spaces.  All parking areas will be enforced as normal to ensure 

compliance with general conditions of use. 

34. As last year, all ticket machines would be closed-off with suitable signing provided 

to advise users that they do not need to pay. 

35. The parking areas operated by Sencio at the Sevenoaks leisure centre form part of 

the Suffolk Way car park.  Sencio has confirmed that it is happy to support the 

Christmas free parking concession again this year. 

36. It is estimated that the loss of income for all car parks and on-street areas 

throughout the district for each Saturday would be in the region of £7,500.  

Therefore, the total cost of providing free parking for the two Saturdays is 

estimated at £15,000.  It is suggested that should free parking be made available 

for Christmas 2012, it be funded from the Supplementary Estimates. 

Christmas Lights Events 2012 

37. Members are advised that the provision of free parking in connection with the 

Christmas Lights events being held in Sevenoaks on 30th November Free parking 

from 6pm) and in Westerham on 29th November (free parking from 5pm), has 

been approved by the Council’s Portfolio Holder and that the Council is pleased to 

support these events.  It should be noted that the Sevenoaks event is also being 

supported by Sencio Leisure. 

Key Implications 

Financial 

38. Proposals to increase parking income are required to meet the Council’s budget 

targets set in respect to car park and on-street parking. 

39. The financial implications are evident in the report and appendices. 

Community Impact and Outcomes 

40. The introduction of parking charge increases is likely to have an impact to some 

degree upon those people from the local community and visitors from outside the 

Agenda Item 8

Page 105



  

district who use the parking facilities, although it is impossible to quantify any 

likely resultant effect.  Rather than pay any higher charges, people may instead 

decide to park for shorter periods, may lessen the frequency of their visits or may 

choose to go elsewhere. 

Legal, Human Rights etc. 

41. As mentioned in the summary sections of this report, any changes to car park 

charges will necessitate an amendment to the Car Park Order and any changes to 

the on-street parking charges will necessitate an amendment to the Traffic 

Regulation Order.  There are set legal processes to be followed in respect to both 

of these Orders. 

42. There are no human rights issues or implications. 

Equality Impacts 

43. There is a low risk that any of the options presented will have an adverse impact 

on people with 'protected characteristics' under the Equality Act.  There are no 

apparent issues of direct relevance to parking charges as our car parks are open 

to use by anyone who chooses to do so.  Free parking is generally available in 

roads just out from the town centres, although in some cases this might be limited 

to 2 hours.  Free parking is offered for those with disabilities who hold a Blue 

Badge and this remains unaffected.  Any issues will be monitored through 

complaints received. 

Conclusions 

44. The budget proposals to meet the budget targets along with other options for 

consideration are detailed in the appendices.  It is important that the proposals 

are considered making reference to the History of Parking Charges and the 

Parking Charges for Neighbouring Authorities, both of which are appended to this 

report. 

Risk Assessment Statement 

45. The estimated figures are based upon current levels of patronage taking into 

account the effect of the recent temporary Waitrose store.  The introduction of 

higher parking charges could lead to reduced patronage and, hence, the under-

achievement of the income levels estimated in this report. 

Sources of Information: Information from car park ticket machines 

Information from neighbouring authorities 

Contact Officer(s): Gary Connor Ext.7310 

Kristen Paterson, Community and Planning Services Director  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 106



HISTORY OF PARKING CHARGES - CAR PARKS

(Showing charges as and when increased and approximate percentage increase)

APPENDIX A

Evening charges £1.00

Short stay 1 hr 40p 33% 50p 25% 60p 20% 70p 17% 80p 14% 90p 13%

all excluding 2 hrs 70p 40% £1.00 43% £1.10 10% £1.20 9% £1.40 17% £1.50 7% £1.60 7%

Blighs 3 hrs £1.40 40% £1.50 7% £1.60 7% £1.80 13% £2.00 11% £2.10 5% £2.20 5%

4 hrs £2.00 33% £2.10 5% £2.50 19% £2.70 8% £3.00 11% £3.20 7%

Short Stay 30 mins 30p 40p 33% 50p 25% 60p 20% 50p -17%

Blighs only 1 hr 50p 60p 20% 70p 17% 80p 14% 90p 13% £1.00 11% £1.10 10%

(started in 2002) 2 hr £1.00 £1.20 20% £1.40 17% £1.50 7% £1.70 13% £2.20 29% £2.30 4%

3 hr £1.50 £1.80 20% £2.00 11% £2.20 10% £2.50 14% £2.70 8% £3.60 33% £3.80 5%

Long stay £2.30 15% £2.50 9% £3.00 20% £3.10 3% £3.20 3% £3.40 6% £3.80 12% £4.00 5% £4.20 5%

Seasons (yr) Buckhurst 2 £300 36% £450 50% £500 11% £515 3% £530 3% £560 6% £769 37% £779 1% £799 3% £819 3%

South Park £300 20% £450 50% £500 11% £515 3% £530 3% £560 6% £769 37% £779 1% £799 3% £819 3%

Residents £35 16% £40 14%

Bradbourne After 3.00 pm £1.50

Day £3.00 50% £4.00 33% £4.10 3% £4.20 2% £4.30 2% £4.60 7% £5.00 9% £5.40 8% £5.80 7% £6.20 7%

Season (yr) £440 46% £550 25% £650 18% £670 3% £760 13% £780 3% £910 17% £970 7% £990 2% £1,020 3% £1,050 3%

Sennocke 2 hr £1.00 100%

After 3.00 pm £1.50

Day £3.00 50% £4.00 33% £4.10 3% £4.20 2% £4.30 2% £4.60 7% £5.00 9% £5.40 8% £5.80 7% £6.20 7%

Season (yr) £440 46% £550 25% £720 31% £740 3% £800 8% £820 3% £950 16% £1,010 6% £1,030 2% £1,060 3% £1,090 3%

St. Johns & 30 mins 10p 20p 100%

St. James 1 hr 20p 30p 50% 40p 33%

(started in 2001) 2 hrs 30p 50p 67% 60p 20%

2 to 4 hrs 60p 20% 80p 33% £1.00 25%

Day £2.00 100% £2.20 10% £2.50 14% £2.70 8% £2.90 7%

SEVENOAKS TOWN CENTRE

SEVENOAKS STATION

SEVENOAKS ST JOHNS HILL

2007 2009 201220062005 20112002 2003 20102004 2008

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 107



HISTORY OF PARKING CHARGES - CAR PARKS

(Showing charges as and when increased and approximate percentage increase)

APPENDIX A

30min 20p

Quebec Avenue Up to 2 hrs 30p 50% 1 hr 30p n/a 40p 33%

and Darenth Day 70p 40% 2 hrs 50p 67% 60p 20%

Season (yr) 2-4 hrs 80p 14% £1.00 25%

Residents (yr) £35 £40 14% Day £1.50 214% £2.00 33% £2.70 35% £2.90 7%

Park Road 30 mins Free 10p 20p 100%

(started 2005) 1 hr Free 20p 30p 50% 40p 33%

2 hrs Free 30p 50p 67% 60p 20%

2 to 4 hrs 50p 80p 60% £1.00 25%

Residents (yr) £40

Bevan Place 30 mins Free 10p 20p 100%

(started 2005) 1 hr Free 20p 30p 50% 40p 33%

2 hrs Free 30p 50p 67% 60p 20%

2 to 4 hrs 50p 80p 60% £1.00 25%

Day £2.50 3.00£  20% £3.50 17% £3.70 6%

Season (yr) £396

Residents (yr) £40

Station Road 30 mins Free 10p 20p 100%

1 hr Free 20p 30p 50% 40p 33%

2 hrs Free 30p 50p 67% 60p 20%

2 to 4 hrs 50p 80p 60% £1.00 25%

Day £2.50 66% 3.00£  20% £3.50 17% £3.70 6%

SWANLEY

WESTERHAM

20112010200920082002 2003 200720062004 2005 2012

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 108



HISTORY OF PARKING CHARGES - ON STREET

(Showing charges as and when increased and approximate percentage increase)

APPENDIX A

Sevenoaks

Town centre shops (2004) 30 minutes 10p

(High St, London Rd 1 hour 30p 40p 33% 50p 25% 60p 20%

South Park) 2 hours 60p 90p 50% £1.00 11% £1.20 20%

(and extended to 9.30pm)

Town commuters (2008) 30 minutes 10p

(Hollybush Lane 1 hour 50p 60p 20%

Plymouth Drive) 2 hours £1.00 £1.20 20%

Day £2.00 £2.20 10% £2.40 9%

Rail commuters (2008) 30 minutes 10p

(St Botolphs 1 hour 50p 60p 20%

Morewood Close) 2 hours £1.00 £1.20 20%

Day £4.00 £4.50 13% £5.00 11% £5.30 6%

Courts area (2008) 30 minutes 10p

(Morewood Close) 1 hour 50p 60p 20%

2 hours £1.00 £1.20 20%

4 hours £2.00 £2.20 10%

30 min 10p

Swanley 1 hr 60p

2 hrs £1.20

Rail commuters (2008) 4 hours 50p 60p 20% 4 hrs £2.20 267%

(Azalea Drive & Goldsel Rd) Day £2.00 £2.50 25% £3.00 20% Day £3.30 10%

Westerham

The Geen (2002) 15 minutes n/a 10p Gone

Market Square (2002) 30 minutes 10p 20p 100%

The Grange (2002) 1 hour 30p 40p 33% 50p 25%

Croydon Road (2007) 2 hours 50p 60p 20% £1.00 67%

PAY & DISPLAY

20112010 20122002 200820062004 2009

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 109



HISTORY OF PARKING CHARGES - ON STREET

(Showing charges as and when increased and approximate percentage increase)

APPENDIX A

Residents permits First £35 £40 14% £30 -25% £35 17%

Second £35 £40 14% £60 50% £70 17%

Third n/a n/a £100 £115 15% £125 9%

Fourth n/a n/a £200 £230 15% £250 9%

Residents' visitor vouchers Each £1.00 £1.20 20%

Non-residents permits

Sevenoaks town commuters £380 £250 -34% £260 4% £270 4%

Sevenoaks rail commuters Inner zone £610 £630 3% £650 3%

Outer zone £725 £745 3% £765 3%

Residential business permits First £60 £100 67% £110 10%

Second n/a £200 £210 5%

Waivers 1 hour n/a £2.00

4 hours n/a £3.00

Day £2.00 £6.00 200%

20092006 2008 20112002 2012

PERMITS & WAIVERS

20102004

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 110



APPENDIX B 

 

 

CURRENT PARKING CHARGES FOR NEIGHBOURING AUTHORITIES – AS AT OCOBER 2012 

 

(Charges shown relate to town centre car parks) 

 

 

 Dartford 

 

� 

Gravesham 

 

 

Maidstone 

 

� 

Orpington 

(L.B. of 

Bromley) 

Oxted 

(Tandridge) 

Sidcup 

(L.B. of Bexley) 

Tonbridge & 

Malling 

� 

Tunbridge 

Wells 

� 

Sevenoaks 

 

Charges apply: 8am – 6.30pm 

Mon - Sat 

8am - 6pm 

Mon - Sat 

8am - midnight 

Mon - Sun 

7.30am - 

6.30pm 

Mon - Sat 

7am–5pm/7pm 

Mon - Frid 
8am - 6pm 

Mon - Sun 

8am - 6pm 

Mon - Sat 

8am - 6pm 

Mon - Sat 

and 

10am - 5pm 

On Sundays 

8.30am - 6.30pm 

Mon - Sat 

Short Stay          

         (Blighs in brackets) 

0 – 30 minutes --- --- --- --- 

Up to 2 hours 

free parking 

except in one 

car park where 

the charge is 

£4.60 for 

parking before 

10am. 

--- 50p ---        ---          (50p) 

0 – 1 hr 50p 80p    50p – £1.80 30p 50p – 90p £1.00 £1.00 - £1.20      90p     (£1.10) 

1 – 2 hrs £1.00 £1.50 £1.30 – £1.80 30p £1.00 – £1.20 £1.70 £1.70 - £2.20   £1.60     (£2.30) 

2 – 3 hrs £2.00 £1.50 £1.50 – £1.80 --- £1.30 – £1.60 £2.30 £2.40 - £3.20   £2.20     (£3.80) 

3 – 4 hrs £2.00 £2.00 £2.00 – £2.70 --- £1.30 – £1.60  £2.80 – £3.30 £3.20 - £4.20   £3.20         --- 

Evenings £1.00 --- £1.50 --- --- --- --- £1.00 

         

Long stay          

All day £4.00 £3.00– £6.50 £4.60 - £5.50 n/a  £3.80 – £10.00 £4.90 £4.70 – £10.00 £4.20 

          

 

�  Dartford:  evening charge does not apply to all car parks 

�  Maidstone:  main charges apply up to midnight, 7 days a week;  £1.50 charge applies evenings and overnight. 

�  Tonbridge & Malling:  50p charge not available in all car parks. 

�  Tunbridge Wells:  charges apply 7 days a week (but from 10 to 5 on Sundays). 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 111



P
age 112

T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

Item

No.

Description Charge

Period

Current

Charge
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

1.0

1.1 Short stay       30 minute 50p 10p £7,500

1.2     "      "       1 hour £1.10 10p 10p 20p £10,600 £10,600 £21,200

1.3     "      "       2 hours £2.30 10p 20p 20p £7,000 £14,000 £14,000

1.4     "      "       3 hours £3.80 20p 30p 30p £4,000 £6,000 £6,000

1.5 Short stay       1 hour 90p 10p £13,400

1.6     "      "       2 hours £1.60 10p 10p 20p £8,400 £8,400 £16,800

1.7     "      "       3 hours £2.20 10p 20p 20p £3,200 £6,400 £6,400

1.8     "      "       4 hours £3.20 20p 30p 30p £3,100 £4,700 £4,700

1.9 Long stay       all day £4.20 10p 20p £3,400 £6,800

1.10 Season tickets       year £819 £10 £20 £1,200 £2,400

2.0

2.1 Long stay       all day £6.20 10p 20p £2,000 £4,000

Season tickets:

2.2 Bradbourne       year £1,050 £10 £20 £1,150 £2,300

2.3 Sennocke       year £1,090 £10 £20 £650 £1,300

3.0

3.1 Short stay       30 minute 20p

3.2     "      "       1 hour 40p

3.3     "      "       2 hours 60p

3.4     "      "       3-4 hours £1.00 10p 20p £500 £1,000

3.5 Long stay       all day £2.90 10p 30p £350 £1,050

4.0

4.1 Short stay       30 minute 20p

4.2     "      "       1 hour 40p

Proposed Increases Estimated Income
CAR PARK

TARIFF INCREASES

SEVENOAKS TOWN CENTRE - Blighs

Buckhurst 1, Buckhurst 2, South Park, Suffolk 

Way & Pemboke Road

Buckhurst 2 & Pembroke Road

SEVENOAKS STATION

SEVENOAKS ST JOHNS HILL 

SWANLEY

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 113



APPENDIX C

4.3     "      "       2 hours 60p

4.4     "      "       3-4 hours £1.00 10p 20p £350 £700

4.5 Long stay       all day £3.70 10p 30p £600 £1,800

5.0

5.1 Short stay       30 minute 20p

5.2     "      "       1 hour 40p

5.3     "      "       2 hours 60p

5.4     "      "       3-4 hours £1.00 10p 20p £850 £1,700

5.5 Long stay       all day £2.90 10p 30p £700 £2,100

£68,950 £75,250 £69,100

3.5% 3.9% 3.6%

Total:

Percentage:

WESTERHAM 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 114



APPENDIX C

Item

No.

Description Charge

Period

Current

Charge
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

1.0

1.1 Short stay       30 minute 50p 10p 20.0%

1.2     "      "       1 hour £1.10 10p 10p 20p 9.1% 9.1% 18.2%

1.3     "      "       2 hours £2.30 10p 20p 20p 4.3% 8.7% 8.7%

1.4     "      "       3 hours £3.80 20p 30p 30p 5.3% 7.9% 7.9%

1.5 Short stay       1 hour 90p 10p 11.1%

1.6     "      "       2 hours £1.60 10p 10p 20p 6.2% 6.2% 12.5%

1.7     "      "       3 hours £2.20 10p 20p 20p 4.5% 9.1% 9.1%

1.8     "      "       4 hours £3.20 20p 30p 30p 6.2% 9.4% 9.4%

1.9 Long stay       all day £4.20 10p 20p 2.4% 4.8%

1.10 Season tickets       year £819 £10 £20 1.2% 2.4%

2.0

2.1 Long stay       all day £6.20 10p 20p 1.6% 3.2%

Season tickets:

2.2 Bradbourne       year £1,050 £10 £20 0.9% 1.9%

2.3 Sennocke       year £1,090 £10 £20 0.9% 1.8%

3.0

3.1 Short stay       30 minute 20p

3.2     "      "       1 hour 40p

3.3     "      "       2 hours 60p

3.4     "      "       2-4 hours £1.00 10p 20p 10.0% 20.0%

3.5 Long stay       all day £2.90 10p 30p 3.4% 10.3%

4.0

4.1 Short stay       30 minute 20p

4.2     "      "       1 hour 40p

SEVENOAKS STATION

SEVENOAKS ST JOHNS HILL 

SWANLEY

CAR PARKS

TARIFF INCREASES - PERCENTAGES
Proposed Increases Percentage Increase

SEVENOAKS TOWN CENTRE - Blighs

Buckhurst 1, Buckhurst 2, South Park, Suffolk 

Way & Pembroke Road

Buckhurst 2 & Pembroke Road

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 115



APPENDIX C

4.3     "      "       2 hours 60p

4.4     "      "       2-4 hours £1.00 10p 20p 10.0% 20.0%

4.5 Long stay       all day £3.70 10p 30p 2.7% 8.1%

5.0

5.1 Short stay       30 minute 20p

5.2     "      "       1 hour 40p

5.3     "      "       2 hours 60p

5.4     "      "       2-4 hours £1.00 10p 20p 10.0% 20.0%

5.5 Long stay       all day £2.90 10p 30p 3.4% 10.3%

WESTERHAM 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 116



APPENDIX D

Item

No.
Description

Charge

Period

Current

Charge
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

6.0

6.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p £15,000

6.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

6.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

7.0

7.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p £170

7.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

7.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

7.4 long stay all day £2.40 10p 20p £1,200 £2,400

8.0

8.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p £200

8.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

8.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

8.4     "      " 4 hours £2.20 10p £250

8.5 long stay all day £5.30 10p 20p £1,300 £2,600

9.0

9.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p £50

9.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

9.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

9.4     "      " 4 hours £2.20 10p £230

10.0

10.1 short stay 30 minutes 10p

10.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

10.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

10.4     "      " 4 hours £2.20 10p £70

10.5 long stay all day £3.30 10p 20p £1,500 £3,000

11.0

11.1 short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p £3,500

11.2     "      " 1 hour 50p 10p 10p 10p £2,500 £2,500 £2,500

11.3     "      " 2 hours £1.00 20p 20p 20p £8,400 £8,400 £8,400

12.0

12.1 short stay 4 hours 60p

12.2 long stay all day £3.00

£14,900 £19,450 £29,820

2.8% 3.7% 5.7%

WESTERHAM

(The Green, Market Square, 

Croydon Road) 

SEVENOAKS COURT AREA

(Morewood Close)

 KNOCKHOLT STATION

Proposed Increases Estimated Income
ON-STREET PARKING 

TARIFF INCREASES 

SEVENOAKS TOWN CENTRE  (High Street, 

London Road, South Park)

Total:  

SEVENOAKS TOWN COMMUTER AREAS  

(Plymouth Drive, Holly Bush Lane)

SEVENOAKS RAIL COMMUTER AREAS

(St Botolphs, Morewood Close) 

Percentage:

SWANLEY

(Azalea Drive, Goldsel Road)

Agenda Item 8

Page 117



APPENDIX D

Item

No.
Description

Charge

Period

Current

Charge
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

6.0

6.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p 100%

6.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

6.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

7.0

7.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p 100%

7.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

7.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

7.4 long stay all day £2.40 10p 20p 4.2% 8.3%

8.0

8.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p 100%

8.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

8.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

8.4     "      " 4 hours £2.20 10p 4.5%

8.5 long stay all day £5.30 10p 20p 1.9% 3.8%

9.0

9.1 Short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p 100%

9.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

9.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

9.4     "      " 4 hours £2.20 10p 4.5%

10.0

10.1 short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p 100%

10.2     "      " 1 hour 60p

10.3     "      " 2 hours £1.20

10.4     "      " 4 hours £2.20 10p 4.5%

10.5 long stay all day £3.30 10p 20p 3.0% 6.0%

11.0

11.1 short stay 30 minutes 10p 10p 100%

11.2     "      " 1 hour 50p 10p 10p 10p 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%

11.3     "      " 2 hours £1.00 20p 20p 20p 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%

12.0

12.1 short stay 4 hours 60p

12.2 long stay all day £3.00

Proposed Increases

 KNOCKHOLT STATION

SEVENOAKS TOWN CENTRE  (High Street, 

London Road, South Park)

SEVENOAKS TOWN COMMUTER AREAS  

(Plymouth Drive, Holly Bush Lane)

SEVENOAKS RAIL COMMUTER AREAS

(St Botolphs, Morewood Close) 

SEVENOAKS COURT AREA

(Morewood Close)

ON-STREET PARKING

TARIFF INCREASES - PERCENTAGES

SWANLEY

(Azalea Drive, Goldsel Road)

WESTERHAM

(The Green, Market Square, 

Croydon Road) 

Percentage Increase

Agenda Item 8

Page 118



 

2013/14 BUDGET AND REVIEW OF SERVICE PLANS 

Environment Select Committee - 23 October 2012 

Report of the: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Resources 

Status: For Decision 

Also considered by: Social Affairs Select Committee – 30 October 2012 

Services Select Committee – 1 November 2012 

Key Decision: No  

Executive Summary: This report sets out proposals for updates to the 2013/14 budget 

within the existing framework of the 10-year budget and 4-year savings plan.  The report 

presents some service changes that have been identified by managers and these need to 

be considered before finalising the budget for 2013/14.   

This report supports the Key Aim of effective management of Council resources. 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Ramsay 

Head of Service Group Manager – Financial Services – Adrian Rowbotham 

Recommendation to Environment Select Committee / Social Affairs Select Committee 

/ Services Select Committee:  

The Committee’s view and comments are sought on the items listed in Appendix C to be 

put forward to Cabinet at its meeting on 6 December 2012. 

Background 

1 In December 2010 Members approved a balanced 10-year budget to 2020/21 

and a four year savings plan incorporating £4.2million of savings to the end of 

2014/15.  The savings plan included 63 items and some of those contained 

significant areas of risk.  In February 2012 Members approved an updated 

balanced 10-year budget to 2021/22. 

2 The Financial Prospects and Budget Strategy 2013/14 and Beyond report has 

been presented to Cabinet and Performance and Governance Committee to start 

the budget setting process for 2013/14. 

Introduction 

3 This report presents members with the following documents relating to the 

budget for 2013/14: 

Agenda Item 9

Page 119



 

• Summary of Service Plans (Appendix A); 

• The Council’s agreed 4 year savings plan (Appendix B); 

• Summary of changes to 4 year savings plan and new growth and savings 

items. (Appendix C); 

• Service Change Impact Assessment forms (SCIAs) (Appendix D). 

Summary of Service Plans 

4 On an annual basis, Managers of each of the Council’s services set out their 

objectives for the coming year within their Service Plans.  The Service Plans, and 

the objectives Managers set, form the basis for decisions about performance 

indicators to be used to measure progress and an assessment of the operational 

risks that may prevent objectives being achieved. Service Plans are directly 

aligned to the Council’s priorities and the resources available to deliver the 

service. 

5 Appendix A is a summary of Service Plans. These include only those services 

directly relevant to this Select Committee. 

4 Year Savings Plan 

6 Appendix B to this report sets out the 4 year savings plan, approved by Council in 

December 2010, which is allowing the Council to deliver a 10 year balanced 

budget.  The savings plan requires a total of £3.9 million to be saved between 

2011/12 and 2014/15.  The proportion of those savings required in each year 

are set out below. 

4 Year Savings Plan (£m)

0.1

0.4

0.8

2.6

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

 

Further savings of £0.3m are now scheduled to be saved in later years as agreed 

by Council on 18 October 2011. 

8 Several items in the 4 year plan are now considered to be at risk.  The items, 

which are shaded on the updated 4 year savings plan at Appendix B, total £115k 

in 2013/14 and £50k in 2014/15.  Managers have provided additional 

Agenda Item 9

Page 120



 

information explaining why the savings items are unlikely to be achieved and the 

potential impact on services.  This information is appended to copies of existing 

Service Change Impact Assessments (SCIA) for the services where the budget 

saving is now identified as at risk and these are included in Appendix D.  The 

original SCIA assessments were submitted to Select Committees in November 

2010. 

Proposed Growth Items 

9 Growth items are items that are in addition to non-service issues and risks, such 

as grant settlements, impacts of economic change and other pressures 

highlighted in the Financial Prospect report considered by Cabinet on 13 

September 2012. 

10 For 2013/14 the identified service pressures giving rise to growth items total 

£130k, and comprise: 

• Environment Select  –£110k 

• Social Affairs Select – nil 

• Services Select – £20k 

11 Officers have assessed the potential impact on services of these unavoidable 

growth items and their SCIAs are included in Appendix D. 

Proposed Savings Items 

12 Officers have suggested some savings, totalling £185k (£155k in 2013/14; £30k 

in 2014/15), that would compensate for some of the identified pressures.  SCIAs 

are included within Appendix D giving further information on these savings. 

 

Financial Summary 

13 Some items within the 4 year plan are now expected to be more difficult to achieve 

than was expected when the original plan was agreed.  Further, due to economic 

consequences some unavoidable budget pressures have arisen and these need to 

be considered as growth items for 2013/14 onwards.  

14 Some new savings have been identified to mitigate the effect on future budgets.  

15 The summary at Appendix C identifies the costs of newly identified pressures from 

the 4 year Plan, and current budgetary pressures.  This gives Members an 

indication of the financial challenges being addressed by officers within the 

existing budget framework. 

16 Views of the Select Committees on the proposed growth items identified in these 

documents, and explained in more detail in Appendix D, will be considered by 

Cabinet at its meeting on 6 December 2012. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 121



 

17 Recent announcements by central government concerning council tax freeze and 

capping of increases, together with the impact of change to the regime for general 

government grant may result in the need for additional savings, but the 

implications of these changes are not yet known.  It is possible that Select 

Committees may have to re-address service budgets for 2013/14 when 

information about government funding becomes more clear.  Details are not 

expected to be available until late in December 2012. 

 

Key Implications 

Financial 

18 All financial implications are included elsewhere in the report. 

Community Impact and Outcomes 

19 The SCIAs set out the potential impact on the community of variations to the 

agreed budget.  

Legal, Human Rights etc 

20 There are no legal or human rights implications. 

Equality Impacts 

21  

Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

Yes Equalities assessments are included in 

the SCIAs in Appendix D. 

  

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

No 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

  

 

Conclusions 

22 Members’ consideration and scrutiny of the relevant services is an essential and 

key element in the business and financial planning process. Any costs agreed 

Agenda Item 9

Page 122



 

which are outside the existing Financial Plan will require additional savings, and 

subsequent service changes, to ensure a balanced budget position. 

Risk Assessment Statement 

23 For the effective management of our resources and in order to achieve a 

sustainable budget it is essential that all service cost changes and risks are 

identified and considered. 

24 Major service financial risks are included in the Service Plans, risk analysis and 

SCIAs. Financial risks will be reviewed again when the Cabinet publishes its 

proposals for the annual budget. 

 

 

Appendices Appendix A – Summary of Service Plans 

Appendix B – The Council’s agreed 4-year savings 

plan  

Appendix C – Summary of Changes to 4 year plan 

and new Growth and Savings items 

Appendix D – Service Change Impact Assessment 

forms (SCIAs)  

Background Papers: Report to Council 21 February 2012 – Item 5b – 

Revenue Budget & Council Tax 2012/13 

Report to Cabinet 13 September 2012 – Item 6 – 

Financial Prospects & Budget Strategy 2012/13 and 

Beyond 

Contact Officer(s): Adrian Rowbotham Ext.7153 

Helen Martin Ext. 7483 

Lee Banks Ext.7161  

Dr. Pav Ramewal 

Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Resources  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary of 2012/13 Service Plans 

 

Environment Select Committee 

 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 125



Guidance Page 

Table 1:  Responsibility for Services  Table 2:  Notes to accompany Summary of Service Plans 

Head of Service Service Environment Social Affairs Services  Section Description  

Community 

Development 
Community Planning & Safety  �   1:  Key Service Objectives The key service objectives are drawn from the Service 

Plans completed each year by the Manager of each 

service. 

The Summary of Service Plan selects only the key 

objectives for the service for 2012/13 and is not a full 

record of all objectives for the service. 

Health & Leisure  �   

Regeneration & Youth  
(excl. Economic Development) 

 �   

Economic Development �    

Development 

Services 
Development Control �    2a:  Resources – Staff FTEs Provided by the Human Resources team the number of full 

time equivalent staff demonstrates the resources 

available to deliver the service. 

Where services are shared only the staff employed directly 

by Sevenoaks District Council are included. 

Planning Policy �    

Environmental & 

Operational 

Services 

Building Control �    

Direct Services �Street 

Cleaning 
�CCTV, Pest 

Control & WC’s � 
 

 2b:  Resources – 2012/13 Budget Provided by the Finance team the net budget for each 

service for the three most recent years sets out the 

financial resources available to deliver the service.  The 

data also demonstrates the direction of travel of the 

budget in recent years.   

For shared services only the SDC contribution is included. 

Environmental Health � �   

Licensing   �  

Parking & Amenity �    

Finance & HR Audit, Risk & Anti Fraud   �  2c:  Resources – Savings Plan Provided by the Finance team is a record of savings 

achieved between 2008 and 2010 and those agreed 

within the current 4 year savings plan.  For details of the 

current savings plan please see Item 5e (Appendix B) on 

Modern.Gov at:  

http://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/Data/Council/2010121619

01/Agenda/Report%20-%20Item%205(e)%20-

%20Revenue%20Budget%20and%20Council%20Tax%20

2011-12%20-%20App%20B.pdf   

Finance   �  

Housing Benefits   �  

Human Resources   �  

Revenues   �  

Housing & 

Communications 
Communications   �  3a:  Performance – Head of Service 

Level 

A high level summary of the current performance of all 

local performance indicators (LPIs) overseen by the Head 

of Service.  The colour coding represents the following 

performance levels: 

Green – At or above target;  

Amber – Within 10% of target 

Red – Missing target by 10% or more 

Housing Policy   �  

Private Housing   �  

Social Housing   �  

IT & Facilities 

Management 
Customer Services   �  

IT Services   �  3b:  Service Performance Summary A summary of the current performance of all LPIs at 

service level. 

More information is available to Members through 

Covalent - www.covalentcpm.com/sevenoaks - using the 

assigned Member log in and password. 

Facilities Management   �  

Legal & 

Democratic 

Services 

Democratic Services   �  

Elections & Land Charges �Land Charges  �Elections  

Legal Services   �  

Policy & Performance   �  3c: Budget Risks Provided by the relevant Head of Service are 

commentaries on the current budget risks being faced in 

2012/13.  These have been identified as part of the 

Council’s usual monthly budget monitoring processes. Property Services   � 
 

 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 126



Community Development Service Plan Summary 2012/13 

 

Part 1:  Key Service Objectives  Part 2a:  Resources – Staff (full time equivalent employees)  Part 3a:  Performance of Community Development  

Community 

Planning & 

Safety 

Shared 

Service 

 To be reviewed by Social Affairs Select Committee 
 

11.08

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Community Development

 

(at August 2012) 

Green, 

8

Amber, 1

Red, 1

 

Health & 

Leisure 

 To be reviewed by Social Affairs Select Committee 

Part 3b:  Service Performance Summary (at August 2012) 

Part 2b:  Resources – 2012/13 Budget (£ 000) 

 
Green 

 

Amber 

 

Red 

 

Overall 

Performance 
 
 

 

Budget 

10/11 

Budget 

11/12 

Budget 

12/13 

Community Planning & Safety 464 459 453 

Health & Leisure 645 564 437 

Regeneration & Youth 161 143 89 
 

Community 

Planning & Safety 
6 - 1 

 

Health & Leisure - 1 -  

Regeneration & 

Youth 
2 - -  

Regeneration 

& Youth 

* To also be 

reviewed by 

Social Affairs 

 Youth work sustained through partnership work with the 
voluntary and community sector 

 80% of Economic Development Action Plan to be on target 

 75% of the West Kent Investment Strategy to be on target 

Part 3c:  Budget Risks 

Part 2c:  Resources – Savings Plan (£ 000)  There are currently no significant budget risks in Community 

Development.  
 

 
2008 -

10 

2011/ 

12 

2012/ 

13 

2013/ 

14 

2014/ 

15 

Community Planning & 

Safety 
128 34 20 - - 

Health & Leisure 69 178 180 25 - 

Regeneration & Youth 48 23 83 - - 

TOTAL 245 235 283 25 - 
 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 127



Development Services Service Plan Summary 2012/13 

 

Part 1:  Key Service Objectives  Part 2a:  Resources – Staff (full time equivalent employees)  Part 3a:  Performance of Development Services (at August 2012) 

Development 

Control 

 

 All major development (where appropriate) should 

contribute toward the physical and social infrastructure 

required to address the need of the development in 

relation to the community. 

 Ensure up-to-date Conservation Areas, Appraisals and 
Management Plans are in place. 

 Performance achieved to target and budget, including LAA 

targets. 

 

39.16

7.38

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Development Control Planning Policy

 

 

 

Planning 

Policy 

 Complete Local Development Framework in accordance 

with the Local Development Scheme and national/local 

policy guidance 

 Complete Local Development Framework Annual 

Monitoring Report in accordance with national guidance 

 Contribute to the implementation of the Sustainable 

Community Strategy through LDF-related actions set out 

in the Community Strategy 

Part 3b:  Service Performance Summary (at August 2012) 

Part 2b:  Resources – 2012/13 Budget (£,000) 

 
Green 

 

Amber 

 

Red 

 

Overall 

Performance 
 
 
 
 

 

Budget 

10/11 

Budget 

11/12 

Budget 

12/13 

Development Control 1,281 937 841 

Planning Policy 516 441 435 
 

Development 

Control 
3 2 3 

 

Planning Policy - - - - 

 

Part 2c:  Resources – Savings Plan Part 3c:  Budget Risks 

 
 
 
 

 
2008 -

10 

2011/ 

12 

2012/ 

13 

2013/ 

14 

2014/ 

15 

Development Control 319 269 100   

Planning Policy 83     

TOTAL 402 269 100 - - 
 

Planning – Legal/Barrister Charges  

 Currently there is an increased demand for Legal services 

within the planning service. 

 

 
 

 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 128



Environmental and Operational Services Service Plan Summary 2012/13 

 

Part 1:  Key Service Objectives  Part 2a:  Resources – Staff (full time equivalent employees)  Part 3a:  Performance of Environmental & Operational Services  

Building 

Control 

Shared 

Management 

 Administer all aspects of the Building Control Service 

within performance indicators 

 Raise awareness & embed Emergency Planning & 

Business Continuity across the organisation 

 Develop effective partnership working with Tonbridge & 
Malling Building Control 

 

 

(at August 2012) 

 

Direct 

Services 

Shared 

Service 

(CCTV) 

* Also reviewed 

by Services & 

Social Affairs 

 Deliver Quality Services and Improve residents, businesses 

and stakeholder perception of services 

 Help deliver the Council’s ten year budget plan for relevant 
service areas and contribute to corporate savings 

 Implement the agreed work streams of the Kent Waste 

Strategy 

 Continue shared working in CCTV management and 

progress any opportunity for control room co-location 

Environmental 

Health 

Shared 

Service 

Also reviewed 

by Social 

Affairs 

 Produce Food Standards Agency Service Plan and submit 

to Portfolio Holder (Sevenoaks and Dartford) 

 Consider detailed assessment  air quality data for district 

and produce associated reports for DEFRA and 

Committee/Cabinet/Council 

 Where relevant, review service process/operation to 

generate/contribute towards efficiency savings. 

Part 2b:  Resources – 2012/13 Budget (£,000) Part 3b:  Service Performance Summary (at August 2012) 

 

 

Budget 

10/11 

Budget 

11/12 

Budget 

12/13 

Building Control 33 -69 -58 

Direct Services 4,311 3,671 3,662 

Environmental Health 879 706 669 

Licensing 2 -11 -25 

Parking & Amenity -1,372 -1,624 -1,711 
 

 
Green 

 

Amber 

 

Red 

 

Overall 

Performance 

Building 

Control 
2 - - 

 

Licensing 

Shared 

Service 

 To be reviewed by Services Select Committee 
Direct Services 4 1 4  

Environmental 

Health 
1 - 1  

Parking & 

Amenity 

Shared 

Management 

 Undertake parking reviews in response to requests from 

residents and businesses to improve parking facilities and 

controls. 

 Facilitate the transfer of relevant 
land/facilities/playgrounds to town/parish councils 

 Maintain Council owned playgrounds, parks and amenity 

areas in the District to an acceptable standard 

Part 2c:  Resources – Savings Plan Licensing 1 1  
 

 

 
2008 -

10 

2011/ 

12 

2012/ 

13 

2013/ 

14 

2014/ 

15 

Building Control 67 64    

Direct Services 456 668 16  50 

Environmental Health 95 150    

Licensing  35 15 15   

Parking & Amenity 484 199 13 14  

TOTAL 1,137 1,096 44 14 50 
 

Parking & 

Amenity 
1 - - 

 

 

Part 3c:  Budget Risks 

Building Control – Income 

 Income for statutory work is currently £46,000 below profile.  

Actual income 2011/12 was £365,476 which is a realistic 

estimate of likely income in 2012/13.  As a result a shortfall 

of income of approximately £120,000 is forecasted. Savings 

will be made on structural checking fees.   

 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 129



 

Legal and Democratic Services Service Plan Summary 2012/13 

 

Part 1:  Key Service Objectives  Part 2a:  Resources – Staff (full time equivalent employees)  Part 3a:  Performance of Legal & Democratic Services  

Democratic 

Services 

 To be reviewed by Services Select Committee. 
 

 

(at August 2012) 

Green, 

3

Amber, 1

 

Elections & 

Land Charges 

 

* Also reviewed 

by Service 

Select 

Committee 

 Provide accurate local land charges searches and respond 
to all local land charges searches within target times 

 Conduct elections, by elections and referendums 

 Accurately and promptly process all monthly amendments 

to the register of electors 

 Undertake an accurate canvass of the electorate 
(residential properties) 

Part 3b:  Service Performance Summary (at August 2011) 

Part 2b:  Resources – 2011/12 Budget (£ 000) 

 
Green 

 

Amber 

 

Red 

 

Overall 

Performance 
 
 
 
 

 

Budget 

10/11 

Budget 

11/12 

Budget 

12/13 

Democratic Services 129 89 116 

Elections & Land Charges 136 91 77 

Legal Services 377 295 313 
 

Democratic 

Services 
- - - - 

Elections & 

Land Charges 
- 1 -  

Legal Services 3 - -  

Legal Services  To be reviewed by Services Select Committee Part 3c:  Budget Risks 

Part 2c:  Resources – Savings Plan (£ 000) Land Charges – Income 

 Income continues to be affected by the general state of the 

housing market 

 

 
2008 -

10 

2011/ 

12 

2012/ 

13 

2013/ 

14 

2014/ 

15 

Democratic Services  37    

Elections & Land 

Charges 
 -22    

Legal Services 30 55    

TOTAL 30 70 - - - 
 

 

 

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 130



Appendix B 4 Year Savings Plan .

Risk items are shaded  - further details are included in Appendix D

SCIA

Year No. 2011/12 2012/13 

additional 

savings

2013/14 

additional 

savings

2014/15 

additional 

savings

TOTAL

£ £ £ £

Environment

11/12 16 Building Control - joint working and cost savings from team review (74) (74)

10/11 36 Building Control - reverse one off income home condition survey* 15 15

10/11 2 Building Control - review of team (5) (5)

11/12 22c Civil Enforcement - review structure (34) (34)

11/12 12c Development Control - Appeals - reduced use of consultants (6) (6)

11/12 12b Development Control - Appeals - reduced use of external legal resources (10) (10)

11/12 12a Development Control - Conservation - deletion of consultants budget (11) (11)

11/12 14a Development Control - Planning and Pre-Application Fees - extra income (100) (100)

11/12 13 Development Control - review processes and structure to reduce costs (131) (131)

11/12 14b Development Control - S106 Monitoring - charge developers to monitor (50) (50)

08/09 30 Development Control - staffing reduction (41) (41)

10/11 1 Development Control - various (20) (20)

19 Development Services share of corporate targets (8) (14) (22)

11/12 27 Direct Services - Street Cleansing reduction (124) (124)

Environmental & Operations share of corporate targets (24) (91) (115)

11/12 56 Land Charges income loss (personal searches) 22 22

11/12 15 LDF preparation - reduce annual contribution to reserve based on cost 

reduction*

(70) 70 0

11/12 25 On-street Parking - additional income (35) (35)

11/12 24 Parking - additional income (43) (43)

11/12 22a Parking - joint working (26) (26)

11/12 22b Parking - reduce administrative costs (13) (14) (27)

10/11 33 Planning Policy - reverse one off income 2010/11* 22 22

11/12 23 Sencio Leisure parking fees reimbursement at Sevenoaks - cancel (26) (26)

11/12 8 Tourism - reduced activity (30) (30)

Total Environment (679) (248) 56 0 (871)

Services Select

11/12 42 Admin Support - reduce (28) (28)

11/12 28 Asset Maintenance (reduction for 3 years) - Playground equipment/CCTV 

equipment/depot/car parks

(31) 31 0

12/13 2 Benefits - contribution from Housing Benefits Subsidy Reserve (40) (40)

12/13 1 Benefits - reduction in Admin grant 40 40

11/12 34 Central offices target savings (5) (5)

11/12 39 Civic Expenditure -delete budget except Chair/Vice Allowance (68) (68)

10/11 56 Communications - reverse temp reduction in costs* 19 19

10/11 15 Concessionary Fares - Govt funding reduction 200 200

10/11 41 Concessionary Fares - reverse reduced costs* 60 60

11/12 29 Contact Centre - shared services or reduction in service (40) (40)

08/09 17 Democratic Services - reorganise to reduce service/costs (17) (17)

11/12 55 Democratic Services Manager - Partnership Working (20) (20)

11/12 18 Direct Services - review operations and reduce costs (88) (16) (104)

11/12 46 Disabled Facilities Grant reduction (50) (50)

10/11 21 Equalities - end of contract with TWBC (15) (15)

11/12 30a Finance - re-structure and review processes (40) (40)

Finance & HR share of corporate targets (15) (22) (37)

11/12 52 FM - staffing review (45) (30) (75)

11/12 53 FM - window cleaning, hand dryers, building cleaning, microfilming (15) (15)

11/12 53 FM - window cleaning, hand dryers, building cleaning, microfilming (10) (10)

10/11 51 Gypsy site - Support  -Hever Rd 7 7

10/11 47 Homeless - reverse one off rent in advance* 10 10

10/11 47 Homeless - revserse one off deposit bonds* 10 10

10/11 50 Housing initiatives - reverse one off support of under 18s* 15 15

11/12 43 Housing Policy - Climate Change (23) (23)

Housing share of corporate targets (5) (4) (9)

11/12 31 Human Resources - partnership working (20) (20)

11/12 49 Information Systems and IT Support - review staffing resources (30) (20) (60) (110)

10/11 22 Internal Audit - reverse extra income DBC* 10 10

11/12 48 Internet provision - reduce charges (40) (40)

11/12 51 IT - Agresso and IDOX - reduce support costs (23) (50) (73)

IT & FM share of corporate targets (7) (7) (14)

11/12 50 IT Support - reduce general costs (41) (41)

11/12 40 Lease Cars - cease scheme administration (10) (10) (20) (40)

Legal & Democratic Svs & Corp share of corporate targets (5) (10) (15)

11/12 57 Legal Services - additional income (S106) (30) (30)

11/12 54 Legal Services - Partnership Working (25) (25)

10/11 8 Licensing - enlarge partnership (15) (15) (30)

11/12 Market supplements - continuation of phased removal (100) (100)

11/12 33 Members' Allowances - next phased increase not implemented (45) (45)

10/11 16 Members' Allowances - phasing of new scheme 45 45 90

12/13 3 Members' Allowances - provision for Members IT allowance 6 6

Year

Growth and Savings Items 2011/12 - 2014/15 Risk Assessment 

Agenda Item 9

Page 131



SCIA

Year No. 2011/12 2012/13 

additional 

savings

2013/14 

additional 

savings

2014/15 

additional 

savings

TOTAL

£ £ £ £

Year

12/13 5 Members' Allowances - underspend (6) (6)

11/12 45 Merge Private Sector and Social Housing (55) (55)

10/11 58 Partnership working - corporate target (200) (200)

08/09 62 Policy and Perf - review of team tasks (35) (35)

11/12 58 Policy, Performance and Communications - review of functions (50) (50)

11/12 36 Property - income from Tandridge (13) (13)

11/12 35 Property - review processes and restructure team (75) (75) (150)

11/12 30b Rationalisation of financial systems and administration over sites (50) (50)

11/12 37 Revenues & Benefits - joint working savings above target (50) (50)

11/12 38 Revenues and Benefits - Partnership - further efficiencies target (£60k split 

50:50)

(30) (30)

11/12 58 Review of Policy, Performance and Communications functions - part (35) (35)

1 Review of senior management - part (75) (75)

11/12 Review of senior management or joint management (302) (302)

11/12 32 Secretariat - review across council with view to reducing with senior 

management

(41) (41)

11/12 47 Social Housing - Joint assessment referrals - stop contribution (8) (8)

11/12 44 Social Housing - West Kent Housing contract saving (30) (30)

11/12 Staff terms and conditions - savings reprofiled as agreed by Council 18/10/11 35 35

11/12 41 Training Budget - reduce (50) (50)

Total Services (1,103) (293) (467) 6 (1,857)

Social Affairs 

11/12 1 Arts Development (5) (5)

10/11 66 CCTV (45) (45)

11/12 17 CCTV - Partnership Work/Other arrangement (with Contact Centre) (50) (50)

08/09 18 Community Development - Replace core salaries with external funding and reduce health budget 2011/12(2) (2)

Community Development share of corporate targets (3) (2) (5)

11/12 2 Community Safety - external funding at risk 56 56

08/09 20 Community Safety - Reduce Community Safety budget - crime reduction (2) (2)

11/12 Direct Services - Pest Control - review of service and removal of subsidy (16) (16)

11/12 26 Direct Services - Public Conveniences (62) (62)

11/12 20 Environmental Health - shared working (150) (150)

11/12 22e Further transfer of land playgrounds etc to Town/Parish Councils (15) (15)

11/12 3 Grants (25) (20) (45)

11/12 4 Health - reduced activity (17) (17)

11/12 22d Hollybush Outdoor Bowls Centre - transfer ownership to private club (20) (20)

11/12 5 Leisure - Asset Maintenance (70) (70) (140)

11/12 6 Leisure - reduced Management Fee (80) (80) (160)

11/12 21 Minibuses - Deletion of service (333) (333)

08/09 22 Reduce grants budget (13) (13)

08/09 21 Reduce Youth budget - SNAP, drugs/alcohol (3) (3)

10/11 24 STAG agreement expiry (25) (75) (100)

11/12 7 Sustainability - delete remaining cost (4) (4)

11/12 9 West Kent Partnership (2) (2)

11/12 11 Youth - 8-12's project (23) (23)

11/12 10 Youth - reduce activity, leave only statutory duty (20) (60) (80)

Total Social Affairs (831) (255) (25) (125) (1,236)

Totals (2,613) (796) (436) (119) (3,964)

* = 'positive' savings items relate to the reversal of one-off savings in earlier years.

n/a = saving achieved or a growth item

Agenda Item 9

Page 132



Appendix C  Summary of Changes to 4 Year Savings Plan and Proposed Growth and Savings items

Committee Head of Service Service 13/14 14/15 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Items from 4 Year Plan

11/12 5 Social Affairs Community Development Asset Maintenance 70 - 70

11/12 14b Environment Development Services Income s106 monitoring 25 - 25

11/12 15 Environment Development Services LDF Preparation -35 - -35 

11/12 17 Social Affairs Environment & Operations CCTV - 50 50

11/12 31 Services Financial Services HR - Partnership working 20 - 20

11/12 35 Services Legal Property Team Re-structure 35 - 35

Proposed Growth from 4 Year Plan 115 50 165

Budget Pressures outside 4-year Plan

13/14 1 Environment Environment & Operations Income - Building Control 50 - 50

13/14 2 Services Housing & Communications Homeless 20 - 20

13/14 3 Environment Legal & Democratic Planning - Legal/Barrister Fees 20 - 20

13/14 4 Environment Legal & Democratic Land Charges Income 40 - 40

Proposed Growth from Budgetary Pressures 130 0 130

Potential Savings/Funding

13/14 5 Services Legal & Democratic Audit Fees -40 -40 

13/14 6 Services Legal & Democratic Argyle Rents KCC/MOAT -20 -20 

13/14 7 Services Legal & Democratic Argyle Rents Police -15 -15 

13/14 8 Services Legal & Democratic Market Related Supplements -10 -10 

13/14 9 Environment Environment & Operations Environmental Health Partnership -30 -30 

Proposed Savings Items -85 -30 -115 

Total 160 20 180

SCIA Ref

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 133



P
age 134

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 1  

 

 

Revision to Service Change Impact Assessment #14 (11/12) 

 

 

Previously Agreed SCIA (Cabinet 28 October 2010) 

 

Service Area: Development Control Service: Development Services 

Activity Fees No. of Staff: 46.77 fte 

      

Activity Budget Reduction 11/12 

£000 

12/13 

£000 

13/14 

£000 

14/15 

£000 

(a) Planning and Pre-Application 

fees – additional income. 

- -100 � � 

(b) S106 Monitoring – additional 

income. 

-50 � � � 

TOTAL -50 -150 � � 

  

Reasons for and explanation 

of proposed change in service 

 

Anticipated additional income through reviewing 

application and/or pre-application charging, charging to 

monitor S106 obligations and an increase in fee income 

resulting from more applications being submitted. 

    

Key Stakeholders Affected Service users – Customer side.  

  

Likely impacts and 

implications of the change in 

service (include Risk Analysis) 

Risks include: 

Potential reduction in use of pre-application service; 

Risk of not achieving anticipated income; 

Reduced performance of NI157 as workload increases. 

We will seek to ameliorate these effects wherever 

possible through efficiency and effectiveness 

improvements. 

Update of Feasibility of original budget reduction 

£25k of this savings is now considered to be at risk 

Further comments from Head of Service  - Autumn 2012:  Income is below expectations 

but this may be offset by application fee income 

Agenda Item 9

Page 135



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 2  

 
 

Performance Matrix Rank  (1 to 27) 2 

 

2010/11 budget £ 000  National and Local Performance Indicators 

Operational Cost 1,277  Code & Description Actual Target 

Income -580  NI 157a - Major applications 

processed on time 
91% 84% 

Net Cost 697  NI 157b - Minor applications 

processed on time 
82% 84% 

 NI 157c - Other applications 

processed on time 
92% 94% 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 136



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 3  

 

 

Revision to Service Change Impact Assessment SCIA # 15 (11/12) 

 

 

Previously Agreed SCIA (Cabinet 28 October 2010) 

 

Service 

Area: 

Planning Policy Service: Development Services 

Activity LDF preparation No. of Staff: 6.72 fte 

      

Activity Budget Reduction 11/12 

£000 

12/13 

£000 

13/14 

£000 

14/15 

£000 

Reduced annual 

contribution to the LDF 

Fund 

-70 � - - 

  

Reasons for and 

explanation of 

proposed change in 

service 

 

 

 

 

The LDF fund of £140K per annum funds the Council’s work on 

LDF preparation which includes the Core Strategy, Allocations and 

Development Control DPDs and Supplementary Planning 

Documents.  It includes funding for evidence based studies, 

document production and consultation and examinations.  

Examinations are a substantial component of the costs (approx 

£150K per document) 

There is an earmarked reserve of £406K (at 1 April 2010) but this 

currently has to fund three DPD examinations and it is expected to 

be run down over the next three years. 

Some savings can be achieved on future evidence base studies by 

doing more work in house (e.g. the Sustainability Appraisal) 

The Allocations and Development Control DPDs could be combined 

into one document saving on the costs of separate examinations. 

With these savings the contribution could be halved in 2011/12 

and 2012/13. 

    

Update of Feasibility of original budget reduction 

 

The contribution to the LDF was reduced by £70k for an original period of 2 years;  

instead of returning to the original level of £140k, the saving can continue with an 

annual reduction of £35k. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 137



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 4  

 

Key Stakeholders 

Affected 

All residents and businesses affected by development plans 

  

Likely impacts and 

implications of the 

change in service 

(include Risk 

Analysis) 

The Allocations DPD has reached Options stage but no work has 

been carried out on the Development Control DPD.  Time required 

for the latter to “catch up” would mean a delay to the Allocations 

DPD of up to a year, but we will seek to limit this to a six month 

period.  Delaying adoption of the Allocations could have an adverse 

effect on securing early implementation of developments being 

promoted through the DPD, though this will be offset to a degree 

by the fact that options have already been published. 

Risk Analysis: 

1. If the Core Strategy is found unsound there will be extra 

costs involved in revising and resubmitting the Core 

Strategy for a second examination which would offset the 

saving.  Extending the time period for plan preparation 

would enable the annual saving to still be achieved though 

contributions would be over a longer period of time.  The 

Core Strategy hearings are programmed for October and we 

should know by the end of these if it is likely to be found 

unsound (although the final decision will not be until early 

2011) 

2. The new Government is reviewing the approach to plan 

making and it is unclear at this stage what impact this will 

have on the future cost of plan making.  Flexibility needs to 

be allowed for in the level of future contributions and no 

reductions are proposed after 2012/3. 

3. Examination costs cannot be determined in advance 

because they are based on time rather than fixed fees.  

Some flexibility is required to allow for the possibility that 

costs may be higher than expected. 

 

Performance Matrix Rank  (1 to 27) 3 

 

2010/11 Budget £ 000  National and Local Performance Indicators 

Operational Cost 540  Code & Description Actual Target 

Income -24  No applicable performance 

indicators 

  

Net Cost 516  

Agenda Item 9

Page 138



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 5  

 

SCIA # 1 (13/14) 

Service Area: Building Control Service: Environment & 

Operations 

Activity Building Control No. of Staff: 7.81 

      

Activity Budget Reduction 13/14 

£000 

14/15 

£000 

15/16 

£000 

16/17 

£000 

Reduced Fee Income 50 � � � 

  

Reasons for and explanation 

of proposed change in service 

 

 

 

 

 

Reduction in workload over recent years has led to 

income not meeting budget profile. Staff savings have 

been made to reflect the reduced workload and other 

service areas have been absorbed creating savings 

elsewhere within the Authority. 

 

    

Key Stakeholders Affected Building Control applicants - Plan Inspections; Site 

Inspections;   Staff 

  

Likely impacts and 

implications of the change in 

service (include Risk Analysis) 

Fee Regulations since 1998 have stated that Statutory 

Building Control work can only recover actual cost and 

the service is not allowed to make a surplus over a 3 

year rolling period. 2010 Fee Regulations enforce this 

message and the service now 'must' refund fees if a 

surplus has been made on any project. 

 

 

 

Performance Matrix Rank  (1 to 27) 5 

 

2012/13 Budget £ 000  National and Local Performance Indicators 

Operational Cost 389  Code & Description Actual Target 

Income -519  LPI BC 002 – Full plans 

checked within 10 working 

days 

91% 80% 

Net Cost 130  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 139



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 6  

 
 

SCIA # 3 (13/14) 

Service Area: Development Services Service: Development Control 

Activity Planning - Appeals No. of Staff: n/a 

      

Activity Budget Reduction 13/14 

£000 

14/15 

£000 

15/16 

£000 

16/17 

£000 

Increased External Legal/Barrister 

Fees 

20 � � � 

  

Reasons for and explanation 

of proposed change in service 

 

 

 

 

There has been an increase in the need to use 

barristers, particularly for Planning Appeals.  The 

number of appeals, and also enforcement cases, has 

increased the legal workload. 

    

Key Stakeholders Affected Appellants; Planning Inspectors; Planning staff; Legal 

team 

  

Likely impacts and 

implications of the change in 

service (include Risk Analysis) 

The reduction in capacity within the Legal section due to  

the demands on Planning cases may impact on the level 

of service provided to all customers. 

 

 

Performance Matrix Rank  (1 to 27) 6 

 

2012/13 Budget £ 000  National and Local Performance Indicators 

Operational Cost 

(Legal)  

270  Code & Description Actual Target 

Income -34  LPI DC 009 - % of planning 

appeals dismissed 

62% 75% 

Net Cost 236  

Agenda Item 9

Page 140



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 7  

 

SCIA # 4 (13/14) 

Service Area: Local Land Charges Service: Legal 

Activity Local Land Charges No. of Staff: n/a 

      

Activity Budget Reduction 13/14 

£000 

14/15 

£000 

15/16 

£000 

16/17 

£000 

Reduced Income from Search Fees 40 � � � 

  

Reasons for and explanation 

of proposed change in service 

 

 

 

 

Downturn in the housing market is impacting on the 

number of searches being made.  We are not able to 

control the level of searches that are made. 

Also some increase in the proportion of searches which 

are made electronically which attracts lower fees. 

We are not permitted to make charges for personal 

searches 

    

Key Stakeholders Affected House Purchasers  

  

Likely impacts and 

implications of the change in 

service (include Risk Analysis) 

No change to levels of service provided to customers. 

No further staff reductions are possible. 

 

 

Performance Matrix Rank  (1 to 27) 16 

 

2012/13 Budget £ 000  National and Local Performance Indicators 

Operational Cost 69  Code & Description Actual Target 

Income -190  
LPI LC 002 - % of land 

charge searches completed 

in 10 working days 

85% 90% 

Net Cost -121  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 141



Item No. 09 – Appendix D  
 

SERVICE CHANGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 8  

 
 

SCIA # 9 (13/14) 

Service Area: Environmental Health Service: Environment & 

Operations 

Activity Environmental Health No. of Staff: n/a 

      

Activity Budget Reduction 13/14 

£000 

14/15 

£000 

15/16 

£000 

16/17 

£000 

Additional Savings from Shared 

Services Partnership 

- -30 � � 

  

Reasons for and explanation 

of proposed change in service 

 

 

 

 

The financial case for the EH Partnership included a 

total saving of £60k in 2014/15 arising from either 

trading/charging or sharing with another. 

(Agenda Item 7 Cabinet 13 October 2011 refers) 

 

 

    

Key Stakeholders Affected Partnership staff; Public; Dartford Council 

  

Likely impacts and 

implications of the change in 

service (include Risk Analysis) 

Any savings are shared with Partners.   

Risks that it may not be possible to find a third partner 

Risk that Partners may not be able to effect savings and 

make changes within the suggested timescale. 

 

Performance Matrix Rank  (1 to 27) 7 

 

2012/13 Budget £ 000  National and Local Performance Indicators 

Operational Cost 1,097  Code & Description Actual Target 

Income -90  LPI EH  004 - % of high risk 

food inspections completed 

100% 100% 

Net Cost 1,007  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 142


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Actions from previous meeting
	5 Future Business, the Work Plan 2011/12 (attached) and the Forward Plan.
	7 Village Design Statements
	Item 07 - 2 Seal and Underriver
	Item 07 - 3 Consultation statement Otford
	Item 07 - 4 Consultation statement Ash-cum-Ridley, Edenbridge and Shoreham
	Item 07 - 6 Seal VDS - Final PDF copy
	Item 07 - 7 Underriver VDS - Final PDF copy
	Item 07 - 8 otford-parish-plan Jan 2011
	Item 07 - 9 otford-parish-plan-part-2 Jan 2011

	8 Annual Review of Parking Charges for 2013/14 and Christmas Parking 2012
	Item 08 - Annual Review of Parking Charges for 2013-14 Appendix A Car Parks
	Item 08 - Annual Review of Parking Charges for 2013-14 Appendix A On-Street
	Item 08 - Annual Review of Parking Charges 2013-14 Appendix B
	Item 08 - Annual Review of Parking Charges 2013-14 Appendix C
	Item 08 - Annual Review of Parking Charges for 2013-14 Appendix D

	9 2013-14 Budget & Review of Service Plans
	2013-14 Budget & Review of Service Plans -  Appendix A
	2013-14 Budget & Review of Service Plans - Appendix B
	2013-14 Budget & Review of Service Plans - Appendix C
	2013-14 Budget & Review of Service Plans - Appendix D


